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Available Information

Information about our company and communities is provided on our website at www.taylormorrison.com (the “Taylor Morrison website”). From time to time, we
may use our website as a channel of distribution of material information. Financial and other material information regarding our company is routinely posted and
accessible on our website. In addition, you may automatically receive e-mail alerts and other information about our company by enrolling your e-mail address by
visiting the “Email Alerts” section of the “Investor Relations” page on our website. The information contained on or accessible through the Taylor Morrison
website is not considered part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Annual Report”). Our periodic and current reports, including any amendments, filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), are available, free of charge, on our
Taylor Morrison website as soon as reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”). In addition to our SEC filings, our corporate governance documents, including our Code of Conduct and Corporate Governance Guidelines are
available on the “Investor Relations” page of our Taylor Morrison website under “Sustainability.” To the extent required by the SEC’s rules and regulations, we
intend to post amendments to or waivers from, if any, provisions of our Code of Conduct (to the extent applicable to our directors, principal executive officer,
principal financial officer and principal accounting officer) at this location on the Taylor Morrison website. Our stockholders may also obtain these documents in
paper format free of charge upon request made to our Investor Relations department.

We were incorporated in Delaware in November 2012. Our principal executive offices are located at 4900 N. Scottsdale Road, Suite 2000, Scottsdale, Arizona
85251 and our telephone number is (480) 840-8100.

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain information included in this Annual Report or in other materials we have filed or will file with the SEC (as well as information included in oral statements
or other written statements made or to be made by us) contains or may contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Exchange Act. You can identify these statements by the fact that they do not relate to
matters of strictly historical or factual nature and generally discuss or relate to estimates or other expectations regarding future events. They contain words such
as, but not limited to, “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “project,” “intend,” “plan,” “believe,” “may,” “will,” “can,” “could,” “might,” “should” and other words or
phrases of similar meaning in connection with any discussion of our strategy or future operating or financial performance. Forward-looking statements speak
only as of the date they are made. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future
events or otherwise, except as required by law. This discussion is provided as permitted by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and all of our
forward-looking statements are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained or referenced in this Annual Report, including those
described below and under the heading “Risk Factors” in Part I, Item 1A.
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General Overview

BUSINESS

Taylor Morrison Home Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries (“TMHC” or the "Company") is a leading national homebuilder and land developer in the
United States and has been named America’s Most Trusted Homebuilder® for eleven consecutive years (awarded by Lifestory Research). We have expanded
our market footprint and product positioning through our homebuilder business acquisitions and smart organic growth. We serve a variety of customers in the
entry-level, move-up and resort lifestyle buyer groups across the country. We are also a land developer, with a portfolio of lifestyle and master-planned
communities with single and multi-family detached and attached homes. With each of our consumer groups seeking varying levels of home specification and
affordability considerations, we have a dynamic and flexible operating strategy and product offering that allows us to serve each of these segments and respond

quickly to changing market conditions to maximize our financial performance.

Our homebuilding business operates under the Taylor Morrison and Esplanade brand names. We also leverage our core homebuilding and land development
expertise in alternative ways by operating the following strategic real estate related businesses:

. We provide financial services to customers through our wholly owned mortgage subsidiary, Taylor Morrison Home Funding, Inc. (“TMHF”),
title insurance and closing settlement services through our tittle company, Inspired Title Services, LLC (“Inspired Title”), and homeowner’s
insurance policies through our insurance agency, Taylor Morrison Insurance Services, Inc.(“TMIS”).

. We operate a “Build-to-Rent” homebuilding business under the brand name Yardly. Through Yardly, we serve as a land acquirer, developer,
and homebuilder in addition to providing leasing and management functions.

2025 HIGHLIGHTS

@ 12,997 home closings

/,/‘ Net sales orders of 11,074

$7.8 billion of home closings revenue

RECENT AWARDS

America's Most Trusted Home Builder by Lifestory Research - 11 consecutive years

U.S. News & World Report's Best Companies to Work For

America's Greenest Companies by Newsweek

America's Best Companies by Forbes

Most Trusted Companies in America by Forbes

Fortune Best Workplaces for Women™

Home closings gross margin of 22.5%

ol

% Approximately $1.8 billion of liquidity

$ Repurchased 6.5 million common shares for $381.0 million

America's Most Responsible Companies by Newsweek

Fortune's World's Most Admired Companies
Fortune 500 List
The American Opportunity Index

Fortune Best Workplaces in Construction™

Certified™ as a Great Place To Work

Our business is organized into multiple homebuilding operating components and a financial services component. We operate our homebuilding business in the

markets presented below:

TAYLOR MORRISON HOME CORPORATION 10-K
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West East
Bay Area Atlanta
Las Vegas Charlotte
Pacific Northwest Fort Myers-Naples
Phoenix Jacksonville
Sacramento Orlando
O Southern California Raleigh
@) Sarasota
Tampa
Treasure Coast
()
()
° Central
Austin
O Dallas-Fort Worth
Denver
O L Houston
O Indianapolis

Business Strategy and Operations

Our short and long-term priorities and strategies include the following:

Short-term priorities

strategic land initiatives to mitigate risk, enhance capital efficiency, and improve returns on investments; these include an asset light approach through
financing land by way of land banking arrangements and joint ventures;

process and product optimization to promote operational effectiveness;

product innovation and standardization to drive operating efficiencies and cost reduction;

balancing sales pace and price on a community-by-community basis to maintain targeted sales volume;
balancing our inventory of homes under construction and our pace of new construction starts;
optimizing, at a community level, the intentional balance of to-be-built and quick-move-in homes;

ability to swiftly adjust our pricing, discounts/incentives, or financial services product offerings based on our customers' needs while maintaining strong
margins;

continuing to enhance the customer experience by providing efficient processes and building superior products; and

further scaling our Build-to-Rent operations to meet the need for rental households.

Long-term strategies

opportunistic land acquisition of prime assets in core locations;

building distinctive communities driven by consumer preferences; resulting in a balanced portfolio which can withstand multiple economic cycles;
consistent delivery of competitive financial metrics;

innovative digital marketing capabilities;

maintaining a cost-efficient operating structure and culture; and

disciplined capital allocation with a focus on strong liquidity and balance sheet stewardship.

To support our business strategies, we maintain a balanced capital allocation approach designed to maximize long-term shareholder value. We operate our
business to capitalize on market dynamics while mitigating risks from economic

TAYLOR MORRISON HOME CORPORATION 10-K
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downturns as we recognize the cyclical nature of the housing industry. This capital allocation strategy is built on the following pillars:

. reinvest in core homebuilding operations;

. seek additional growth opportunities through mergers, acquisitions, organic growth into adjacent markets, opportunistic land acquisitions/financing and
joint venture strategies;

. optimize debt leverage;

. reinvest in ancillary business opportunities within the industry; and

. returning capital to shareholders (i.e. share repurchase programs).

Land and Development Strategies

Prudent and disciplined acquisition of land in desirable locations and thoughtful community development have always been pillars of our long-term strategy. We
pride ourselves on our responsible land stewardship. While we focus on investing in land in prime submarkets that appeal to our targeted consumer groups, we
also seek to preserve natural habitats. Our proposed sites undergo project feasibility studies to assess the regulatory, market, environmental, and other risks and
requirements. Considerations include accessibility to utilities, suspected threatened or endangered wildlife, significant or unusual noise levels, proper drainage
infrastructure, and storm water pollution prevention.

Community development includes the acquisition and development of land, which may include obtaining significant planning and entitlement approvals and
completing construction of off-site and on-site utilities and infrastructure. We generally operate as community developers, however in some communities we
operate solely as merchant builders, in which case we acquire fully entitled and developed lots.

In order to maximize our risk-adjusted return, the allocation of capital for land investment is performed as part of a centralized process with a disciplined
approach to overall portfolio management. Our portfolio investment committee of senior leadership meets on a regular basis. Annually, our operating divisions
prepare a strategic plan for their respective geographies. Macro and micro indices, including but not limited to employment, housing starts, new home sales, re-
sales and foreclosures, along with market-related shifts in competition, land availability and consumer preferences, are carefully analyzed to determine our land
and homebuilding strategy. Supply and demand are analyzed on a consumer segment and submarket basis to ensure land investment is targeted appropriately.
Our long-term plan is compared on an ongoing basis to current conditions in the marketplace as they evolve and is adjusted to the extent necessary. Strategic
decisions regarding community positioning are included in the decision making and underwriting process and are made in consultation with senior executives of
our management team.

Consistent with our focus on capital-efficient growth, we continue to work to increase the percentage of our total homebuilding lots controlled via options and
other off-balance sheet arrangements. These arrangements include seller financing, joint ventures and land banking opportunities. We evaluate each land
acquisition for the optimal financing arrangement based on projected cost of capital, duration and expected returns in order to secure prime assets, minimize risk
and maximize returns.

As a party to various land banking arrangements, we acquire land in staged takedowns, which limits risk and defers cash outflows. Third-party land bank entities
use equity contributions from their owners and/or incur debt to finance the acquisition and development of the land. Such lots are included in our controlled lots.

As of December 31, 2025 and 2024, the allocation of owned and controlled lots held in our land portfolio, by year acquired, was as follows:

As of December 31, As of December 31,

2025 2024
Acquired in 2025 27% —%
Acquired in 2024 36% 49%
Acquired in 2023 13% 16%
Acquired in 2022 11% 14%
Acquired in 2021 and prior 13% 21%
Total 100% 100%
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Community Development and Home Design

We create a complete development concept for each community, beginning with an overall community layout and then determine the size, style and price range
of the homes, the layout of the streets and positioning of the individual home sites. After necessary governmental and other approvals have been obtained, we
improve the land by clearing and grading, installing roads and underground utility lines, staking out individual home sites and, in certain communities, building
distinctive entrance structures and recreational amenities.

Each community is staffed with personnel who manage construction operations, sales, and customer service, in conjunction with a local management team to
manage the overall project.

The life cycle of a community generally ranges from two to five years, commencing with the acquisition of land, continuing through the land development phase,
and concluding with the sale, construction, and delivery of homes. Actual life cycle will vary based on the size of the community, the sales absorption rate, and
whether we purchased the property as raw land or as developed lots.

The construction time for our homes varies from project to project depending on geographic region, the time of year, the size and complexity of construction, the
governmental approval processes, local labor availability, availability of materials and supplies, weather, and other factors.

Our dedication to service defines our customer experience and acknowledges homeowners’ suggestions to incorporate style, quality and sustainability into every
community we develop. We offer a range of award-winning and innovative designs with a number of features such as single-story, multi-story, multi-family, higher
density living, ranch style living, split bedroom plans and first floor master bedroom suites to appeal to various buyer needs. We engage architectural firms and
utilize internal architectural resources to develop and augment existing plans in order to ensure that our homes reflect current and local consumer tastes. We
engineer our homes for energy-efficiency and cost savings to reduce the impact on the environment.

Supply Chain

Based on local market practices, we either directly, or indirectly through our subcontractors, purchase drywall, cement, steel, lumber, insulation and the other
building materials necessary to construct a home. While these materials are generally widely available from a variety of sources, from time to time we
experience material shortages on a localized basis which can substantially increase the price for such materials and our construction process can be slowed.

Our construction, land and purchasing teams coordinate subcontracting services and supervise all aspects of construction work and quality control. We are a
general contractor for all of our homebuilding projects. Subcontractors perform all home construction and land development, generally under fixed-price
contracts. The availability of labor, specifically as it relates to qualified trades people, at reasonable prices can be challenging in some markets.

Yardly Brand

We operate a “Build-to-Rent” homebuilding business under the brand name Yardly. Taylor Morrison serves as a land acquirer, developer, and builder of these
rental communities in addition to providing lease-up oversight in conjunction with professional third-party property management. Yardly has reimagined rental
neighborhoods by blending function and form of both residential homes and traditional apartment living that appeal to a variety of demographics. Attractive one-
to-four bedroom floor plans, smart home technology, low-maintenance living, and a focus on pets with private backyards allow for improved wellbeing and
flexibility for residents. Differentiators from most traditional apartments include ground-floor primary living, limited to no wall-sharing to reduce noise, and a doggy
door included in most homes for nonstop come-and-go pet access.

We currently have projects in multiple markets including Austin, Charlotte, Dallas, Houston, Orlando, Phoenix, Raleigh, Sarasota, and Tampa. These
communities are financed in a variety of ways ranging from wholly-owned, land banks and joint ventures. Sourcing, development and leasing is ongoing at
communities across Taylor Morrison's footprint and evaluation of financing options, product offerings, execution strategies and back-end valuations and exit
decisions, which are influenced by market dynamics and purchaser and equity sentiment.

Sales and Marketing

We are committed to continuously enhancing our customer experience, including how we target and attract our consumers. Our marketing program utilizes a
balanced approach of corporate support and local expertise to attract potential customers in a focused, efficient, and cost-effective manner.

Our goal is to identify the preferences of our customers and demographic groups and offer them innovative, well-designed, quality homes that are affordable for
them, and efficient and profitable for us to build. We strive to maintain product and price level differentiation through continual market and customer research. We
also use key indicators of market-specific supply and demand characteristics to determine the preferences of our customer base and to perform an optimal
matching of consumer groups, product/community design, and community location.

TAYLOR MORRISON HOME CORPORATION 10-K
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The central element of our marketing platform is our web presence at our Taylor Morrison website which houses our suite of home-shopping digital tools placing
innovation, transparency, and consumer ease at the forefront. Our system was completely redesigned in December 2025 as part of our ongoing evaluation of our
online shopping experience with home shoppers. Our full suite of online shopping products includes: online self-service appointments to help customers
schedule an appointment with ease; self-guided tours to enable customers to tour our homes privately, safely, and outside of normal business hours; an all new
artificial intelligence enhanced digital assistant, to help provide information, engage the shopper, and generate leads; and online home reservations, which allow
shoppers to get an initial price based on their selection of lot, floor plan, structural options and exterior and to reserve their desired home configuration digitally.

These tools have proved to be instrumental to our online sales success. Shoppers can seamlessly continue their experience by visiting one of our quick-move-in
and/or model homes via a self-guided or in-person tour. Customers may also use the website to schedule a phone appointment and receive a prompt response
from one of our online sales managers. The website is fully integrated with our customer relationship management (“CRM”) and lead scoring system. By
analyzing the content of the CRM, we focus our lead generation programs to deliver high-quality sales leads. With these leads, we are better able to increase
sales conversion rates and lower marketing costs. Our CRM system also offers automated personalization features which optimizes our email engagement
program through targeted messaging. We are using dynamic customer insights to adapt our strategy and optimize the impact of each interaction, resulting in a
better customer experience and increased direct sales. We also employ SMS text marketing in conjunction with our email campaigns to enhance customer
engagement and drive conversions through real-time communication and personalized messaging.

We also benefit from a centralized approach to in-house creative, paid and social media resulting in annual savings that are reinvested in additional media and
high performing influencer campaigns to increase brand awareness. Additionally, we selectively utilize traditional advertising such as print, directional marketing,
newspapers, billboards, and direct mail. We also directly notify local real estate agents and firms of new community openings to benefit from existing real estate
agent/broker channels in each market. Pricing and incentives for our homes are evaluated weekly based on an analysis of market conditions, competitive
environment, and supply and demand characteristics.

We use furnished model homes as a marketing tool to demonstrate the advantages of our homes’ designs, features and functionality, and to enhance the
consumer experience. Depending upon the number of homes to be built in the project and the product lines to be offered, we generally build between one and
three model homes within each active selling community. Our national model home program, known as Portrait, is aligned with a select group of design firms.
The design firms follow our Taylor Morrison standards to create an integrated marketing program and a model home storefront that conveys the customer
preferences we have identified. In addition, our Canvas program includes curated design collections, which are created based on consumer preference and
analytics as well as product procurement availability. This standardized approach not only allows us to create more predictable results, but also time synergies,
cost benefits, and support of our digital online sales strategy. We also use our Canvas program in our quick-move-in homes. Operational efficiencies are
paramount to our sales process and such efficiencies have included standardized processes, disciplined strategic activities, and execution of national programs.

Our homes are sold by commissioned team members who work from sales offices generally located within our model homes. Our goal is to ensure our sales
force has extensive knowledge of the homes, including our energy-efficient features, sales strategies and incentives, mortgage options, and community
dynamics. To achieve this goal, we have ongoing training for our sales team and conduct regular meetings to keep them abreast of the latest promotions,
options, sales techniques, and geographic competition. Our sales team members are licensed real estate agents, where required by law, and assist our
customers in adding design features to their homes, which we believe appeal to local consumer preferences. Third-party brokers who sell our homes are
generally paid a sales commission based on the price of the home. In some of our divisions, we contract with third-party design studios that specialize in
assisting our homebuyers with options and upgrades to personalize their homes. Utilizing these third-party design studios allows us to manage our overhead
and costs more efficiently. We may also offer various sales incentives, including price concessions, assistance with closing costs, interest rate locks, interest rate
buy downs, and landscaping or interior upgrades. The use, types, and amount of incentives depend largely on existing economic and local competitive market
conditions. The consumer demand for online sales tools and the evolution of digital home buying experiences have created opportunities to evolve our internal
and external commission programs.

Competition

We operate in a very competitive environment and compete with large national and regional homebuilding companies and with smaller local homebuilders for
land, financing and related services, raw materials, skilled management, volume discounts, and local realtor and labor resources. We also compete with the
resale home market as well as other housing alternatives such as the rental housing market.

To maximize our sales volumes, profitability, and product strategy, we strive to understand our competition and their pricing, product and sales volume strategies,
and results. Competition among residential homebuilders of all sizes is based on several interrelated factors, including location, reputation, amenities, floor
plans, design, quality, and price. We believe that we compare favorably to other homebuilders in the markets in which we operate.

TAYLOR MORRISON HOME CORPORATION 10-K
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Seasonality

Our business is seasonal. We have historically experienced, and expect to continue to experience, variability in our results on a quarterly basis. We may have a
varying amount of homes under construction, home closings, revenue and operating income from quarter to quarter. Our results may fluctuate significantly on a
quarterly basis, and we must maintain sufficient liquidity to meet short-term operating requirements. Factors expected to contribute to these fluctuations include,
but are not limited to:

. the timing of the introduction and start of construction of new . construction timetables:
projects; ’
- . the timing of receipt of regulatory approvals for development
. the timing of sales orders; and construction:
: the timing of closings of homes, lots and parcels; . the cost and availability of materials and labor; and
. the condition of the real estate market and general economic . weather conditions in the markets in which we build.

conditions in the areas in which we operate;
. mix of homes closed;

As a result of seasonal activity, our quarterly results of operations and financial position are not necessarily representative of a full fiscal year. To illustrate the
seasonality of our business, a summary of quarterly financial data follows:

Three Months Ended

2025 2024
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 March 31 June 30 F 30 D ber 31
Net sales orders 30% 25% 22% 23% 30% 25% 23% 22%
Home closings revenue, net 24% 25% 26% 25% 21% 25% 26% 28%
Income before income taxes 27% 25% 26% 22% 22% 23% 29% 26%
Net income 27% 25% 26% 22% 22% 23% 28% 27%

Financial Services

TMHF provides a number of finance-related services to our customers through our mortgage lending operations. The strategic purpose of TMHF is:

. to utilize mortgage financing as a sales tool through finance incentives in the home sale process to ensure a consistent customer experience and assist
in maintaining home production efficiency; and

. to control and analyze our sales order backlog quality and to manage projected home closing and delivery dates for our customers.

TMHF operates as an independent mortgage banker and conducts its business as a Federal Housing Administration (“FHA”) Full Eagle lender. TMHF funds
mortgage loans utilizing warehouse credit facilities. Revenue is earned through originating, selling, and servicing residential mortgage loans through TMHF's
retail channel. Typically, loans are sold and servicing is released, however a small percentage of servicing is retained.

TMHF competes with other mortgage lenders, including national, regional and local mortgage bankers and other financial institutions. TMHF utilizes a multi-
investor correspondent platform which gives us increased flexibility when placing loans with investors. TMHF has continued to expand and strengthen our
correspondent relationships. This has created stability and consistency in our origination process and delivery.

Inspired Title operates as a title insurance agent providing title and/or escrow services. Inspired Title searches and examines land title records and prepares title
commitments and polices for land we acquire as well as for our homebuyers in our Florida, Georgia, North Carolina, South Carolina, Indiana, Arizona, Nevada,
Colorado and Texas markets, contracting with agents in other markets where title insurance underwriters and attorneys perform the escrow closing functions.
Inspired Title competes against other title and escrow agents that provide similar services. Specific to our California markets, Inspired California Escrow provides
escrow services for homebuyers and competes against other escrow agents that provide similar services.

TMIS operates as an insurance agency utilizing third-party carriers that specialize in homeowner’s insurance for new homes and offers other insurance products

such as auto, flood and universal for homebuyers in all of our markets. TMIS competes against other insurance agencies that provide similar services.

TAYLOR MORRISON HOME CORPORATION 10-K
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Regulation, Environmental, Health and Safety Matters

Regulatory

We are subject to various local, state and federal statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations concerning zoning, building design, construction, safety and similar
matters, including local regulations that impose restrictive zoning and density requirements in order to limit the number of homes that can eventually be built
within the boundaries of a particular property or locality. In a number of our markets, there has been an increase in state and local legislation requiring the
dedication of land as natural space. In addition, we are subject to various licensing, registration, filing, and reporting requirements in connection with the
construction, advertisement and sale of homes in our communities.

In order to secure certain approvals in some areas, we may be required to provide affordable housing at below market sales prices. In addition, local and state
governments have broad discretion regarding the imposition of development fees for projects under their jurisdictions, as well as requiring concessions or that
the builder construct certain improvements to public places such as parks and streets, or fund schools.

TMHF is subject to various state and federal statutes, rules and regulations, including those that relate to licensing, lending operations and other areas of
mortgage origination and financing. The impact of those statutes, rules and regulations can increase our homebuyers’ cost of financing, increase our cost of
doing business, as well as restrict our homebuyers’ access to some types of loans. The title and escrow services provided by Inspired Title are subject to various
regulations, including regulation by state banking and insurance regulators.

In order for our homebuyers to finance their home purchases with FHA-insured, Veterans Administration (“VA”)-guaranteed or U.S. Department of Agriculture
("USDA")-guaranteed mortgages, we are required to build such homes in accordance with the regulatory requirements of those agencies.

Some states have statutory disclosure requirements or other pre-approval requirements or limitations governing the marketing and sale of new homes. These
requirements vary widely from state to state. Some states require us to be registered as a licensed contractor, a licensed real estate broker and in some markets
our sales agents are additionally required to be registered as licensed real estate agents.

TAYLOR MORRISON HOME CORPORATION 10-K
10



Table of Contents

ITEM1 | BUSINESS

ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS

We are subject to a variety of local, state and federal statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations concerning protection
of public health and the environment (collectively, “environmental laws”). For example, environmental laws may affect:
how we manage stormwater runoff, wastewater discharges, and dust; how we develop or operate on properties on or
affecting resources such as wetlands, endangered species, cultural resources, or areas subject to preservation laws;
and how we address contamination. The environmental laws that apply to any given community vary greatly according
to the location and environmental characteristics of the site and its present and former uses. Complying with these
environmental laws may result in delays, may cause us to incur substantial costs, and/or may prohibit or severely
restrict development in certain environmentally sensitive regions or areas. Noncompliance with environmental laws
could result in fines and penalties, obligations to remediate, permit revocation, and other sanctions; and contamination
or other environmental conditions at or in the vicinity of our developments could result in claims against us for personal
injury, property damage, or other costs.

@

EVALUATION

We manage compliance with environmental laws at the market level with assistance from our corporate and regional
legal departments. As part of the land acquisition due diligence process, we utilize environmental assessments to
identify environmental conditions that may exist on potential acquisition properties.

OOO
I
COMMUNITY

We believe we have the responsibility of creating communities and neighborhoods which will have long-lasting, positive
impacts on their environments and the people who live in them. As such, we are committed to integrating sustainable
values into various aspects of our business. This commitment to sustainability, our communities and our team is
highlighted in our latest Sustainability and Belonging Report available on our website. This Sustainability and Belonging
Report is not considered part of this Annual Report.

&

HEALTH AND SAFETY

We are committed to maintaining high standards in health and safety at all of our sites. We have a health and safety
audit system that includes comprehensive bi-annual independent third-party inspections of selected sites covering all
aspects of health and safety. Key areas of focus are on site conditions meeting health and safety standards, and on
subcontractor performance throughout our operating areas meeting or exceeding expectations. All of our team
members must complete an assigned curriculum of online safety courses each year. These courses vary according to
job responsibility. In addition, groups such as construction and field personnel are required to attend additional health
and safety-related training programs.
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INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

We have a distributed information technology organization that utilizes a "follow the sun" coverage model across the United States which allows for continuous
team availability regardless of time zone. Our approach to information technology is to continuously simplify our information technology platform and consolidate
and standardize applications. We believe a common application platform enables the sharing of ideas and rapid implementation of process improvements and
best practices across the entire company. Our back-office operations use a homebuilding industry enterprise resource planning package. Marketing and field
sales utilize a leading CRM solution that tracks leads and prospects from all sources and manages the customer communication process from lead creation
through the buying process and beyond. Field operations teams collaborate with our supply chain management to schedule and manage development and
construction projects with a set of standard and widely used homebuilding industry solutions.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

We own certain logos and trademarks that are important to our overall branding and sales strategy. Our consumer logos are designed to draw on our recognized
homebuilding heritage while emphasizing a customer-centric focus.

HUMAN CAPITAL

As of December 31, 2025 (figures presented are approximate)

Engaged in corporate or
3.000 2,500 | ccbuicing aperatons
H

Full-time Engaged in Financial Services
equivalent 500
employees

As of December 31, 2025, none of our employees were covered by collective bargaining agreements. We act solely as a general contractor, and all construction
operations are supervised by our project managers and field superintendents who manage third-party subcontractors. We also use independent consultants and
contractors for some architectural, engineering, advertising and legal services. We strive to maintain strong, collaborative relationships with our subcontractors,
consultants and contractors.

Our people are our most valuable asset and are integral to the execution of our business strategy, operational excellence, and long-term performance. We focus
on attracting, developing and retaining top talent with the expertise needed to support our operations and advance our strategic priorities. Our division and
regional leaders average over 10 years with the Company. In addition, our executive leadership team, responsible for setting our overall strategic direction,
averages 15 years with the Company. Many members of our leadership team have extensive career experience in the homebuilding industry, providing
continuity, institutional knowledge, and deep operational expertise.

To attract and retain top talent in our industry, we offer our employees a broad range of company-paid benefits and highly competitive compensation packages.
Our employees are eligible for medical, dental and vision insurance, a savings/retirement plan, life and disability insurance, various wellness programs and
tuition reimbursement, along with other optional benefits designed to meet individual needs. We engage third-party compensation and benefits consulting firms
to evaluate our programs and benchmark them against our peers.

We are also committed to employee development, learning, and internal advancement. Through our learning management system, employees have access to
more than 5,000 online courses, as well as various training and leadership development programs tailored to various stages of career and leadership
progression. These programs are designed to support skill development, leadership readiness, and succession planning, reinforcing our focus on building a
sustainable talent pipeline.

Our human capital strategy is aligned with our broader strategies, including responsible workforce management, leadership continuity, employee engagement,
and risk mitigation. We believe that investing in our people, promoting ethical leadership, and maintaining a strong culture enhances our ability to execute our
strategy, manage operational risks, and deliver long-term value to our stakeholders.

Our human capital practices have been recognized through awards (as noted in the Recent Awards section above) from independent, third-party workplace
evaluations based on employee feedback. We view these recognitions as indicators of employee engagement and consider them alongside other qualitative and
quantitative inputs as part of our broader human capital management program.
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Risks related to our industry, business and economic conditions

Our business is cyclical and is significantly affected by changes in general and local economic conditions.

Our business can be substantially affected by adverse changes in general economic or business conditions, and other events and conditions that are outside of
our control, including:

. increases in short- and long-term interest rates;

. high inflation;

. interruptions in supply-chains and the cost or availability of building materials;

. the availability of subcontractors, vendors or other third parties;

. housing affordability and federal and state policies meant to address affordability;

. the cost and availability of suitable land and lots for the development of our communities;

. the availability and cost of financing for homebuyers;

. federal and state income and real estate tax laws, including limitations on, or the elimination of, the deduction of mortgage interest or property tax
payments;

. employment levels, job and personal income growth and household debt-to-income levels;

. consumer confidence generally and the confidence of potential homebuyers in particular;

. the ability of homeowners to sell their existing homes at acceptable prices;

. the U.S. and global financial systems and credit markets, including stock market and credit market volatility;

. inclement weather and natural disasters, including risks associated with global climate change, such as increased frequency or intensity of adverse
weather events;

. civil unrest, acts of terrorism, other acts of violence, threats to national security, political instability, escalating global trade tensions, the adoption of
trade restrictions and/or tariffs, or public health issues such as epidemics or pandemics;

. mortgage financing programs and regulation of lending practices;

. housing demand from population growth, household formations and demographic changes (including immigration levels and trends in urban and
suburban migration);

. demand from foreign buyers for our homes;

. the supply of available new or existing homes and other housing alternatives;

. energy prices; and

. the availability of developable land in our markets and in the United States generally.

Adverse changes in these conditions may affect our business nationally or may be more prevalent or concentrated in particular regions or localities in which we
operate, which effects may be magnified where we have significant operations. Additionally, governmental action and legislation related to economic stimulus,
taxation, tariffs, housing affordability, spending levels and borrowing limits, interest rates, immigration and immigration enforcement, as well as political debate,
conflicts and compromises related to such actions, may negatively impact the financial markets and consumer confidence and spending, which could adversely
impact the U.S. economy and the housing market. Any deterioration or significant uncertainty in economic or political conditions could have a material adverse
effect on our business.

These adverse changes in economic, political and other conditions can cause mortgage rates to rise, demand and prices for our homes to fall or cause us to
take longer to build our homes and make it more costly for us to do so. We may not be able to recover these increased costs by raising prices because of weak
market conditions and because the price of each home we sell is usually set several months before the home is delivered, as many customers sign their home
purchase contracts before construction begins. The potential difficulties described above could impact our customers’ ability to obtain suitable financing and
cause some homebuyers to cancel or refuse to honor their home purchase contracts altogether.
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A slowdown or severe downturn in the housing market could have additional adverse effects on our operating results and financial
condition.

During periods of industry downturn, housing markets across the United States may experience an oversupply of both new and resale home inventory, an
increase in foreclosures, reduced levels of consumer demand for new homes, increased cancellation rates, aggressive price competition among homebuilders
and increased incentives for home sales. The most recent significant industry downturn that began in 2008 materially and adversely impacted those in the
homebuilding industry, including us. In the event of a significant downturn, we may experience a material reduction in revenue, margins, and operating cash
flows. We cannot predict the trajectory of the U.S. housing market. Some housing markets and submarkets have been stronger than others, and there continue
to be macroeconomic fluctuations and variability in operating trends, which may be significant and unfavorable.

Increases in interest rates or government fees could prevent potential customers from buying our homes and adversely affect our
business or financial results.

Increases in interest rates as a result of changes to monetary policy could significantly increase the costs of owning a home or result in existing homeowners
with low interest rates choosing to remain in their current homes rather than purchase a new home in a higher interest rate environment. This, in turn, could
adversely impact demand for, and sales prices of, homes and the ability of potential customers to obtain financing and adversely affect our business, financial
condition and operating results. Recently, in reaction to increasing inflation, the Federal Reserve increased interest rates 11 times from 2022 to 2024, which
caused buyer apprehension and affordability concerns, initially resulting in an increase in cancellations and a negative impact on our net sales orders. To
mitigate these impacts we began to adjust pricing, primarily by offering finance incentives, as well as home discounts and other pricing reductions during the
second half of 2022. We continue to offer such incentives to help drive sales orders. However, there is no guarantee that these incentives or adjustments will be
as effective in the future. Rising interest rates may also negatively impact demand for mortgage financing, which may result in lower home mortgage originations
for our TMHF business. The Federal Reserve lowered interest rates in 2025 and has indicated that it may further lower interest rates in 2026. However, interest
rates continue to remain elevated compared to prior years and there is no guarantee that the Federal Reserve will take action to reduce rates. Any increases in
interest rates could negatively affect mortgage rates, real estate property values, sales orders and increase cancellations, which could adversely affect our
business.

Tax increases and changes in tax rules may adversely affect our financial results.

We are exposed, both directly and indirectly, to the effects of changes in U.S., state and local tax rules. For example, if federal or state laws are changed to
eliminate or reduce the income tax benefits associated with homeownership, such as personal tax deductions for mortgage loan interest costs and real estate
taxes, the after-tax cost of homeownership could measurably increase and diminish interest in buying a home. Additionally, increases in property tax rates by
local governmental authorities can adversely affect the ability of potential customers to obtain financing or their desire to purchase new homes. Fees imposed on
developers to fund schools, open spaces, road improvements and/or provide low- and moderate-income housing, could increase our costs and have an adverse
effect on our results of operations. In addition, increases in sales taxes could adversely affect our potential customers who may consider those costs in
determining whether or not to make a new home purchase, potentially reducing our customer base and reducing sales revenue.

If homebuyers are not able to obtain suitable financing, our sales may decline.

A substantial majority of our homebuyers finance their home purchases through lenders that provide mortgage financing, including TMHF. The availability of
mortgage financing may fluctuate due to various factors, including regulatory changes, that may cause a more conservative risk tolerance by lenders resulting in
increased levels of scrutiny of a borrower’s ability to repay. This includes those mortgages meeting the requirements of a Qualified Mortgage as defined under
the Truth-In-Lending Act (Regulation Z). A limited availability of home mortgage financing may adversely affect the volume of our home sales and the sales
orders prices we achieve. It could also limit our ability to attract new customers, or our existing customers’ ability to resell their homes. While we typically do not
write contracts to purchase contingent upon a customer’s sale of their existing home, our sales contracts do include a financing contingency that permits the
customer to terminate their contract in the event they have applied for financing with the builder’s approved lender in accordance with the terms of the purchase
agreement and are unable to qualify.

The liquidity provided by government-sponsored entities, such as the Federal National Mortgage Association ("Fannie Mae") and the Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation ("Freddie Mac"), as well as the Government National Mortgage Association ("Ginnie Mae"), the FHA and the VA, to the mortgage industry
has been very important to the housing market. If Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac were dissolved, or if the federal government tightened their borrowing standards
or determined to stop providing liquidity support to the mortgage market (including due to any failure of lawmakers to agree on a budget or appropriation
legislation to fund relevant programs or operations), there would be a reduction in the availability of the financing provided by these institutions. Any such
reduction would likely have an adverse effect on interest rates, mortgage availability and our sales of new homes.
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FHA-insured mortgage loans generally have lower down-payment requirements and qualification standards compared to conventional mortgage loans and, as a
result, the FHA continues to be a particularly important source for financing the sale of our homes. Lenders have taken and may continue to take a more
conservative view of FHA guidelines causing significant tightening of borrower eligibility for approval.

In each of our markets, decreases in the availability of credit and increases in the cost of credit adversely affect the ability of homebuyers to obtain or service
mortgage debt. Even if potential homebuyers do not themselves need mortgage financing (e.g., potential homebuyers financing their home purchase via a sale
of their existing home), increases in mortgage costs, lack of availability of mortgages and/or regulatory changes could prevent the buyers of our potential
homebuyers’ existing homes from obtaining a mortgage, which would result in our potential homebuyers’ inability to buy a new home from us. Similar risks apply
to those buyers who are awaiting delivery of their homes and are currently in backlog. If our customers (or potential buyers of our customers’ existing homes)
cannot obtain financing, our sales and results of operations could be adversely affected.

If we experience shortages in labor supply, increased labor costs or labor disruptions, there could be delays or increased costs in
developing our communities or building homes, which could adversely affect our operating results.

We require a qualified labor force to develop our communities and build our homes. Access to qualified labor may be affected by circumstances beyond our
control, including work stoppages, changes in laws relating to union organizing activity and increases in subcontractor and professional services costs.

Labor shortages can be further exacerbated as demand for housing increases. Any of these circumstances could give rise to delays and increased costs in
developing one or more of our communities and building homes. In addition, the vast majority of our work carried out on site is performed by subcontractors. In
the past, reduced levels of homebuilding in the United States has led to some skilled tradesmen leaving the industry to take jobs in other sectors. If
subcontractors are not able to recruit sufficient numbers of skilled employees, our development and construction activities may suffer from delays and quality
issues, which would also lead to reduced levels of customer satisfaction and increased home warranty and construction defect claims. Further, the cost of labor
may also be adversely affected by inflation and changes in immigration laws and enforcement and trends in labor migration. We may not be able to recover
increased costs by raising our home prices because the price for each home is typically set months prior to its delivery pursuant to sales contracts with our
homebuyers. In such circumstances, our operating results could be adversely affected. Additionally, market and competitive forces may also limit our ability to
raise the sales prices of our homes.

Higher cancellation rates may have an adverse effect on our business.

Our backlog represents sales contracts with our homebuyers for homes that have not yet been delivered. We have received a deposit from a homebuyer for
each home reflected in our backlog and, generally, we have the right, subject to certain exceptions, to retain the deposit if the homebuyer fails to comply with his
or her obligations under the sales contract, including as a result of the homebuyer’s inability to sell his or her current home or the homebuyer’s inability to make
additional deposits required prior to the closing date. In some situations, however, a homebuyer may cancel the agreement of sale and receive a complete or
partial refund of the deposit.

Homebuyers may choose to terminate their existing home purchase contracts with us in order to negotiate for a lower price or because they cannot, or will not,
complete the purchase and our remedies generally do not extend beyond the retention of deposits as our liquidated damages. For the year ended December 31,
2025, our cancellation rate was 13.2%, compared to 9.5% for the year ended December 31, 2024, and 12.1% for the year ended December 31, 2023.

In cases of cancellation, we remarket the home and retain any deposits we are permitted to retain. Nevertheless, the deposits may not offset the additional costs
involved in remarketing the home, replacing or modifying installed options, carrying higher inventory, reducing the sales price or increasing incentives on the
completed home for greater marketability. Further, depending on the stage of cancellation, a contract that is cancelled at the end of a phase may cause
additional costs for the out of sequence construction or modification of the particular home. Significant numbers of cancellations could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Raw materials and building supply shortages and price fluctuations could delay or increase the cost of home construction and
adversely affect our operating results.

The homebuilding industry has experienced and, from time to time, may in the future experience raw material shortages and be adversely affected by volatility in
global commodity prices. These shortages and interruptions can result in significant cost inflation as well as negatively impact the timing of our closings and the
pace of our sales. In particular, shortages and fluctuations in the price of concrete, drywall, lumber or other important raw materials could result in delays in the
start or completion of, or increase the cost of, developing one or more of our residential communities. Our lumber needs are particularly sensitive to shortages
and related cost increases, including increases in imposed tariffs. We may also face increased future home warranty and construction defect claims associated
with substitute products or materials used in some instances to address supply shortages in certain markets or communities. See — “Homebuilding is subject to
home
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warranty and construction defect claims in the ordinary course of business that can lead to significant costs for us” below. In addition, the cost of petroleum
products, which are used both to deliver our materials and to transport workers to our job sites, fluctuates and may be subject to increased volatility as a result of
geopolitical events and trade policy, catastrophic storms, other severe weather, natural disasters or significant environmental accidents. Environmental laws and
regulations may also have a negative impact on the availability and price of certain raw materials such as lumber and concrete. Additionally, pricing for raw
materials may be affected by various other national, regional and local economic and political factors. For example, in recent years the federal government has
imposed new or increased tariffs or duties on an array of imported materials and goods that are used in connection with the construction and delivery of our
homes, including steel, aluminum and lumber, raising our costs for these items (or products made with them). Such government imposed tariffs and trade
regulations on imported building supplies have and may in the future continue to have significant impacts on the cost to construct our homes, including by
causing disruptions or shortages in our supply chain and/or negatively impacting the U.S. regional or local economies.

We are particularly exposed to rapid increases in construction costs for those homes that are in our backlog because we are generally unable to pass increases
in such costs on to our customers who have already entered into purchase contracts.

Inflation or deflation could adversely affect our business and financial results.

Inflation can adversely affect us by increasing costs of land, materials and labor, which we have experienced in recent years. In addition, as discussed above,
inflation is often accompanied by higher interest rates, which historically has had a negative impact on housing demand, as well as increasing the interest rates
we need to pay for our own capital financing. While interest rates have recently stabilized, they are still elevated and are not expected to go down materially in
the near future. In such an environment, we may not be able to raise home prices sufficiently to keep up with the rate of inflation, and our margins could
decrease. An oversupply of homes relative to demand and home prices being set several months before homes are delivered may make any price increase
difficult or impossible. Efforts by the government to stimulate the economy may increase the risk of significant inflation and its adverse impact on our business or
financial results.

Deflation could also affect us adversely. A significant period of deflation could cause a decrease in overall spending and borrowing levels. This could lead to a
deterioration in economic conditions, including an increase in the rate of unemployment. Deflation could also cause the value of our inventories to decline or
reduce the value of existing homes below the related mortgage loan balance, which could potentially increase the supply of existing homes and have a negative
impact on demand and our results of operations.

Furthermore, a material decline in oil and gas prices may increase the risk of significant deflation and its adverse impact on our business or financial results, as
the economies of some of the markets in which we operate are impacted by the health of the energy industry.

The homebuilding and mortgage and title services industries are highly competitive and if our competitors are more successful or
offer better value to our customers, our business could decline.

We operate in a very competitive environment with competition from a number of other homebuilders in each of our markets. We compete with large national
and regional homebuilding companies and with smaller local homebuilders for land, financing and related services, raw materials, skilled management, volume
discounts, local realtors and labor resources. We also compete with the resale, or “previously owned,” home market, as well as other housing alternatives such
as the rental housing market. Additionally, some of our competitors have longstanding relationships with subcontractors and suppliers in markets in which we
operate and others may have greater financial resources or lower costs than us. Competitive conditions in the homebuilding industry could make it difficult for us
to acquire suitable land at acceptable prices, cause us to increase selling incentives, reduce prices and/or result in an oversupply of homes for sale. These
factors have adversely affected demand for our homes and our results of our operations in the past and could do so again in the future.

Additionally, our mortgage and title services businesses compete with other mortgage lenders and title companies, including national, regional and local
mortgage banks and other financial institutions, some of which may be subject to fewer government regulations or, in the case of mortgage lenders, may have a
greater range of products, greater access to or a lower cost of capital or different lending criteria and may be able to offer more attractive financing to potential
customers.

If we are unable to compete effectively in our homebuilding and mortgage and title services markets, our business could decline disproportionately to our
competitors, and our results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

Any increase in unemployment or underemployment may lead to an increase in the number of loan delinquencies and property
repossessions and have an adverse impact on us.

According to the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, the U.S. unemployment rate was 4.4% as of December 2025, and the labor force participation rate was 62.5%.
While the relatively low unemployment rate is an encouraging sign, people who are not employed, are underemployed, who have left the labor force or are

concerned about low wages or the loss of their jobs are less likely to purchase new homes, may be forced to try to sell the homes they own and may face
difficulties in making
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required mortgage payments or qualifying for new mortgage financing. Therefore, any increase in unemployment or underemployment may lead to an increase
in the number of loan delinquencies and property repossessions and have an adverse impact on us both by reducing demand for the homes we build and by
increasing the supply of homes for sale.

Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate because of the seasonal nature of our business and other factors.

Our quarterly operating results generally fluctuate by season as a result of a variety of factors such as the timing of home deliveries and land sales, the changing
composition and mix of our asset portfolio-, and weather-related issues.

Weather-related problems, typically in the fall, late winter and early spring, may delay starts or closings and increase costs and thus reduce profitability. In some
cases, we may not be able to recapture increased costs by raising prices. In addition, deliveries may be staggered over different periods of the year and may be
concentrated in particular quarters. Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate because of these factors. See ltem 1—Business—Seasonality.

Unusual weather events or natural disasters as well as the increased focus by investors and other stakeholders on sustainability
issues, could increase our costs, damage our reputation and/or otherwise adversely impact our operations or stock price.

Some of our business is in areas that are particularly vulnerable to severe weather events, such as from the increased frequency and severity of wildfires,
storms, flooding, tornados, severe cold and drought. For example, in recent years, hurricanes, winter storms and unseasonably cold weather in certain regions
have left homeowners without electricity and impacted utility prices. Such severe weather events can delay home construction, increase costs by damaging
inventories, reduce the availability of building materials, and increase transportation delays further increasing stress on our supply chain and negatively
impacting the demand for new homes in affected areas, as well as slowing down or otherwise impairing the ability of utilities and local governmental authorities
to provide approvals and service to new housing communities. Furthermore, if our insurance does not fully cover our costs and other losses from these events,
including those arising out of related business interruptions, our earnings, liquidity, or capital resources could be adversely affected. Additionally, these factors
may increase the cost of homeowners' insurance, which could reduce demand for the homes we build.

Additionally, increasing governmental and societal attention to sustainability matters, including expanding mandatory and voluntary reporting on topics such as
climate change and risk oversight, could expand the nature, scope, and complexity of matters that we are required to control, assess, monitor and report. These
factors may increase our ongoing costs of compliance and adversely impact our results of operations, cash flows, and stock price. If we are unable to adequately
address such sustainability matters or we or our subcontractors fail to comply with all related laws, regulations, policies and expectations, it could negatively
impact our reputation, our business results, and the price of our common stock.

An inability to obtain additional performance, payment and completion surety bonds and letters of credit could limit our future growth.

We are often required to provide performance, payment and completion and warranty/maintenance surety bonds or letters of credit to secure the completion of
our construction contracts, development agreements and other arrangements. We believe we have obtained credit facilities to provide the required volume of
such surety bonds and letters of credit for our expected growth in the medium term. However, unexpected growth may require additional facilities. We may also
be required to renew or amend our existing facilities. Our ability to obtain additional performance, payment and completion and warranty/maintenance surety
bonds and letters of credit primarily depends on our credit rating, capitalization, working capital, past performance, management expertise and certain external
factors, including the fluidity of the markets for such bonds. Performance, payment and completion and warranty/maintenance surety bond and letter of credit
providers consider these factors in addition to our performance and claims record and provider-specific underwriting standards, which may change from time to
time.

If our performance record or our providers’ requirements or policies change, if we cannot obtain the necessary renewals or amendments from our lenders, or if
the market’s capacity to provide performance, payment and completion of warranty/maintenance bonds or letters of credit is not sufficient, we could be unable to
obtain such bonds or letters of credit from other sources when required, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Homebuilding is subject to home warranty and construction defect claims in the ordinary course of business that can lead to
significant costs for us.

As a homebuilder, we are subject to home warranty and construction defect claims arising in the ordinary course of business. Construction defects may occur on
projects and developments and may arise a significant period of time after completion. Unexpected expenditures attributable to defects or previously unknown
sub-surface conditions arising on a development project may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.
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We maintain products and completed operations excess liability insurance, obtain indemnities and certificates of insurance from subcontractors generally
covering claims related to damages resulting from faulty workmanship and materials and maintain warranty and other reserves for the homes we sell based on
historical experience in our markets and our judgment of the risks associated with the types of homes built. Although we actively monitor our warranty reserves
and insurance coverage, because of the uncertainties inherent to these matters, we cannot provide assurance that our insurance coverage, our subcontractors'
indemnity and warranty arrangements and our reserves together will be adequate to address all of our warranty and construction defect claims in the future. We
record changes in estimates to pre-existing reserves as needed. The reserve estimate is based on assumptions, including but not limited to, the number of
homes affected, the costs associated with each repair, and the effectiveness of the repairs. Due to the degree of judgment required in making these estimates
and the inherent uncertainty in potential outcomes, it is reasonably possible that actual costs could differ from those recorded and such differences could be
material, resulting in a change in future estimated reserves. In addition, contractual indemnities with our subcontractors can be difficult to enforce. We may also
be responsible for applicable self-insured retentions and some types of claims may not be covered by insurance or may exceed applicable coverage limits.
Additionally, the coverage offered by and the availability of products and completed operations excess liability insurance for construction defects is currently
limited and costly. This coverage may be further restricted or become more costly in the future.

In California we operate under an Owner Controlled Insurance Plan (“OCIP”) for general liability exposures of most subcontractors (excluding consultants), as a
result of the inability of subcontractors to procure acceptable insurance coverage to meet our requirements. Under the OCIP, subcontractors are effectively
insured by us. We have assigned risk retentions and bid deductions to our subcontractors based on their risk category. These deductions are used to fund future
liabilities. The cost of the future liabilities as they are realized could exceed the value of the deductions, which could increase our costs leading to a material
adverse effect on our operating results.

Our reliance on subcontractors can expose us to various liability risks.

We rely on subcontractors in order to perform the construction of our homes and, in many cases, to select and obtain raw materials. We are exposed to various
risks as a result of our reliance on these subcontractors and their suppliers. The subcontractors we rely on to perform the actual construction of our homes are
also subject to a significant and evolving number of local, state and federal laws and regulations, including laws involving matters that are not within our control.
If these subcontractors who construct our homes fail to comply with all applicable laws, we can suffer reputational damage and may be exposed to liability.

These subcontractors are independent from us under normal homebuilding industry practices. We do not have the ability to control what these independent
subcontractors pay or the work rules they impose on their employees. However, various federal and state governmental agencies have sought, and may in the
future seek, to hold contracting parties like us responsible for our subcontractors’ violations of wage and hour laws, or workers’ compensation, collective
bargaining and/or other employment-related obligations related to subcontractors’ workforces. Governmental agency determinations or attempts by others to
make us responsible for our subcontractors’ labor practices or obligations could create substantial adverse exposure for us in situations that are not within our
control and could be material to our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Failure to manage land acquisitions, inventory and development and construction processes could result in significant cost overruns
or errors in valuing sites.

We own and purchase a large number of sites each year and are therefore dependent on our ability to process a very large number of transactions and make a
number of budgetary assumptions which include, among other things, evaluating the site, designing the layout of the development, sourcing materials and
subcontractors and managing contractual commitments efficiently and accurately. If we do not manage this process efficiently or our estimates for development
costs are not accurate, it could result in the community not generating the returns we expected when underwriting the project and acquiring the property.

In addition, we incur many costs even before we begin to build homes in a community. Depending on the stage of development of a land parcel when we acquire
it, these may include: costs of preparing land, finishing and entitling lots, installing roads, sewers, water systems and other utilities; taxes and other costs related
to ownership of the land on which we plan to build homes; constructing model homes; and promotional and marketing expenses to prepare for the opening of a
new home community for sales. Moreover, local municipalities may impose development-related requirements resulting in additional costs. If the rate at which
we sell and deliver homes slows or falls, or if our opening of new home communities for sale is delayed, we may incur additional costs, which would adversely
affect our gross margins and could lead to a longer period of time for us to recover our costs, including those we incurred in acquiring and developing land.

In certain circumstances, a grant of entitlements or development agreement with respect to a particular parcel of land may include restrictions on the transfer of
such entitlements to a buyer of such land, which may increase our exposure to decreases in the price of such entitled land by restricting our ability to sell it for its
full entitled value. In addition, inventory carrying costs can be significant and can result in reduced margins or losses in a poorly performing community or
market. Further, if we were required to record a significant inventory impairment, it could negatively affect our reported earnings and negatively impact the
market perception of our business.
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Access to capital could be hindered if land banks are not able to raise necessary investor funds or if we are unable to create and
maintain relationships with land banks.

As part of our land acquisition strategy, we have developed and expanded our relationships with land bank partners with a view toward using land banks to gain
future access to land without initially taking ownership. If we are unable to identify or to develop and maintain the necessary relationships with suitable land
banks in the future, we will not be able to fully implement our land-light business strategy. Most land banks are funds that use financial investor capital to finance
land acquisitions. If returns to investors in land banks are not sufficient to attract investor funds and land banks are not able to identify alternative sources of
funding, we would no longer have access to land banks and instead might have to purchase our land directly from landowners. This would significantly impair
our ability to carry out our strategy of reducing our inventory of owned land.

If land and lots are not available at competitive prices, our sales and results of operations could be adversely affected.

Our long-term profitability depends in large part on the price at which we are able to obtain suitable land and lots for the development of our communities.
Increases in the price (or decreases in the availability) of suitable land and lots could adversely affect our profitability. Moreover, changes in the general
availability of desirable land, geographical or topographical constraints, competition for available land and lots, limited availability of financing to acquire land and
lots, zoning regulations that limit housing density, environmental requirements and other market conditions may hurt our ability to obtain land and lots for new
communities at prices that will allow us to be profitable. If the supply of land and lots that are needed for development of new communities becomes more limited
because of these or any other reason, the cost of land and lots could increase and the number of homes that we are able to build and sell could be reduced,
which could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

If the market value of our land inventory decreases, our results of operations could be adversely affected by impairments and write-
downs.

The market value of our land and housing inventories depends on market conditions. We acquire land for expansion into new markets and for replacement of
land inventory and expansion within our current markets, and there is often a significant lag time between when we acquire land for development and when we
sell homes in our communities. This risk is exacerbated particularly with undeveloped and/or unentitled land.

There is an inherent risk that the value of the land we have purchased may decline. The valuation of property is inherently subjective and based on the individual
characteristics of each property. We may have acquired options on or bought and developed land at a cost we will not be able to recover fully or on which we
cannot build and sell homes profitably. As a result, we may decide to abandon and forfeit deposits on land option contracts and other similar contracts if we
cannot satisfactorily renegotiate the purchase price of the subject land. Moreover, all valuations are made on the basis of assumptions that may not prove to
reflect economic or demographic reality. If housing demand decreases below what we anticipated when we acquired our inventory, our profitability may be
adversely affected and we may not be able to recover our costs when we build and sell houses. In addition, we may incur charges against our earnings for
inventory impairments if the value of our owned inventory, including land we decide to sell, is reduced or for land option deposit abandonments if we choose not
to exercise land option contracts or other similar contracts, and these charges may be substantial.

We may not be able to use certain deferred tax assets, which may result in our having to pay substantial taxes.

We have significant deferred tax assets, including net operating losses that could be used to offset earnings and reduce the amount of taxes we are required to
pay. Our ability to use our net operating losses is dependent on a number of factors, including applicable rules relating to the permitted carry back period for
offsetting certain net operating losses against prior period earnings and the timing and amount of future taxable income. If we are unable to use our net operating
losses, we may have to record charges to reduce our deferred tax assets, which could have an adverse effect on our results of operations.

We have significant operations in certain geographic areas, which subjects us to an increased risk of lost revenue or decreases in the
market value of our land and homes in these regions from factors which may affect any of these regions.

We currently operate in several states with a concentration in the Western United States and a significant presence in California. Negative factors affecting one
or a number of the geographic regions at the same time could result in a relatively greater impact on our results of operations than they might have on other

companies that have a more diversified portfolio of operations. To the extent that regions in which our business is concentrated are impacted by an adverse
event, we could be disproportionately affected compared to companies whose operations are less geographically concentrated.
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We participate in certain unconsolidated joint ventures, including those in which we do not have a controlling interest, where we may
be adversely impacted by the failure of the unconsolidated joint venture or the other partners in the unconsolidated joint venture to
fulfill their obligations.

We have investments in and commitments to certain unconsolidated joint ventures with related and unrelated strategic partners generally involved in real estate
development, homebuilding, Build-to-Rent, and/or mortgage lending activities. For example, in April 2022, we established a joint venture with Varde Partners
(“Véarde”), a leading global alternative investment firm, to develop rental properties as a part of our Build-To-Rent program. The venture includes $850 million in
equity commitments, funded 60 percent by Varde and 40 percent by the Company. The venture provides Varde with the exclusive opportunity to invest in the
acquisition and development of Build-To-Rent projects identified by the Company that meet the venture’s investment guidelines. At December 31, 2025, our total
investments in unconsolidated entities was $487.0 million.

To finance our joint ventures, our unconsolidated joint ventures often obtain loans from third-party lenders that are secured by the unconsolidated joint venture’s
assets. To the extent any of our joint ventures default on obligations secured by the assets of such joint venture, such assets could be forfeited to third-party
lenders.

We have provided non-recourse carve-out guarantees to certain third-party lenders to our unconsolidated joint ventures (i.e., guarantees of losses suffered by
the lender in the event that the borrowing entity or its equity owners engage in certain conduct, such as fraud, misappropriation of funds, unauthorized transfers
of the collateral or equity interests in the borrowing entity, or the borrowing entity commences a voluntary bankruptcy case or violates environmental law, or
hazardous materials are located on the property, or under other circumstances provided for in such guarantee or indemnity). In the future, we may provide other
guarantees and indemnities to such lenders, including secured guarantees, in which case we may have increased liability in the event that a joint venture
defaults on its obligations to a third party.

If the other partners in our unconsolidated joint ventures do not cooperate or fulfill their contractual obligations to the joint venture due to their financial condition,
strategic business interests (which may be contrary to ours), or otherwise, we may be required to spend additional resources (including payments under the
guarantees we have provided to the unconsolidated joint ventures’ lenders) or suffer losses, each of which could be significant. Moreover, our ability to recoup
such expenditures and losses by exercising remedies against such partners may be limited due to the contractual terms of the joint venture agreement, potential
legal defenses they may have, their respective financial condition and other circumstances. Furthermore, because we lack a controlling interest in our
unconsolidated joint ventures we cannot exercise sole decision-making authority, which could create the potential risk of impasses on decisions and prevent the
joint venture from taking, or not taking, actions that we believe may be in our best interests. In addition, as our relationships with our partners are contractual in
nature and may be terminated or dissolved under the terms of the applicable joint venture agreements, including buy-sell provisions, we may not continue to own
or operate the interests or assets underlying such relationship or may need to purchase additional interests or assets in the joint venture to continue ownership.
In the event a joint venture is terminated or dissolved, we could also be exposed to lawsuits and legal costs.

Information technology failures and data security breaches could harm our business.

We use information technology and other computer resources to carry out important operational and marketing activities as well as maintain our business
records, including information provided by our customers. Many of these resources are provided to us and/or maintained on our behalf by third-party service
providers pursuant to agreements that specify certain security and service level standards. Our ability to conduct our business may be impaired if these
resources are compromised, degraded, damaged or fail, whether due to a virus or other harmful circumstance, intentional penetration or disruption of our
information technology resources by a third party, natural disaster, hardware or software corruption, failure or error (including a failure of security controls
incorporated into or applied to such hardware or software), telecommunications system failure, service provider error or failure, intentional or unintentional
personnel actions (including the failure to follow our security protocols), or lost connectivity to our networked resources. A significant and extended disruption in
the functioning of these resources could impair our operations, damage our reputation, expose us to significant costs to restore these networked resources and
cause us to lose customers, sales and revenue.

Privacy, security, and compliance concerns have continued to increase as technology has evolved, including through the use of artificial intelligence. As part of
our normal business activities, we collect and store certain confidential information, including personal information of homebuyers/borrowers and information
about employees, vendors and suppliers. While we have implemented systems and processes intended to secure our information technology systems and
prevent unauthorized access to or loss of sensitive, confidential and personal data, including through the use of encryption and authentication technologies, and
have increased our monitoring capabilities to enhance early detection and rapid response to potential security anomalies, and, to date, have not had a significant
cybersecurity breach or attack that had, or is likely to have, a material impact on our business strategy, results of operations, or financial condition, our security
measures may not be sufficient for all possible occurrences and may be vulnerable to hacking (including through the use of artificial intelligence), employee
error, malfeasance (including through phishing attempts and ransomware attacks), system error, faulty password management or other irregularities. Further,
development and maintenance of these security measures are costly and continue to increase and require ongoing monitoring and updating as technologies
change and efforts to overcome security measures become increasingly sophisticated. If we fail to maintain the security of the data we are required to protect, or
if we were to be subject to a material successful cyber intrusion, such occurrence could result in business disruption, damage to our reputation, financial
obligations to third parties, fines, penalties, regulatory proceedings and private litigation with
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potentially large remediation and related costs, and also in deterioration in customers’ and vendors' confidence in us and other competitive disadvantages, each
of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Additionally, state governments, most notably California, Nevada, Texas and Colorado, have enacted or enhanced their data privacy regulations, and other
governments are considering establishing similar or stronger protections. These regulations impose certain obligations for securing, and potentially removing,
specified personal information in our systems, and for apprising individuals of the information we have collected about them. We have incurred costs in an effort
to comply with these data privacy risks and requirements, and our costs may increase significantly as such risks become increasingly complex or if new or
changing regulations are enacted. For example, in November 2020, California voters approved Proposition 24 (Consumer Personal Information Law and Agency
Initiative), which became effective as of January 1, 2023 and has increased data privacy requirements for our business. Despite our efforts, any noncompliance
could result in our incurring substantial penalties and reputational damage.

We may incur a variety of costs to engage in future growth or expansion of our operations or acquisitions of businesses, and the
anticipated benefits may never be realized.

As a part of our business strategy, we may make acquisitions of, or significant investments in, businesses. Any future acquisitions and investments and/or
disposals are accompanied by risks such as:

. difficulties in assimilating the operations and personnel of acquired companies or businesses;

. diversion of our management’s attention from ongoing business concerns;

. our potential inability to maximize our financial and strategic position through the successful incorporation or disposition of operations;

. significant liabilities may not be identified in due diligence or may come to light after the expiry of warranty or indemnity periods;

. difficulties in the implementation of uniform standards, controls, procedures and policies; and

. impairment of existing relationships with employees, contractors, suppliers and customers as a result of the integration of new management personnel

and cost-saving initiatives.

Acquisitions can result in dilution to existing stockholders if we issue our common stock as consideration, or reduce our liquidity if we fund them with debt or
cash. In addition, acquisitions can expose us to valuation risks, including the risk of writing off goodwill or impairing inventory and other assets related to such
acquisitions. The risk of goodwill and asset impairments will increase during a cyclical housing downturn when our profitability may decline.

We may not be able to manage the risks associated with these transactions and the effects of such transactions, which may materially and adversely affect our
business, financial condition and operating results.

A major health and safety incident relating to our business could be costly in terms of potential liabilities and reputational damage.

Building sites are inherently dangerous and pose certain inherent health and safety risks to construction workers and other persons on the site. Due to health
and safety regulatory requirements and the number of projects we work on, health and safety performance is critical to the success of all areas of our business.
Any failure in health and safety performance may result in penalties for non-compliance with relevant regulatory requirements, and a failure that results in a
major or significant health and safety incident is likely to be costly in terms of potential liabilities incurred as a result. Such a failure could generate significant
negative publicity and have a corresponding impact on our reputation, our relationships with relevant regulatory agencies or governmental authorities, and our
ability to attract customers and employees, which in turn could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Ownership or occupation of land and the use of hazardous materials carries potential environmental risks and liabilities.

We are subject to a variety of local, state and federal statutes, rules and regulations concerning land use and the protection of health, safety and the
environment, including those governing the discharge of pollutants to water and air, storm water run-off, the presence and handling of (and exposure to)
asbestos, and other hazardous materials, and the cleanup of contaminated structures and properties. Further, some environmental laws (including many
addressing releases of hazardous substances) impose strict liability, which means that we may be held liable for environmental conditions on property we own,
or previously owned, which we did not create or know about, or which resulted from conduct that was lawful. Contamination or other environmental conditions at
or in the vicinity of our developments could also result in claims against us for personal injury, property damage or other losses. Such liabilities, and the costs of
defending against such claims, may be substantial, and insurance coverage may be limited or non-existent. The presence of such contamination or
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other environmental conditions at or in the vicinity of our properties, or the failure to remediate such conditions properly, may also adversely affect our ability to
sell the affected land or to borrow using it as security. Environmental impacts from historical activities have been identified at some of the projects we have
developed in the past and additional projects may be located on land that may have been contaminated by previous use.

Negative publicity or poor relations with the residents of our communities could negatively impact sales, which could cause our
revenues or results of operations to decline.

Unfavorable media or investor and analyst reports related to our industry, company, brands, marketing, leadership, personnel, operations, business
performance, or prospects may affect our stock price and the performance of our business, regardless of its accuracy or inaccuracy. Our success in maintaining,
extending and expanding our brand image depends on our ability to adapt to a rapidly changing media environment. Adverse publicity or negative commentary
on social media outlets, such as blogs, websites or newsletters, could hurt operating results, as consumers might avoid or protest brands that receive bad press
or negative reviews. Customers and other interested parties could act on such information without further investigation and without regard to its accuracy.
Accordingly, we could suffer immediate harm without affording us an opportunity for redress or correction.

In addition, we can be affected by poor relations with the residents of communities we develop because these residents sometimes look to us to resolve issues
or disputes that may arise in connection with the operation or development of their communities. Efforts made by us to resolve these issues or disputes could be
deemed unsatisfactory by the affected residents and subsequent actions by these residents could disrupt sales or adversely affect our reputation. In addition, we
could decide or be required to make material expenditures related to the settlement of such issues or disputes or to modify our community development plans,
which could adversely affect our results of operations.

Legal and regulatory risks

New or changing government regulations and legal challenges may delay the start or completion of our communities, increase our
expenses or limit our homebuilding or other activities, which could have a negative impact on our results of operations.

The approval of numerous governmental authorities must be obtained in connection with our development and construction activities, and these governmental
authorities often have broad discretion in exercising their approval authority. We incur substantial costs related to compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements. Any increase in legal and regulatory requirements may cause us to incur substantial additional costs, or in some cases cause us to determine that
a property is not feasible for development. Various local, state and federal statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations concerning building, health and safety, site
and building design, environment, zoning, subcontracting, sales and similar matters apply to and/or affect the housing industry. In addition, our ability to obtain or
renew permits or approvals and the continued effectiveness of permits already granted or approvals already obtained depends on factors beyond our control,
such as changes in federal, state and local policies, rules and regulations and their interpretations and application. Furthermore, we are also subject to various
fees and charges of government authorities designed to defray the cost of providing certain governmental services and improvements. For example, local and
state governments have broad discretion regarding the imposition of development fees for projects under their jurisdictions, as well as requiring concessions or
that the builder construct certain improvements to public places such as parks and streets, or fund schools.

Further, government agencies routinely initiate audits, reviews or investigations of our business practices to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, which can cause us to incur costs or create other disruptions in our business that can be significant. Further, we may experience delays and
increased expenses as a result of legal challenges to our proposed communities, whether brought by governmental authorities or private parties.

We have faced, and may face in the future, substantial damages or be enjoined from pursuing important activities as a result of
existing or future litigation, arbitration or other claims.

We are involved in various litigation and legal claims, including actions brought on behalf of various classes of claimants. For example, in 2023 we paid $64.7
million resulting from a judgment in a case in Florida relating to our collection of club membership fees in connection with the use of our club amenities. See
Note 13 - Commitments and Contingencies - Legal Proceedings in the Notes to the Consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report for
additional information. We establish liabilities for legal claims and regulatory matters when such matters are both probable of occurring and any potential loss is
reasonably estimable. We accrue for such matters based on the facts and circumstances specific to each matter and revise these estimates as the matters
evolve. In such cases, there may exist an exposure to loss in excess of any amounts currently accrued. In view of the inherent difficulty of predicting the outcome
of these legal and regulatory matters, we generally cannot predict the ultimate resolution, the related timing or the amount of any eventual loss. To the extent the
liability arising from the ultimate resolution of any matter exceeds the estimates reflected in the recorded reserves relating to such matter, we could incur
additional charges that could be significant. Unfavorable litigation, arbitration or claims could also generate negative publicity in various media outlets that could
be detrimental to our reputation.
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Regulations regarding environmental matters and climate change may affect us by substantially increasing our costs and exposing us
to potential liability.

We are subject to various environmental laws and regulations, which may affect aspects of our operations such as how we manage storm water runoff,
wastewater discharge and dust; how we develop or operate on properties on or affecting resources such as wetlands, endangered species, cultural resources,
or areas subject to preservation laws; and how we address contamination.

Developers and homebuilders may become subject to more stringent requirements under such laws. In addition, some of these requirements that significantly
affect how certain properties may be developed are contentious, attract intense political attention, and may be subject to significant changes over time. For
example, regulations governing wetlands permitting under the federal Clean Water Act have been the subject of extensive rulemakings for many years, resulting
in several major joint rulemakings by the Environmental Protection Agency and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers that have expanded and contracted the scope
of wetlands subject to regulation; and such rulemakings have been the subject of many legal challenges, some of which remain pending. It is unclear how these
and related developments, including at the state or local level, ultimately may affect the scope of regulated wetlands where we operate. Although we cannot
reliably predict the extent of any effect these rulemakings regarding wetlands, or any other environmental requirements that may take effect, may have on us,
they could result in time-consuming and expensive compliance programs and in substantial expenditures, which could cause delays and increase our cost of
operations. Our noncompliance with environmental laws could result in fines and penalties, obligations to remediate or restore habitat, permit revocations and
other sanctions.

In addition, there is growing concern from advocacy groups and the general public that the emission of greenhouse gases and other human activities are
causing significant changes in weather patterns and temperatures and the frequency and severity of weather events and natural disasters. There is a variety of
legislation and other regulation being implemented or considered at the federal, state and local level relating to energy and climate change. This legislation and
these regulations involve matters including carbon dioxide emissions control and building codes that impose energy efficiency standards, as well as standards to
improve the resiliency of buildings to climate-related impacts such as flooding, storm surges, severe winds, wildfires and other extreme weather-related stress on
buildings. Such requirements could significantly increase our cost to construct homes. Energy-related initiatives affect a wide variety of companies throughout
the United States and the world and, because our operations are heavily dependent on significant amounts of raw materials, such as lumber, steel and concrete,
they could also have an indirect adverse impact on our operations and profitability to the extent the manufacturers and suppliers of our materials are burdened
with expensive cap and trade and similar energy-related taxes and regulations. Furthermore, some of our homes and land development projects may be in
locations that are susceptible to the physical impacts of climate change, and we may experience losses that are not adequately covered by insurance in the
event of an adverse event, or may not be able to find buyers for homes and developments in locations perceived as vulnerable to the physical impacts of climate
change. Additionally, the cost of insurance is rising due to the increasing frequency and severity of damages due to severe weather or natural disaster events,
and in some cases, insurers are refusing to renew or to write new policies in areas deemed susceptible to such events. Our customers' inability to obtain
affordable insurance policies, which has become more widespread over recent years and which was exacerbated by the unprecedented wildfire in California in
January 2025, could adversely impact our sales and results of operations.

Utility and resource shortages or rate fluctuations could have an adverse effect on our operations.

Several of the markets in which we operate have historically been subject to utility and resource constraints, including significant changes to the availability and
cost of electricity and water. Shortages of utility resources in our markets, particularly of water, may make it more difficult for us to obtain regulatory approval of
new developments and have other adverse implications.

For example, certain areas in which we operate, particularly the Western United States, have experienced and continue to experience severe drought conditions.
In response to these conditions, government officials often take a number of steps to preserve potable water supplies. To address a state mandate and their own
available potable water supplies, local water agencies/suppliers could potentially: restrict, delay the issuance of, or proscribe new water connection permits for
homes; increase the costs for securing such permits, either directly or by requiring participation in impact mitigation programs; adopt higher efficiency
requirements for water-using appliances or fixtures; limit or ban the use of water for construction activities; impose requirements as to the types of allowed plant
vegetation or irrigation for outdoor landscaping that are less desired by consumers; and/or impose fines and penalties for noncompliance with any such
measures. These local water agencies/suppliers could also increase rates and charges to residential users for the water they use, potentially increasing the cost
of homeownership.

Any of the foregoing, individually or collectively, could adversely affect the regional economies in which we operate, which may limit, impair or delay our ability to
acquire and develop land and/or build and deliver homes, increase our production costs or reduce demand for our homes, thereby negatively affecting our
business and results of operations.
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Risks related to our financial services business

Our financial services businesses are subject to risks, including risks associated with our ability to sell mortgages we originate and to
claims on loans sold to third parties.

While we intend for the loans originated by TMHF, our financial services business, to be sold on the secondary market, if TMHF is unable to sell loans into the
secondary mortgage market or directly to large secondary market loan purchasers such as Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, TMHF would bear the risk of being a
long-term investor in these originated loans. Being required to hold loans on a long-term basis would subject us to credit risks associated with the borrowers to
whom the loans are extended, would negatively affect our liquidity and could require us to use additional capital resources to finance the loans that TMHF is
extending. In addition, although mortgage lenders under the mortgage warehouse facilities TMHF currently uses to finance our lending operations normally
purchase our mortgages generally within 30 days of origination, if such mortgage lenders default under these warehouse facilities TMHF would be required to
fund the mortgages then in the pipeline. In such case, amounts available under our Revolving Credit Facility and cash from operations may not be sufficient to
allow TMHF to provide financing required by its business during these times, and our ability to originate and sell mortgage loans at competitive prices could be
limited, which could negatively affect our business. Further, an obligation to commit our own funds to long-term investments in mortgage loans could, among
other things, delay the time when we recognize revenue from home closings on our statements of operations.

Our financial services businesses may also be responsible for losses associated with mortgage loans originated and sold to investors (including loans originated
by companies we have acquired) in the event of errors or omissions relating to certain representations and warranties made to secondary market purchasers
that the loans sold meet certain requirements, including representations as to underwriting standards, the type of collateral, the existence of primary mortgage
insurance and the validity of certain borrower representations in connection with the loan. Accordingly, mortgage investors could seek to have us buy back loans
or compensate them for losses incurred on mortgages sold based on claims that we breached our limited representations or warranties. If, due to higher costs,
reduced liquidity, residential consumer loan putback demands or internal or external reviews of its residential consumer mortgage loan foreclosure processes, or
other factors or business decisions, TMHF is unable to make loan products available to our homebuyers, our home sales and financial services results of
operations may be adversely affected.

We enter into interest rate lock commitments (“IRLCs”) to originate residential mortgage loans held for sale, at specified interest rates and within a specified
period of time (generally between 30 and 60 days), with customers who have applied for a loan and meet certain credit and underwriting criteria. These
commitments expose us to market risk if interest rates change and the underlying loan is not economically hedged or committed to an investor. We also have
exposure to credit loss in the event of contractual non-performance by our trading counterparties in derivative instruments that we use in our rate risk
management activities. We aim to manage this credit risk by selecting only counterparties that we believe to be financially strong, spreading the risk among
multiple counterparties, placing contractual limits on the amount of unsecured credit extended to any single counterparty, and entering into netting agreements
with counterparties, as appropriate.

Our financial services and title services businesses may be adversely affected by changes in governmental regulation.

Changes in governmental regulation with respect to mortgage lenders and title service providers could adversely affect the financial results of this portion of our
business. Our financial services businesses are subject to numerous federal, state and local laws and regulations, which, among other things: prohibit
discrimination and establish underwriting guidelines; provide for audits and inspections; require appraisals and/or credit reports on prospective borrowers and
disclosure of certain information concerning credit and settlement costs; establish maximum loan amounts; prohibit predatory lending practices; and regulate the
referral of business to affiliated entities. In addition, our title insurance operations are also subject to applicable insurance and banking laws and regulations as
well as government audits, examinations and investigations, all of which may limit our ability to provide title services to potential purchasers.

The regulatory environment for mortgage lending is complex and ever changing and has led to an increase in the number of audits, examinations and
investigations in the industry. The 2008 housing downturn resulted in numerous changes in the regulatory framework of the financial services industry. Any
changes or new enactments could result in more stringent compliance standards, which could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.
Additionally, if we are unable to originate mortgages for any reason going forward, our customers could experience mortgage loan funding issues, which could
have a material impact on our homebuilding business and our results of operations.

The prices of our mortgages could be adversely affected if we lose any of our important commercial relationships.

We have longstanding relationships with members of the lender community from which our borrowers benefit. TMHF plans to continue with these relationships
and use the correspondent lender platform as a part of its operational plan. While we believe that our current commercial relationships are strong, if our
relationship with any one or more of those banks deteriorates or if one or more of those banks decide to renegotiate or terminate existing agreements or
otherwise exit the market, TMHF may be required to increase the price of our products, or modify the range of products TMHF offers, which
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could cause us to lose customers who may choose other providers based solely on price or fees, which could adversely affect our financial condition and results
of operations.

Risks related to our indebtedness

Constriction of the capital markets could limit our ability to access capital and increase our costs of capital.

We fund our operations with cash from operations, capital markets financings and borrowings under our Revolving Credit Facility and other loan facilities. The
expansion and development of our business may require significant capital, which we may be unable to obtain. Further, our capital requirements may vary
materially from those currently planned if, for example, our revenues do not reach, or our costs exceed, expected levels or we have to incur unforeseen capital
expenditures to maintain our competitive position. If this is the case, we may require additional financing sooner than anticipated or we may have to delay or
abandon some or all of our development and expansion plans or otherwise forego market opportunities. Volatile economic conditions and the constriction of the
capital markets could reduce the sources of liquidity available to us and increase our costs of capital. If the size or availability of our banking facilities is reduced
in the future, or if we are unable to obtain new, or renew existing, facilities in the future on favorable terms or otherwise access the loan or capital markets, it
would have an adverse effect on our liquidity and operations.

Our substantial debt could adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations and prevent us from fulfilling our
debt-related obligations.

We have a substantial amount of debt. As of December 31, 2025, the total principal amount of our debt (including $82.6 million of indebtedness of TMHF) was
$2.3 billion. Our substantial debt could have important consequences for the holders of our common stock, including:

. making it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to our debt or to our trade or other creditors;

. increasing our vulnerability to adverse economic or industry conditions;

. limiting our ability to obtain additional financing to fund land acquisitions and development and construction activities, particularly when the availability of
financing in the capital markets is limited;

. requiring us to pay higher interest rates upon refinancing or on our variable rate indebtedness if interest rates rise;

. requiring a substantial portion of our cash flows from operations and the proceeds of any capital markets offerings or loan borrowings for the payment of

principal and interest on our debt thus reducing our ability to use our cash flows to fund working capital, land acquisitions and development and
construction activities and general corporate requirements;

. limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry in which we operate; and

. placing us at a competitive disadvantage to less leveraged competitors.

We cannot ensure that our business will generate sufficient cash flow from operations or that future borrowings will be available to us through capital markets
financings or under our Revolving Credit Facility or otherwise in an amount sufficient to enable us to pay our indebtedness, or to fund our other liquidity needs.
We may need to refinance all or a portion of our indebtedness, on or before its maturity. We cannot ensure that we will be able to refinance any of our
indebtedness on commercially reasonable terms or at all. In addition, we may incur additional indebtedness in order to finance our operations, to fund
acquisitions, or to repay existing indebtedness. If we cannot service our indebtedness, we may have to take actions such as selling assets, seeking additional
debt or equity or reducing or delaying capital expenditures, strategic acquisitions, investments and alliances. We cannot ensure that any such actions, if
necessary, could be effected on commercially reasonable terms, or at all.

Restrictive covenants in the agreements governing our Revolving Credit Facility and other indebtedness may restrict our ability to
pursue our business strategies.

The agreement governing our Revolving Credit Facility limits our ability, and the terms of any future indebtedness may prohibit or limit our ability, among other
things, to:

. incur or guarantee additional indebtedness;

. make certain loans or investments;

. repurchase equity or subordinated indebtedness;

. pay dividends or make distributions in respect of capital stock or make other restricted payments;
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. sell assets, including capital stock of restricted subsidiaries;

. agree to restrictions on distributions, transfers or dividends affecting our restricted subsidiaries;
. consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our assets;

. enter into transactions with our affiliates;

. incur liens; and

. designate any of our subsidiaries as unrestricted subsidiaries.

In addition, the indentures governing our senior notes contain covenants that, among other things, restrict our ability to incur certain liens securing indebtedness
without securing the senior notes on an equal and ratable basis and enter into certain sale and leaseback transactions, subject, in each case, to certain
exceptions and qualifications.

The agreement governing our Revolving Credit Facility contains certain “springing” financial covenants that, if triggered, require Taylor Morrison Home |II|
Corporation, a Delaware corporation and our indirect wholly owned subsidiary, and its subsidiaries to comply with a maximum debt-to-capitalization ratio and a
minimum consolidated tangible net worth test.

The restrictions contained in the indentures governing our senior notes and the agreement governing our Revolving Credit Facility could also limit our ability to
plan for or react to market conditions, meet capital needs or make acquisitions or otherwise restrict our activities or business plans.

A breach of any of the restrictive covenants under the agreement governing our Revolving Credit Facility or any of our senior notes could allow for the
acceleration of the Revolving Credit Facility and/or all senior notes. If the indebtedness under our Revolving Credit Facility or the senior notes were to be
accelerated, we cannot assure you that our assets would be sufficient to repay in full that indebtedness and our other indebtedness.

Risks related to our organization and structure

Provisions in our charter and by-laws and provisions of Delaware law may delay or prevent our acquisition by a third party, which
might diminish the value of our common stock. Provisions in our debt agreements may also require an acquirer to refinance our
outstanding indebtedness if a change of control occurs.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and our amended and restated by-laws contain certain provisions that may discourage, delay or prevent a
change in our management or control over us that stockholders may consider favorable, including the following:

. the sole ability of the Board of Directors to fill a vacancy created by the expansion of the Board of Directors;

. advance notice requirements for stockholder proposals and director nominations;

. limitations on the ability of stockholders to call special meetings and to take action by written consent;

. in certain cases, the approval of holders of at least three-fourths of the shares entitled to vote generally on the making, alteration, amendment or repeal

of our certificate of incorporation or by-laws will be required to adopt, amend or repeal our bylaws, or amend or repeal certain provisions of our
certificate of incorporation; and

. the ability of our Board of Directors to designate the terms of and issue new series of preferred stock without stockholder approval, which could be
used, among other things, to institute a rights plan that would have the effect of significantly diluting the stock ownership of a potential hostile acquirer,
likely preventing acquisitions that have not been approved by our Board of Directors.

Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law may affect the ability of an “interested stockholder” to engage in certain business combinations for a
period of three years following the time that the stockholder becomes an “interested stockholder.” We have elected in our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation not to be subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law. Nevertheless, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation
contains provisions that have the same effect as Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law.

The existence of the foregoing provisions and anti-takeover measures could limit the price that investors might be willing to pay in the future for shares of our
common stock. They could also deter potential acquirers of our company, thereby reducing the likelihood that you could receive a premium for your common
stock in an acquisition.

Under our Revolving Credit Facility, a change of control would be an event of default, which could therefore require a third-party acquirer to obtain a facility to
refinance any outstanding indebtedness under the Revolving Credit Facility. Under the indentures governing our senior notes, if a change of control (as defined

in the indentures governing our senior notes) were to occur, we would be required to make offers to repurchase all of our senior notes at a price equal to 101%
of their
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respective principal amounts. These change of control provisions in our existing debt agreements may also delay or diminish the value of an acquisition by a
third party.

Our charter provides to the fullest extent permitted by law that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware will be the exclusive
forum for certain legal actions between the Company and our stockholders, which could increase costs to bring a claim, discourage
claims or limit the ability of our stockholders to bring a claim in a judicial forum viewed by stockholders as more favorable for
disputes with us or our directors, officers or other employees.

Our charter provides to the fullest extent permitted by law that unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the Court of Chancery of the
State of Delaware will be the sole and exclusive forum for any (i) derivative action or proceeding brought on behalf of the Company, (ii) any action or proceeding
asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any of our directors, officers, employees or stockholders, (iii) any action or proceeding asserting a claim
arising pursuant to any provision of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, as amended from time to time, or (iv) any action or proceeding
asserting a claim governed by the internal affairs doctrine. The choice of forum provision may increase costs to bring a claim, discourage claims or limit a
stockholder’s ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that it finds favorable for disputes with the Company or our directors, officers or other employees, which
may discourage such lawsuits against us or our directors, officers and other employees. Alternatively, if a court were to find the choice of forum provision
contained in our charter to be inapplicable or unenforceable in an action, we may incur additional costs associated with resolving such action in other
jurisdictions. The exclusive forum provision in our charter will not preclude or contract the scope of exclusive federal or concurrent jurisdiction for actions brought
under the federal securities laws including the Exchange Act or the Securities Act or the respective rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

Any of the above risks could have a material adverse effect on your investment in our common stock.
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ITEM 1B | UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 1C | CYBERSECURITY

Cybersecurity Risk Management and Strategy

We maintain a comprehensive cybersecurity program, including policies and procedures designed to protect our systems, operations, and data. We perform risk
assessments on a quarterly basis to identify and remediate potential cybersecurity threats and vulnerabilities. In connection with our assessment of potential
cybersecurity risks, our Information Technology ("IT") team engages in threat modeling, vulnerability scanning and penetration testing. For each identified risk,
our IT team will estimate the likelihood of occurrence and potential impact, which will guide the Company in assessing and prioritizing risks. We have also
implemented a process to evaluate and review potential cybersecurity risks arising from our use of third-party vendors. As part of our vendor engagement
protocols, we will consider, among other things, each potential vendor’s data backup procedures, incident reporting protocols and data privacy and encryption
practices. Once a new vendor is onboarded, we monitor their cybersecurity posture utilizing a third-party cybersecurity ratings provider.

In addition to our internal exercises to test aspects of our cybersecurity program, we engage independent third parties semi-annually to assess the risks
associated with our IT resources and information assets. Among other matters, these third parties analyze information on the interactions of users of our
information technology resources, including employees, and conduct penetration tests and scanning exercises to assess the performance of our cybersecurity
systems and processes. Annually, we examine our cybersecurity program with these third parties, evaluating its effectiveness in part by considering industry
standards and established frameworks, such as the National Institute of Standards and Technology ("NIST"), as guidelines. As TMHF is a mortgage company,
we are also associated with the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council.

For material cybersecurity risks, we’ve developed mitigation plans to reduce the risk’s likelihood of occurrence and/or its expected impact. Such mitigation plans
have involved, among other things, implementing additional technology controls or policies, increased training for company personnel or obtaining additional
insurance for the identified risk. Our IT team monitors material risks over time and updates the Company’s mitigation plans as appropriate. Our IT team also
regularly reports to the leadership team on the status of material risks, mitigation plans and incidents related to such risks.

We also maintain a data breach response plan, which is intended to be aligned with the NIST framework, and which is reviewed annually and conveyed to our
team members through our mandatory cybersecurity training. We also retain experienced cybersecurity consultants that can assist us in the event of a serious
breach, and maintain a cyber insurance policy.

For a discussion of how risks from cybersecurity threats affect our business, see “Iltem 1A. Risk Factors — Risks Related to our industry, business and economic
conditions — Information technology failures and data security breaches could harm our business” in this Annual Report.

Cybersecurity Governance

Management is responsible for ongoing assessment and oversight of cybersecurity risks that could significantly impact our operations, finances or reputation.
This includes identifying information assets and data systems that are critical to business functions, determining the vulnerability of those systems to potential
cyberattacks, and developing comprehensive protections and response plans.

To fulfill these responsibilities, management relies on IT and cybersecurity leadership who possess specialized expertise in relevant areas. Our cybersecurity
team is led by our Chief Information Officer ("CIO"), who has more than 25 years of experience working in information technology, of which more than 20 have
been with Taylor Morrison. With over ten years of experience developing cybersecurity programs, the CIO leads security control implementation, risk and
compliance monitoring, security tool management, and incident response planning. Reporting to the CIO, the Director of Information Security possesses expert
knowledge in threat modeling and vulnerability testing methodologies. The Director of Information Security leads efforts to build security into all IT processes and
procedures to protect against risks related to data leakage, broken authentication, injection flaws, improper encryption, and attacks on other application
vulnerabilities.

Supporting the CIO and Director of Information Security is a team of IT security professionals who collectively hold the following degrees and certifications:
Master’s degree in cybersecurity; Certified Information Systems Security Professional; Certified Ethical Hacker; Security +; Microsoft Certified Professional;
Microsoft Certified Solutions Associate; and Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer.

Supported by these skilled leaders, management conducts quarterly cyber risk reviews, maintains a cybersecurity risk register, and authorizes risk mitigation
budgets to protect against rapidly evolving cyber threats. The Company's Audit Committee of the Board of Directors (the "Audit Committee") and the full Board of
Directors are also regularly updated on
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cybersecurity risk assessments, policy changes, significant incidents, and preparedness levels. This enables management to provide oversight, set risk
tolerances, and support a comprehensive cybersecurity program that manages material cyber risks to the organization.

The CIO updates the Board of Directors biannually on the state of the cybersecurity program, which includes a discussion of the most important cybersecurity
risks facing the Company, an update on notable cybersecurity incidents and recent threats, and a summary of the results of the Company’s recent independent
cybersecurity assessments, among other items. In addition, the Audit Committee receives quarterly cybersecurity updates, which include reports on key
cybersecurity metrics, cybersecurity headlines, current risks and mitigation strategies.

ITEM 2 | PROPERTIES

We lease office facilities for our homebuilding and financial services operations. We also lease our corporate headquarters, which is located in Scottsdale,
Arizona. At December 31, 2025, the lease on this facility covered a space of approximately 25,000 square feet and expires in December 2027. We have
approximately 44 other leases for our other division offices and design centers. For information on land owned and controlled by us for use in our homebuilding
activities, please see ltem 1—Business—Business Strategy and Operations—Land and Development Strategies and Note 4—Real Estate Inventory in the Notes
to the Consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report.

ITEM 3 | LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information required with respect to this item can be found under Note 13—Commitments and Contingencies—Legal Proceedings in the Notes to the
Consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report and is incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 4 | MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.
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ITEM 5 | MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

Market Information

The Company lists its common stock on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") under the symbol “TMHC”. On February 18, 2026, the Company had 328
holders of record of our common stock. This does not include the number of stockholders who hold shares in TMHC through banks, brokers, and other financial
institutions.

Stock Performance Graph

The following shall not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or incorporated by reference into any of our other filings under the
Exchange Act or the Securities Act, except to the extent we specifically incorporate it by reference into such filing.

This chart compares the cumulative total return on our common stock with that of the Standard & Poor’s 500 Composite Stock Index (the “S&P 500”) and the
Standard & Poor’s Homebuilding Index (the “S&P Homebuilding Index”). The chart assumes $100.00 was invested at the close of market on December 31,
2020, in the common stock of Taylor Morrison Home Corporation, the S&P 500 Index and the S&P Homebuilding Index, and assumes the reinvestment of any
dividends. The stock price performance on the following graph is not necessarily indicative of future stock price performance.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN AMONG TMHC, THE S&P 500 AND THE S&P HOMEBUILDING INDEX FROM
DECEMBER 31, 2020 TO DECEMBER 31, 2025

$400.00
$350.00
$300.00
$250.00
$200.00
$150.00
$100.00
$50.00
$-
12/31/2020 12/31/2021 12/31/2022 12/31/2023 12/31/2024 12/31/2025
-8 TMHC S&P 500 ~@— S&P Homebuilding Index
12/31/2020 12/31/2021 12/31/2022 12/31/2023 12/31/2024 12/31/2025
TMHC $ 100.00 $ 136.30 $ 118.32 § 207.99 $ 238.64 $ 229.51
S&P 500 100.00 126.89 102.22 126.99 156.59 182.25
S&P Homebuilding Index 100.00 148.82 104.65 165.96 181.30 178.63

Dividends

We currently intend to use our future earnings to develop our business and for working capital needs and general corporate purposes, to fund our growth, to
repay debt and to repurchase shares of our common stock, and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. We have not previously
declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The Company'’s stock repurchase program allows for repurchases of the Company’s common stock in open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions
or other transactions. The stock repurchase program is subject to prevailing market conditions and other considerations, including our liquidity, the terms of our
debt instruments, statutory requirements, planned land investment and development spending, acquisition and other investment opportunities and ongoing
capital requirements. The program does not require the Company to repurchase any specific number of shares of common stock, and the program may be
suspended, extended, modified or discontinued at any time. Our Board of Directors can also increase the amount available for repurchase under the program or
extend the program. During the years ended December 31, 2025 and 2024, the Company repurchased an aggregate of 6,452,728 and 5,607,852 shares of
common stock, respectively.

The table below represents our share repurchase activity for the quarter ended December 31, 2025:

Total number of shares

purchased as part of Approximate dollar value of
publicly shares that may yet be

Total number of Average price paid announced plans or purchased under the plans

Period shares purchased per share programs or programs'"

(in thousands)
October 1 to October 31, 2025 233,222 $ 59:53 233,222 $ 586,564
November 1 to November 30, 2025 776,802 59.37 776,802 540,447
December 1 to December 31, 2025 191,740 59.30 191,740 529,077
Total 1,201,764 $ 59.39 1,201,764 $ 529,077

() On October 23, 2024, we announced that our Board of Directors authorized a renewal of the Company’s stock repurchase program which permitted the
repurchase of up to $1 billion of the Company’s Common Stock through December 31, 2026. On February 11, 2026, we announced that our Board of Directors
increased the amount available for future repurchases under its stock repurchase program to $1 billion of the Company’s common stock. This program expires
on December 31, 2027 and replaces the prior authorization.

ITEM 6 | [RESERVED]
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ITEM 7 | MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

General Overview

Our principal business is residential homebuilding and the development of lifestyle communities with operations across 12 states. We provide a collection of
homes across a wide range of price points to appeal to a variety of consumer groups. We design, build and sell single and multi-family detached and attached
homes in traditionally high growth markets for entry-level, move-up, and resort lifestyle buyers. Our homebuilding segments operate under the Taylor Morrison
and Esplanade brand names. We also have a “Build-to-Rent” homebuilding business which operates under the Yardly brand name. In addition, we provide
financial services to customers through our wholly owned mortgage subsidiary, TMHF, title services through our wholly owned title services subsidiary, Inspired
Title, and homeowner’s insurance policies through our insurance agency, TMIS. For reporting purposes, Taylor Morrison Home Corporation (“TMHC”) and Taylor
Morrison Communities, Inc. ("TM Communities") are substantially similar, with no material differences. Our business is organized into multiple homebuilding
operating components, and a financial services component, all of which are organized as four operating segments: East, Central, West and Financial Services,
as follows:

East Atlanta, Charlotte, Jacksonville, Naples, Orlando, Raleigh, Sarasota, and Tampa

Central Austin, Dallas, Denver, Houston, and Indianapolis

West Bay Area, Las Vegas, Phoenix, Pacific Northwest, Sacramento, and Southern California
Financial Services Taylor Morrison Home Funding, Inspired Title Services, and Taylor Morrison Insurance Services

() During the year ended December 31, 2025, we combined our Portland and Seattle divisions to become Pacific Northwest.

Annual Overview and Business Strategy

We benefit from a dynamic and flexible operating strategy that allows us to serve a broad range of consumers and respond to market and economic conditions,
community by community, to maximize our financial performance. This flexible but prudent approach allows for shifts in our pricing strategies, community
openings, financing incentives, starts volume and land investments to minimize risk and recalibrate affordability, while maintaining strong performance metrics.

We continuously adjust sales prices and our finance product offerings across our portfolio based on market conditions to drive sales while also protecting the
value of our backlog. Pricing adjustments are utilized in a variety of ways including finance incentives, adjustments to the pricing of lot premiums, options and
upgrades, and in some instances base price of the home. Each community’s buyer profile mix of adjustments is dependent on its backlog, inventory, duration,
and competitive dynamics.

Our balance sheet remained strong at December 31, 2025, ending the year with approximately $1.8 billion in total liquidity, a homebuilding debt-to-capitalization

ratio of 26.0% on a gross basis and 17.8% net of unrestricted cash. We believe we have a balanced capital allocation approach and continue to allocate capital
and manage our land portfolio to acquire assets that have attractive characteristics, including access to preferred schools, shopping, recreation and
transportation facilities. In connection with our overall land inventory management and investment process, our management team reviews these considerations,
as well as other financial metrics, to decide the highest and best use of our capital.

Factors Affecting Comparability of Results

For the years ended December 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023 we recognized $28.8 million, $5.0 million, and $11.8 million in inventory impairment charges,
respectively. Impairment charges are recorded to Cost of home closings on the Consolidated statements of operations.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, we recognized $17.8 million in impairment charges relating to our Urban Form properties. Impairment charges relating
to our Urban Form properties are recorded to Amenity and other expenses on the Consolidated statements of operations. For the years ended December 31,
2025 and 2023, no such impairment charges were incurred.

At December 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023, our legal accruals were $53.3 million, $49.1 million, and $26.2 million, respectively. Legal expenses and settlements are
recorded to Other expense, net on the Consolidated statements of operations.

For the years ended December 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023, we recognized $14.8 million, $9.5 million, and $4.2 million in pre-acquisition abandonment charges,

respectively. These charges are recorded to Other expense, net on the Consolidated statements of operations.
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For the years ended December 31, 2025 and 2023, we recognized $13.3 million and $0.3 million of loss on extinguishment of debt, net, respectively. These
charges are recorded to Loss on extinguishment of debt, net on the Consolidated statements of operations. There was no loss or gain on extinguishment of debt
for the year ended December 31, 2024.

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, we recognized $23.1 million and $14.8 million as a change in estimate for our Estimated Development
Liability. There was no change in our Estimated Development Liability on our Consolidated balance sheet for the year ended December 31, 2025. These charges
are recorded to Other expense, net on the Consolidated statements of operations.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

General

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (“GAAP”). The preparation of these financial statements requires management
to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses, and related disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of our financial statements. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions, impacting our
reported results of operations and financial condition.

Certain accounting policies involve significant judgments and assumptions by management, which have a material impact on the carrying value of assets and
liabilities and the recognition of income and expenses. The estimates and assumptions used by management are based on historical experience and other
factors, which are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The significant accounting policies that management believes are the most critical to aid
in fully understanding and evaluating our reported financial results are described below.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers ("ASC 606"). The
standard’s core principle requires an entity to recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Home and Land Closings Revenue

Under ASC 606, the following steps are applied to determine home closings revenue and land closings revenue recognition: (1) identify the contract(s) with the
customer; (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract; (3) determine the transaction price; (4) allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract; and (5) recognize revenue when (or as) the performance obligation(s) are satisfied. Our home sales transactions have one contract,
with one performance obligation, with each customer to build and deliver a home (or develop and deliver land). Based on the application of the five steps, the
following summarizes the timing and manner of home and land closings revenue:

. Revenue from home closings is recognized when the buyer has made the required minimum down payment, obtained necessary financing, the risks and
rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer, and we have no continuing involvement with the property, which is generally upon the close of escrow.
Revenue is reported net of any discounts and incentives.

. Revenue from land closings is recognized when a significant down payment is received, title passes and collectability of the receivable, if any, is
reasonably assured, and we have no continuing involvement with the property, which is generally upon the close of escrow. From time to time we may
enter into land or other asset sales that require recognition of revenue over time, however as of December 31, 2025, no such transactions have been
material.

Amenity and Other Revenue

We own and operate certain amenities such as golf courses, club houses, and fitness centers, which require us to provide club members with access to the
facilities in exchange for the payment of club dues. We collect club dues and other fees from club members, which are invoiced on a monthly basis. Revenue
from our golf club operations is also included in Amenity and other revenue. Amenity and other revenue also includes revenue from our Urban Form and Build-
to-Rent operations which is recorded as control transfers to the buyer at transaction close and when other criteria of ASC 606 are met. In addition, lease revenue
is recognized by Urban Form for commercial and residential leases and Build-to-Rent operations for rental home leases.

Financial Services Revenue

Mortgage operations and hedging activity related to financial services are not within the scope of Topic 606. Generally, the loans TMHF originates are sold to
third-party investors within a short period of time, on a non-recourse basis. Gains and losses from the sale of mortgages are recognized in accordance with ASC
Topic 860-20, Sales of Financial Assets. TMHF generally does not have continuing involvement with the transferred assets; therefore, we derecognize the
mortgage loans at time of sale, based on the difference between the selling price and carrying value of the related loans upon sale,
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recording a gain/loss on sale in the period of sale. Also included in Financial services revenue/expenses is the realized and unrealized gains and losses from
hedging instruments. ASC Topic 815-25, Derivatives and Hedging, requires that all hedging instruments be recognized as assets or liabilities on the
Consolidated balance sheets at their fair value. We do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting; therefore, we account for these instruments as free-standing
derivatives, with changes in fair value recognized in Financial services revenue/expenses on the Consolidated statement of operations in the period in which
they occur.

Real Estate Inventory Valuation and Costing

Inventory consists of raw land, land under development, homes under construction, completed homes, and model homes, all of which are stated at cost. In
addition to direct carrying costs, we also capitalize interest, real estate taxes, and related development costs that benefit the entire community, such as field
construction supervision and related direct overhead. Vertical construction costs are accumulated and charged to Cost of home closings at the time of home
closings when revenue is recognized using the specific identification method. Land acquisition, development, interest, and real estate taxes are capitalized and
allocated generally using the relative sales value method. Generally, all overhead costs relating to purchasing, vertical construction, and construction utilities are
considered overhead costs and are allocated on a per unit basis. These costs are capitalized to inventory beginning with the start of development through
construction completion. Changes in estimated costs to be incurred in a community are generally allocated to the remaining project on a prospective basis.

The life cycle of the community generally ranges from two to five years, commencing with the acquisition of unentitled or entitled land, continuing through the
land development phase and concluding with the sale, construction and delivery of homes. Actual community lives will vary based on the size of the community,
the sales absorption rate and whether we purchased the property as raw land or finished lots.

We capitalize qualifying interest costs to inventory during the development and construction periods. Capitalized interest is charged to Cost of home closings
when the related inventory is charged to Cost of home closings.

We assess the recoverability of our inventory in accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment ("ASC 360"). We review our
real estate inventory for indicators of impairment on a community-level basis during each reporting period. If indicators of impairment are present for a
community, an undiscounted cash flow analysis is generally prepared to determine if the carrying value of the assets in that community exceeds the estimated
undiscounted cash flows. Generally, if the carrying value of the assets exceeds their estimated undiscounted cash flows, the assets are potentially impaired,
requiring a fair value analysis. Our determination of fair value is primarily based on a discounted cash flow model which includes projections and estimates
relating to sales prices, construction costs, sales pace, and other factors. However, in certain circumstances, fair value can also be determined through other
methods, such as appraisals, contractual purchase offers, and other third-party opinions of value. Changes in these expectations may lead to a change in the
outcome of our impairment analysis, and actual results may also differ from our assumptions.

In certain cases, we may elect to cease development and/or marketing of an existing community if we believe the economic performance of the community
would be maximized by deferring development for a period of time to allow for market conditions to improve. We refer to such communities as long-term strategic
assets. The decision may be based on financial and/or operational metrics as determined by us. For those communities that have been temporarily closed or
development has been discontinued, we do not allocate or capitalize interest or other costs to the community’s inventory until activity resumes and such costs
are expensed as incurred. If we decide to cease development, we will evaluate the project for impairment and discontinue future development and marketing
activity until such a time when we believe that market conditions have improved and positive economic performance can be achieved. Our assessment of the
carrying value of our long-term strategic assets typically includes subjective estimates of future performance, including the timing of when development will
recommence, the type of product to be offered, and the margin to be realized. In the future, some of these inactive communities may be re-opened while others
may be sold.

In the ordinary course of business, we enter into land banking agreements with various sellers to acquire lots. As a method of acquiring land in staged
takedowns, while limiting risk and minimizing the use of funds from our available cash or other financing sources, we may transfer our right under certain specific
performance agreements, for land we own, to entities owned by third parties (“land banking arrangements”). These entities use equity contributions from their
owners and/or incur debt to finance the acquisition and development of the land. We incur interest expense and fees on these arrangements. We capitalize
qualifying interest costs to inventory during the development and construction periods with the remainder expensed and included in Interest expense/(income),
net on the Consolidated statements of operations. These lots are considered controlled, however we are not legally obligated to purchase lots under these
agreements and would forfeit any existing deposits and could be subject to financial and other penalties if the lots are not purchased. We do not have an
ownership interest in these entities or title to their assets and do not guarantee their liabilities. As such, these entities are not consolidated. These land banking
arrangements help us manage the financial and market risk associated with land holdings which are not included on the Consolidated balance sheets.

In some locations where we act as a developer, we occasionally purchase land that includes commercially zoned parcels or areas designated for school or
government use, which we typically sell to commercial developers or municipalities, as applicable. We also sell residential lots or land parcels to manage our
land and lot supply on larger tracts of land. Land is
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considered held for sale once it meets all criteria in accordance with ASC 360. Land held for sale is recorded at the lower of cost or fair value less costs to sell. In
determining the value of land held for sale, we consider recent offers received, prices for land in recent comparable sales transactions, and other factors. We
record fair value adjustments for land held for sale within Cost of land closings on the Consolidated statements of operations.

INSURANCE COSTS, SELF-INSURANCE RESERVES AND WARRANTY RESERVES

Insurance Costs and Self-Insurance Reserves

We are the parent of Beneva Indemnity Company (“Beneva”), which provides insurance coverage for construction defects discovered up to ten years following
the close of a home, coverage for premise operations risk, and from time to time, property damage. We have certain deductible limits for each of our policies
under our workers’ compensation, automobile, and general liability insurance policies, and we record expense and liabilities for the estimated costs of potential
claims for construction defects. We also generally require our subcontractors and design professionals to indemnify us and provide evidence of insurance for
liabilities arising from their work, subject to certain limitations. Excess liability exposure is aggregated annually and applied in excess of automobile liability,
employer’s liability under workers compensation and general liability policies. We accrue for the expected costs associated with the deductibles and self-insured
amounts under our various insurance policies based on historical claims, estimates for claims incurred but not reported, and potential for recovery of costs from
insurance and other sources. The estimates are subject to significant variability due to factors such as claim settlement patterns, litigation trends, and the
extended period of time in which a construction defect claim might be made after the closing of a home.

Our loss reserves for claims insured by Beneva are based on factors that include an actuarial study for historical and anticipated claims, trends related to similar
product types, number of homes closed, and geographical areas. We regularly review the reasonableness and adequacy of our reserves and make adjustments
to the balance of the preexisting reserves to reflect changes in trends and historical data as information becomes available. Self-insurance reserves are included
in Accrued expenses and other liabilities on the Consolidated balance sheets. Due to the degree of judgment required in making these estimates and the
inherent uncertainty in potential outcomes, it is reasonably possible that actual costs could differ from those recorded and such differences could be material,
resulting in a change in future estimated reserves.

Warranty Reserves

We offer a one-year limited warranty to cover various defects in workmanship or materials, a two-year limited warranty on certain systems (such as electrical or
cooling systems), and a ten-year limited warranty on structural defects. In addition, any outstanding warranties which were offered by our acquired companies
are also honored. We also provide third-party warranty coverage on homes where required by FHA or VA lenders. Warranty reserves are established as homes
close in an amount estimated to be adequate to cover expected costs of materials and outside labor during warranty periods. Our warranty is not considered a
separate performance obligation in the sales arrangement since it is not priced apart from the home; therefore, it is accounted for in accordance with ASC Topic
450, Contingencies, which states that warranties that are not separately priced are generally accounted for by accruing the estimated costs to fulfill the warranty
obligation. We accrue the estimated costs to fulfill the warranty obligation at the time a home closes, as a component of Cost of home closings on the
Consolidated statements of operations and warranty reserves are included in Accrued expenses and other liabilities on the Consolidated balance sheets.

INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED ENTITIES AND VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

We are involved in joint ventures with independent third parties for real estate development, homebuilding and mortgage lending activities. We use the equity
method of accounting for entities over which we exercise significant influence but do not have a controlling interest over the operating and financial results of the
investee. For unconsolidated entities in which we function as the managing member, we have evaluated the rights held by our joint venture partners and
determined that they have substantive participating rights that preclude the presumption of control. For these unconsolidated joint ventures, our share of net
earnings or losses is included in Net income from unconsolidated entities on the Consolidated statements of operations when earned and distributions are
credited against our Investment in unconsolidated entities on the Consolidated balance sheets when received.

We evaluate our investments in unconsolidated joint ventures for indicators of impairment semi-annually. A series of operating losses of an investee or other
factors may indicate that a decrease in value of our investment in the unconsolidated entity has occurred which is other-than-temporary. The amount of
impairment recognized, if any, is the excess of the investment’s carrying amount over its estimated fair value. Additionally, we consider various qualitative factors
to determine if a decrease in the value of the investment is other-than-temporary. These factors include age of the venture, stage in its life cycle, intent and ability
to recover our investment in the unconsolidated entity, financial condition and long-term prospects of the unconsolidated entity, short-term liquidity needs of the
unconsolidated entity, trends in the general economic environment of the land, entitlement status of the land held by the unconsolidated entity, overall projected
returns on investment, defaults under contracts with third parties (including bank debt), recoverability of the investment through future cash flows and
relationships with the other partners. If we believe that the decline in the fair value of the investment is temporary, then no impairment is recorded.
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In the ordinary course of business, we enter into land purchase contracts, lot option contracts and land banking arrangements in order to procure land or lots for
the construction of homes. Such contracts enable us to control significant lot positions with a minimal initial capital investment and substantially reduce the risks
associated with land ownership and development. In accordance with ASC Topic 810, Consolidation, we have concluded that when we enter into an option or
purchase agreement to acquire land or lots and pay a non-refundable deposit, a variable interest entity ("VIE") may be created because we are deemed to have
provided subordinated financial support that will absorb some or all of an entity’s expected losses, or benefit from rights to residual returns, if they occur. If we
are the primary beneficiary of the VIE, we consolidate the VIE in our Consolidated financial statements and reflect such assets and liabilities as Consolidated
real estate not owned and Liabilities attributable to consolidated real estate not owned, respectively, on the Consolidated balance sheets.

VALUATION OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

We account for income taxes using the asset and liability method, which requires that deferred tax assets and liabilities be recognized based on future tax
consequences of temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply in the years in which the temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in earnings in the period when the changes are
enacted. Changes in existing federal and state tax laws and corporate income tax rates could affect future tax results and the realization of deferred tax assets
over time.

In accordance with ASC Topic 740-10, Income Taxes, we evaluate our deferred tax assets by tax jurisdiction, including the benefit from net operating loss
(“NOL”") carryforwards by tax jurisdiction, to determine if a valuation allowance is required. We must assess, using significant judgments, whether a valuation
allowance should be established based on the consideration of all available evidence using a “more likely than not” standard with significant weight being given
to evidence that can be objectively verified. This assessment considers, among other matters, the nature, frequency and severity of current and cumulative
losses, forecasts of future profitability, the length of statutory carryforward periods, experience with operating losses and experience of utilizing tax credit
carryforwards and tax planning alternatives. We have not made any material changes in our methodology used to establish our valuation allowance during these
periods. If a specific event or transaction were to occur that impacts our valuation allowance, we would reassess the evidence and adjust the allowance
accordingly. Although management believes our valuation allowance is reasonable, no assurance can be given that the final tax outcome of these matters will
not be different from our current valuation of our deferred tax assets and it is reasonably possible that such differences could be material, resulting in a change in
future valuations.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth our results of operations for the periods presented:

Years Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands, except per share information) 2025 2024 2023
Statements of Operations Data:

Home closings revenue, net $ 7,755,434 $ 7,755,219 $ 7,158,857
Land closings revenue 36,944 81,417 60,971
Financial services revenue 209,407 199,459 160,312
Amenity and other revenue 119,695 132,041 37,691
Total revenue 8,121,480 8,168,136 7,417,831
Cost of home closings 6,008,007 5,863,743 5,451,401
Cost of land closings 30,898 73,609 55,218
Financial services expenses 104,618 108,592 93,990
Amenity and other expenses 107,749 137,980 34,149
Total cost of revenue 6,251,272 6,183,924 5,634,758
Gross margin 1,870,208 1,984,212 1,783,073
Sales, commissions and other marketing costs 461,485 456,092 418,134
General and administrative expenses 273,506 314,406 280,573
Net income from unconsolidated entities (4,867) (6,347) (8,757)
Interest expense/(income), net 47,003 13,316 (12,577)
Other expense, net 37,714 50,627 87,567
Loss on extinguishment of debt, net 13,324 — 295
Income before income taxes 1,042,043 1,156,118 1,017,838
Income tax provision 250,780 269,548 248,097
Net income before allocation to non-controlling interests 791,263 886,570 769,741
Net income attributable to non-controlling interests (8,763) (3,261) (812)
Net income $ 782,500 $ 883,309 $ 768,929
Home closings gross margin 22.5% 24 4% 23.9%
Average selling price per home closed $ 597 $ 601 $ 623
Sales, commissions and other marketing costs as a percentage of home closings revenue, net 6.0% 5.9% 5.9%
General and administrative expenses as a percentage of home closings revenue, net 3.5% 4.0% 3.9%
Effective income tax rate 24.1% 23.3% 24.4%
Earnings per common share-

Basic $ 7.90 $ 8.43 $ 7.09
Diluted $ 7.77 $ 8.27 $ 6.98

Non-GAAP Measures

In addition to the results reported in accordance with GAAP, we have provided information in this Annual Report relating to: (i) adjusted net income and adjusted
earnings per common share, (ii) adjusted income before income taxes and related margin, (iii) adjusted home closings gross margin, (iv) EBITDA and adjusted
EBITDA and (v) net homebuilding debt to capitalization ratio.

Adjusted net income, adjusted earnings per common share and adjusted income before income taxes and related margin are non-GAAP financial measures that
reflect the net income/(loss) available to the Company excluding, to the extent applicable in a given period, the impact of real estate and inventory impairment
charges, impairment of investment in unconsolidated entities, pre-acquisition abandonment charges, unique and unusual warranty charges, gains/losses on land
transfers to joint ventures, extinguishment of debt, net, and legal reserves or settlements that the Company deems not to be in the ordinary course of business
and in the case of adjusted net income and adjusted earnings per common share, the tax impact due to such items. The legal reserves or settlements amounts
presented in the year ended December 31, 2024
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relate to the same claim and are discussed in Note 13 - Commitments and Contingencies in the Notes to the Consolidated financial statements included in this
Annual Report.

EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA are non-GAAP financial measures that measure performance by adjusting net income before allocation to non-controlling
interests to exclude, as applicable, interest expense/(income), net, amortization of capitalized interest, income provisions, depreciation and amortization to
calculate EBITDA. Adjusted EBITDA further excludes non-cash compensation expense, if any, real estate and inventory impairment charges, impairment of
investments in unconsolidated entities, pre-acquisition abandonment charges, unique and unusual warranty charges, gains/losses on land transfers to joint
ventures, extinguishment of debt, net and legal reserves or settlements that the Company deems not to be in the ordinary course of business, in each case, as
applicable in a given period.

Net homebuilding debt to capitalization ratio is a non-GAAP financial measure we calculate by dividing (i) total debt, plus unamortized debt issuance
cost/(premium), net, and less mortgage warehouse borrowings, net of unrestricted cash and cash equivalents ("net homebuilding debt"), by (ii) total capitalization
(the sum of net homebuilding debt and total stockholders’ equity).

Adjusted home closings gross margin is a non-GAAP financial measure based on GAAP home closings gross margin (which is inclusive of capitalized interest),
excluding inventory impairment charges and unique and unusual warranty charges.

Management uses these non-GAAP financial measures to evaluate our performance on a consolidated basis, as well as the performance of our segments, and
to set targets for performance-based compensation. We also use the ratio of net homebuilding debt to total capitalization ratio as an indicator of overall financial
leverage and to evaluate our performance against other companies in the homebuilding industry. In the future, we may include additional adjustments in the
above-described non-GAAP financial measures to the extent we deem them appropriate and useful to management and investors.

We believe that adjusted net income, adjusted earnings per common share, adjusted income before income taxes and related margin, as well as EBITDA and
adjusted EBITDA, are useful for investors in order to allow them to evaluate our operations without the effects of various items we do not believe are
characteristic of our ongoing operations or performance and also because such metrics assist both investors and management in analyzing and benchmarking
the performance and value of our business. Adjusted EBITDA also provides an indicator of general economic performance that is not affected by fluctuations in
interest rates or effective tax rates, levels of depreciation or amortization, or unusual items. Because we use the net homebuilding debt to total capitalization ratio
to evaluate our performance against other companies in the homebuilding industry, we believe this measure is also relevant and useful to investors for that
reason. We believe that adjusted home closings gross margin is useful to investors because it allows investors to evaluate the performance of our homebuilding
operations without the varying effects of items or transactions we do not believe are characteristic of our ongoing operations or performance.

These non-GAAP financial measures should be considered in addition to, rather than as a substitute for, the comparable U.S. GAAP financial measures of our
operating performance or liquidity. Although other companies in the homebuilding industry may report similar information, their definitions may differ. We urge
investors to understand the methods used by other companies to calculate similarly-titted non-GAAP financial measures before comparing their measures to
ours.

A reconciliation of adjusted net income, adjusted earnings per common share, adjusted income before income taxes and related margin, adjusted home closings
gross margin, EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA, and ratio of net homebuilding debt to total capitalization to the comparable GAAP measures follows. For purposes of
our presentation of our non-GAAP financial measures for the year ended December 31, 2024, such measures have been recast to include certain adjustments
being presented in the year ended December 31, 2025 that were previously deemed immaterial in the prior period.
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Adjusted Net Income and Adjusted Earnings Per Common Share

Year ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Net income $
Legal reserves or settlements

Real estate impairment charges

Pre-acquisition abandonment charges

Warranty adjustment charges

Loss on extinguishment of debt, net

Tax impact due to above non-GAAP reconciling items

Adjusted net income $

Basic weighted average number of shares

Adjusted earnings per common share - Basic $
Diluted weighted average number of shares

Adjusted earnings per common share - Diluted $

Adjusted Income Before Income Taxes and Related Margin

(Dollars in thousands)

Income before income taxes $
Legal reserves or settlements

Real estate impairment charges

Pre-acquisition abandonment charges

Warranty adjustment charges

Loss on extinguishment of debt, net

Adjusted income before income taxes

Total revenue

Income before income taxes margin
Adjusted income before income taxes margin

Adjusted Home Closings Gross Margin

(Dollars in thousands)

Home closings revenue, net $
Cost of home closings

Home closings gross margin $
Inventory impairment charges
Warranty adjustment charges

Adjusted home closings gross margin $

Home closings gross margin as a percentage of home closings revenue, net
Adjusted home closings gross margin as a percentage of home closings revenue, net
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2025 2024
782,500 883,309
— 23,682
28,821 29,637
14,791 9,453
5,596 3,656
13,324 —
(15,049) (15,488)
829,983 934,249
99,069 104,813
8.38 8.91
100,707 106,846
824 § 8.74
Year ended December 31,

2025 2024

1,042,043 1,156,118

— 23,682

28,821 29,637

14,791 9,453

5,596 3,656

13,324 —

1,104,575 1,222,546

8,121,480 8,168,136
12.8% 14.2%
13.6% 15.0%

Year Ended December 31,

2025 2024
7,755,434 7,755,219
6,008,007 5,863,743
1,747,427 1,891,476

28,821 5,036

5,596 3,656

1,781,844 1,900,168
22.5% 24.4%
23.0% 24.5%
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EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Reconciliation

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2025 2024
Net income before allocation to non-controlling interests $ 791,263 $ 886,570
Interest expense, net 47,003 13,316
Amortization of capitalized interest 104,100 114,199
Income tax provision 250,780 269,548
Depreciation and amortization 7,485 11,535
EBITDA $ 1,200,631 $ 1,295,168
Legal reserves or settlements — 23,682
Non-cash compensation expense 29,049 22,461
Real estate impairment charges 28,821 29,637
Pre-acquisition abandonment charges 14,791 9,453
Warranty adjustment charges 5,596 3,656
Loss on extinguishment of debt, net 13,324 —
Adjusted EBITDA $ 1,292,212 $ 1,384,057
Total revenue $ 8,121,480  § 8,168,136
Net income before allocation to non-controlling interests as a percentage of total revenue 9.7% 10.9%
EBITDA as a percentage of total revenue 14.8% 15.9%
Adjusted EBITDA as a percentage of total revenue 15.9% 16.9%

Debt to Capitalization Ratios Reconciliation

As of December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2025 2024

Total debt $ 2,291,107 $ 2,120,483
Plus: unamortized debt issuance cost, net 11,667 6,616
Less: mortgage warehouse facilities borrowings (82,605) (174,460)
Total homebuilding debt $ 2,220,169 $ 1,952,639
Total stockholders' equity 6,309,289 5,878,180
Total capitalization $ 8,529,458 $ 7,830,819
Total homebuilding debt to capitalization ratio 26.0% 24.9%
Total homebuilding debt $ 2,220,169 $ 1,952,639
Less: cash and cash equivalents (850,037) (487,151)
Net homebuilding debt $ 1,370,132 $ 1,465,488
Total stockholders' equity 6,309,289 5,878,180
Total capitalization $ 7,679,421 $ 7,343,668
Net homebuilding debt to capitalization ratio 17.8% 20.0%

Year Ended December 31, 2025 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2024

The following tables and related discussion set forth key operating and financial data for our operations as of and for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2025
and 2024. For similar operating and financial data and discussion of our fiscal 2024 results compared to our fiscal 2023 results, refer to ltem 7, “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
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and Results of Operations” under Part Il of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, which was filed with the SEC on
February 19, 2025, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Ending Active Selling Communities

Year Ended December 31, Change
2025 2024
East 138 124 11.3%
Central 91 99 (8.1%)
West 112 116 (3.4%)
Total 341 339 0.6%

Ending active selling communities were relatively consistent as of December 31, 2025 and 2024. The increase in the East segment was primarily attributable to
the timing of community openings, including master planned communities, which were partially offset by community close-outs. The decreases in the Central and
West segments were due to the close-out of several higher paced communities in certain markets. In addition, we strategically delayed certain community
openings from the fourth quarter of 2025 into the first quarter of 2026.

Net Sales Orders

Year Ended December 31,

Net Sales Orders (" Sales Value (" Average Selling Price
(Dollars in thousands) 2025 2024 Change 2025 2024 Change 2025 2024 Change
East 4,581 4,588 0.2%) $ 2,373,529 $ 2,537,245 (6.5%) $ 518 $ 553 (6.3%)
Central 2,799 3,250 (13.9%) 1,398,603 1,773,792 (21.2%) $ 500 $ 546 (8.4%)
West 3,694 4,410 (16.2%) 2,647,752 2,991,700 (11.5%) $ 717 $ 678 5.8%
Total 11,074 12,248 (9.6%) $ 6,419,884 § 7,302,737 (12.1%) $ 580 $ 596 (2.7%)

() Net sales orders and sales value represent the number and dollar value, respectively, of new sales contracts executed with customers, net of cancellations.

The number of net sales orders decreased by 9.6% for the year ended December 31, 2025, compared to the prior year, which we believe to be primarily due to
consumer apprehension as a result of macro economic factors such as mortgage interest rates and inflation which continue to remain elevated. To a lesser
extent, we also experienced an increase in cancellations as a result of these factors. Average selling price on net sales orders decreased 2.7% year-over-year
primarily due to an increase in discounts, partially offset by increases in option and lot premium revenues in certain markets.

Sales Order Cancellations

Cancellation Rate("
Year Ended December 31,

2025 2024
East 12.9% 9.3%
Central 12.0% 9.2%
West 14.5% 10.0%
Total Company 13.2% 9.5%

() Cancellation rate represents the number of canceled sales orders divided by gross sales orders.

The total company cancellation rate for the year ended December 31, 2025 increased to 13.2 % from 9.5 %, compared to the prior year. We believe the higher
cancellation rate was driven by market conditions, including the inability of homeowners to sell their current homes prior to closing on a new home, coupled with
consumer apprehension as a result of macroeconomic factors such as mortgage interest rates and inflation, which continue to remain elevated. In addition, we
have reduced required customer deposits as means of stimulating new sales orders which can further contribute to higher cancellation rates.
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Sales Order Backlog

As of December 31,

Sold Homes in Backlog " Sales Value Average Selling Price
(Dollars in thousands) 2025 2024 Change 2025 2024 Change 2025 2024 Change
East 1,146 1,737 (34.0%) $ 747416 $ 1,190,884 (37.2%) $ 652 $ 686 (5.0%)
Central 497 1,008 (54.7%) 286,717 668,574 (571%) $ 577 $ 609 (5.3%)
West 1,176 1,907 (38.3%) 822,466 1,332,690 (38.3%) $ 699 $ 699 —%
Total 2,819 4,742 (40.6%) $ 1,856,509 $ 3,192,148 418%) $ 659 $ 673 (2.1%)

(™ sales order backlog represents homes under contract for which revenue has not yet been recognized at the end of the period (including homes sold but not yet started). Some of the sales contracts in our
sales order backlog are subject to contingencies including mortgage loan approval and buyers selling their existing homes, which can result in future cancellations.

Total backlog units and total sales value decreased by 40.6% and 41.8%, respectively, at December 31, 2025 compared to December 31, 2024. Overall, we had
fewer net sales orders and more quick move-in homes which sold and closed during the year ended December 31, 2025 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2024, which contributed to the decrease in company-wide sales order backlog. All of our operating segments improved construction cycle times in
the year ended December 31, 2025 which further contributed to the decrease in sales order backlog.

Home Closings Revenue, Net

Year Ended December 31,

Homes Closed Home Closings Revenue, Net Average Selling Price
(Dollars in thousands) 2025 2024 Change 2025 2024 Change 2025 2024 Change
East 5,172 4,922 51% $ 2,816,997 $ 2,826,628 (0.3%) $ 545 $ 574 (5.1%)
Central 3,400 3,652 (4.3%) 1,780,460 1,969,381 (9.6%) $ 524 § 554 (5.4%)
West 4,425 4,422 0.1% 3,157,977 2,959,210 6.7% $ 714 $ 669 6.7%
Total 12,997 12,896 08% $ 7,755,434 $ 7,755,219 —% $ 597 $ 601 (0.7%)

The number of homes closed and home closings revenue, net remained relatively consistent for the year ended December 31, 2025, compared to the prior year.
For the year ended December 31, 2025, we improved construction cycle times and sold and closed more quick move-in homes compared to the prior year which
favorably impacted home closing units. However, we also experienced fewer net sales orders for the year ended December 31, 2025 as well as lower opening
backlog compared to the prior year which unfavorably impacted home closing units.

Land Closings Revenue

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2025 2024 Change

East $ 471§ 30,612 $ (30,141)
Central 23,941 24,514 (573)
West 12,532 26,291 (13,759)
Total $ 36,944 $ 81417 § (44,473)

We generally purchase land and lots with the intent to build and sell homes. However, in some locations where we act as a developer, we occasionally purchase
land that includes commercially zoned parcels or areas designated for school or government use, which we typically sell to commercial developers or
municipalities, as applicable. We also sell residential lots or land parcels to manage our land and lot supply on larger tracts of land or if we determine certain
properties no longer fit our strategic plans. Land and lot sales occur at various intervals and varying degrees of profitability. Therefore, the revenue and gross
margin from land closings will fluctuate from period to period, depending on market conditions and opportunities. Land closings revenue for the year ended
December 31, 2025 decreased primarily due to the change in the East region. In the prior year, we sold various lots in our Florida market for a total of

$27.9 million, but did not have similar sales in the current year.
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Amenity and Other Revenue
Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2025 2024 Change

East $ 21,439 $ 2229 $ (857)
Central — — —
West 1,850 1,316 534
Corporate 96,406 108,429 (12,023)
Total $ 119,695 $ 132,041 $ (12,346)

Several of our communities operate amenities such as golf courses, club houses, and fitness centers (generally in the East segment). We provide club members
access to the amenity facilities and other services in exchange for club dues and fees. Our Corporate region includes the activity relating to our Build-to-Rent
and Urban Form operations. Amenity and other revenue for the year ended December 31, 2025 in Corporate was primarily due to the sale of one Build-to-Rent
project and the sale of one Urban Form asset for $55.2 million and $22.8 million, respectively. Amenity and other revenue for the year ended December 31, 2024
in Corporate was primarily due to the sale of two Build-to-Rent projects for an aggregate of $88.4 million.

Segment Home Closings Gross Margins and Adjusted Gross Margins

The following table sets forth a reconciliation of adjusted home closings gross margin to GAAP home closings gross margin on a segment basis (see “Non-
GAAP Measures” above for additional information about our use of non-GAAP measures).

Year Ended December 31,

East Central West Consolidated
(Dollars in thousands) 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Home closings revenue, net  § 2,816,997 $ 2,826,628 1,780,460 $ 1,969,381 3,157,977 2,959,210 $ 7,755,434 $ 7,755,219
Cost of home closings 2,176,900 2,065,218 1,374,183 1,485,968 2,456,924 2,312,557 6,008,007 5,863,743
Home closings gross margin $ 640,097 $ 761,410 406,277 $ 483,413 701,053 646,653 $ 1,747,427 $ 1,891,476
Inventory impairment charges 25,851 2,325 — 2,711 2,970 — 28,821 5,036
Warranty adjustment charges 5,596 3,656 — — — — 5,596 3,656
Adjusted home closings
gross margin 671,544 $ 767,391 406,277 $ 486,124 704,023 646,653 $ 1,781,844 $ 1,900,168
Home closings gross margin
as a percentage of home
closings revenue 22.7% 26.9% 22.8% 24.5% 22.2% 21.9% 22.5% 24.4%
Adjusted home closings gross
margin as a percentage of
home closings revenue 23.8% 271% 22.8% 24.7% 22.3% 21.9% 23.0% 24.5%

Consolidated home closings gross margin decreased 190 basis points to 22.5% for the year ended December 31, 2025, compared to 24.4% in the prior year.
Adjusted home closings gross margin decreased 150 basis points to 23.0% for the year ended December 31, 2025, compared to 24.5% in the prior year. Home
closings gross margin decreased in the East and Central regions primarily as a result of closing product mix. The East region was also negatively impacted by
impairment and increased warranty charges. In addition, a decrease in average selling prices due to an increase in discounts, partially offset by increases in lot
premium and option revenue, further contributed to the changes in home closings gross margin for the East and Central regions. The increase in the West region
was primarily due to closing product mix. In addition, the West region was negatively impacted by an impairment charge during the year ended December 31,

2025.
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Financial Services

The following is a summary for the periods presented of financial services income before income taxes as well as supplemental data:

Year Ended
December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2025 2024 Change
Mortgage services revenue $ 161,814 $ 154,812 4.5%
Title services and other revenues 47,593 44,647 6.6%
Total financial services revenue 209,407 199,459 5.0%
Financial services net income from unconsolidated entities 12,540 8,915 40.7%
Total revenue 221,947 208,374 6.5%
Financial services expenses 104,618 108,592 (3.7%)
Financial services income before income taxes $ 117,329 $ 99,782 17.6%
Total originations:
Number of Loans 8,815 8,827 (0.1%)
Principal $ 4,091,254 $ 4,092,845 —%
Year Ended
December 31,
2025 2024

Supplemental data:

Average FICO score 751 752
Funded origination breakdown:

Government (FHA,VA,USDA) 24% 22%

Other agency 72% 75%

Total agency 96% 97%

Non-agency 4% 3%
Total 100% 100%

Total financial services revenue increased by 5.0% for the year ended December 31, 2025, compared to the prior year. The increase in total financial services
revenue was primarily a result of increased revenue earned on the sale of loans and increased title production.

Sales, Commissions and Other Marketing Costs
Sales, commissions and other marketing costs, as a percentage of home closings revenue, net, marginally increased to 6.0% from 5.9% for the year ended
December 31, 2025 compared to the prior year. The relatively consistent results are primarily driven by leverage in controllable sales and marketing costs.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses as a percentage of home closings revenue, net, decreased to 3.5% for the year ended December 31, 2025 compared to
4.0% for the prior year. The decrease was primarily due to a decrease in variable compensation-related expenses.

Net Income from Unconsolidated Entities

Net income from unconsolidated entities was $4.9 million and $6.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The decrease in net
income from unconsolidated entities was primarily due to our joint venture relating to our Build-to-Rent operations which is still in the lease ramp-up phase. This
decrease was partially offset by increases in income from our joint ventures related to our financial services segment.

Interest Expense, net

Interest expense, net was $47.0 million and $13.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The increase in interest expense, net
was primarily due to an increase in the amount of non-capitalizable interest expense relating to our land banking arrangements as well as a decrease in interest
income earned on our outstanding cash
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balances. The number of communities financed via land banking arrangements increased by 48% year-over-year, driving the increase in expense.

Other Expense, net

Other expense, net for the years ended December 31, 2025 and 2024 was $37.7 million and $50.6 million, respectively. The year ended December 31, 2025
primarily consisted of $19.6 million in insurance losses and $14.8 million in pre-acquisition abandonment charges for projects we are no longer pursuing. The
year ended December 31, 2024 included an aggregate of $23.7 million in legal charges, $21.3 million in insurance losses, and $9.5 million in pre-acquisition
abandonment charges. Refer to Note 13 - Commitments and Contingencies in the Notes to Consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report for
additional discussion regarding the legal charges for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Loss on Extinguishment of Debt, net

Loss on extinguishment of debt, net for the year ended December 31, 2025 was $13.3 million. We recognized $12.2 million of loss as a result of our redemption
of all of our 2027 5.875% Senior Notes (as defined herein) and the redemption of all of the 2027 6.625% Senior Notes (as defined herein). In addition, we
recognized $1.1 million of loss relating to our amended Revolving Credit Facility, due to the write-off of prepaid unamortized debt issuance costs. We had no
extinguishment of debt for the year ended December 31, 2024. Refer to “Liquidity and Capital Resources” and Note 7 - Debt in the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements included in this Annual Report for additional details regarding the purchase and redemptions.

Income Tax Provision

Our effective tax rate was 24.1% and 23.3% for the years ended December 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively. Our effective tax rate for both years
was affected by state income taxes, non-deductible executive compensation, and excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation. Additionally, the effective
tax rate in 2024 benefitted from certain energy tax credits related to homebuilding activities. We did not pursue energy credits in 2025 due to increasing costs to
qualify which outweighed the benefits of obtaining such credits.

Net Income

Net income before allocation to non-controlling interests and diluted earnings per common share for the year ended December 31, 2025 were $791.3 million and
$7.77, respectively. Net income before allocation to non-controlling interests and diluted earnings per common share for the year ended December 31, 2024
were $886.6 million and $8.27, respectively. The decreases in net income and diluted earnings per common share in the year ended December 31, 2025
compared to the prior year were primarily attributable to lower homebuilding gross margin, higher interest expense, and higher loss on extinguishment of debt,
partially offset by lower general and administrative expenses, other expenses, and lower weighted average shares outstanding.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity

We finance our operations through the following:

*  Cash generated from operations;

*  Borrowings under our Revolving Credit Facility;

*  Various series of senior notes;

* Mortgage warehouse facilities;

*  Project-level real estate financing (including non-recourse loans, land banking, and joint ventures); and

*  Performance, payment and completion surety bonds, and letters of credit.

Cash flows for each of our communities depend on the status of the development cycle and can differ substantially from reported earnings. Early stages of
development or expansion require significant cash expenditures for land acquisitions, on and off-site development, construction of homes, general landscaping

and other amenities. Because these costs are a component of our inventory and are not recognized in our Consolidated statements of operations until a home
closes, we incur significant cash outflows prior to recognition of earnings.
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During 2025, we (i) completed a cash tender offer (“Tender Offer”) to purchase approximately $479.2 million principal amount of the 5.875% Senior Notes due
2027 issued by TM Communities (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) (the "2027 5.875% Senior Notes") and redeemed the remaining $20.8 million
principal amount of the 2027 5.875% Senior Notes and (ii)fully redeemed all $1.63 million principal amount of the 6.625% Senior Notes due 2027 issued by
William Lyon Homes, Inc. (an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) (the "2027 6.625% WLH Notes") and $25.44 million principal amount of the
6.625% Senior Notes due 2027 issued by TM Communities (the "2027 6.625% TM Communities Notes," and together with the 2027 6.625% WLH Notes, the
"2027 6.625% Senior Notes"), in each case, using net proceeds, together with cash on hand, from the issuance of $525.0 million aggregate principal amount of
5.75% Senior Notes due 2032 issued by TM Communities (the “2032 Senior Notes”). We also amended and restated our existing Revolving Credit Facility,
resulting in a loss on extinguishment of debt due to the write-off of prepaid unamortized debt issuance costs. As a result of the redeemed senior notes and
amended and restated Revolving Credit Facility, we recorded a net loss on extinguishment of debt of $13.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2025. Refer
to Note 7 - Debt in the Notes to the Consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report for additional details regarding the Tender Offer and
redemptions.

The table below summarizes our total cash and liquidity as of the dates indicated (in thousands):

As of
(Dollars in thousands) December 31, 2025 December 31, 2024
Cash and cash equivalents $ 850,037 $ 487,151
Revolving Credit Facility availability 1,000,000 1,000,000
Letters of credit outstanding (72,109) (52,914)
Revolving Credit Facility availability 927,891 947,086
Total liquidity $ 1,777,928 $ 1,434,237

We believe we have adequate capital resources from cash generated from operations and sufficient access to external financing sources from borrowings under
our Revolving Credit Facility to conduct our operations for the next twelve months. Beyond the next twelve months, our primary demand for funds will be for
payments of our long-term debt as it becomes due, land purchases, lot development, home and amenity construction, long-term capital investments,
investments in our joint ventures, payments of ongoing operating expenses, and repurchases of common stock. We believe we will generate sufficient cash from
our operations to meet the demands for such funds, however we may also access the capital markets to obtain additional liquidity through debt and equity
offerings or refinance debt to secure capital for such long-term demands. As part of our operations, we may from time to time purchase our outstanding debt or
equity through open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions or otherwise. Purchases or retirements of debt and/or purchases of equity, if any, will
depend on prevailing market conditions, liquidity requirements, contractual restrictions, and other factors. The amounts involved may be material.

Material Cash Requirements

We have various contractual obligations with commitments to pay third parties, including but not limited to our debt facilities, land purchase and land banking
contracts, and leases. These obligations impact our liquidity and capital resource needs and are presented in the table below. Our short-term demands are cash
requirements for the next twelve months and long-term demands are cash requirements beyond twelve months.

Cash Requirements

(Dollars in thousands) Totals Short-Term Demands Long-Term Demands
Lease obligations (") $ 314,429 $ 16,508 $ 297,921
Lot options and land banking arrangements 3,361,534 897,827 2,463,707
Senior notes 1,475,000 - 1,475,000
Other debt outstanding 827,774 314,730 513,044
Estimated interest expense @ 207,414 65,742 141,672
Totals $ 6,186,151 $ 1,294,807 $ 4,891,344

(M Amount includes interest.
@ Estimated interest expense amounts for debt outstanding at the respective contractual interest rates, the weighted average of which was 5.1% as of December 31, 2025.

In addition to our contractual obligations, we also have forecasted operational cash outlays on items such as future land purchases or common stock
repurchases, to maintain our strategic growth and returns to our investors. Management expects to invest approximately $2.0 billion in land acquisition and
development during the next twelve months which is
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slightly lower than our spend during 2025. As of December 31, 2025 we had approximately $529.1 million remaining on our share repurchase authorization. On
February 11, 2026, the Board of Directors authorized a renewal of the stock repurchase program, permitting repurchases up to $1.0 billion. This program expires
on December 31, 2027 and replaces the prior authorization.

Cash Flow Activities

Operating Cash Flow Activities

Our net cash provided by operating activities was $817.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2025 compared to $210.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2024. The increase in net cash provided by operating activities was primarily attributable to a decrease in spend on real estate inventory and land
deposits. Spending also decreased in 2025 as a result of our increased vigilance in underwriting and approving new transactions and additional phases of
communities in the current market.

Investing Cash Flow Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $154.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2025 compared to $136.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2024. The increase in cash used in investing activities was primarily due to an increase in purchases of fixed-maturity and equity securities, partially offset by a
decrease in investments of capital into unconsolidated entities.

Financing Cash Flow Activities

Net cash used in financing activities was $298.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2025 compared to $393.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2024. The decrease in cash used in financing activities was primarily due to a net increase in loans payable and other borrowings as well as the proceeds from
the issuance of senior notes which were partially offset by repayments on senior notes. Refer to Note 7 - Debt in the Notes to the Consolidated financial
statements included in this Annual Report for additional details regarding the issuance of the 2032 Senior Notes and redemption of the 2027 6.625% Senior
Notes and 2027 5.875% Senior Notes.

Debt Instruments

For information regarding our debt instruments, including the terms governing our senior notes and our Revolving Credit Facility, see Note 7—Debt in the Notes
to the Consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report.

Financial Guarantees

The following table summarizes our letters of credit and surety bonds as of the dates indicated:

As of December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2025 2024
Letters of credit () $ 72,109 $ 52,914
Surety bonds 1,454,944 1,355,242
Total outstanding letters of credit and surety bonds $ 1,527,063 $ 1,408,156

U] As of December 31, 2025 and 2024, there was $200.0 million total capacity of letters of credit available under our Revolving Credit Facility.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements as of December 31, 2025
Investments in Land Development and Homebuilding Joint Ventures or Unconsolidated Entities

We participate in strategic land development and homebuilding joint ventures with related and unrelated third parties. Our participation with these entities, in
some instances, enables us to acquire land to which we could not otherwise obtain access, or could not obtain access on terms that are as favorable. Our
partners in these joint ventures historically have been land owners/developers, other homebuilders and financial or strategic partners. Joint ventures with land
owners/developers have given us access to sites owned or controlled by our partners. Joint ventures with other homebuilders have provided us with the ability to
bid jointly with our partners for large or expensive land parcels. Joint ventures with financial or strategic partners have allowed us to combine our homebuilding
expertise with access to our partners’ capital.

For the years ended December 31, 2025 and 2024, total cash contributed to unconsolidated joint ventures was $85.6 million and $129.8 million, respectively.
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The following is a summary of investments in unconsolidated joint ventures:

As of December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2025 2024
East $ 97,679 $ 86,378
Central 206,571 164,434
West 75,473 94,864
Financial Services / Corporate 107,255 94,045
Total $ 486,978 $ 439,721

Land Option Contracts and Land Banking Agreements

We are subject to the usual obligations associated with entering into contracts (including land option contracts and land banking arrangements) for the purchase,
development, and sale of real estate in our routine business. We have a number of land purchase option contracts and land banking agreements, generally
through cash deposits, for the right to purchase land or lots at a future point in time with predetermined terms. We do not have title to the property and the
property owners and their creditors generally have no recourse to the Company. Our exposure with respect to such contracts is generally limited to the forfeiture
of the related non-refundable cash deposits. The aggregate purchase price for assets under these contracts was $3.4 billion at December 31, 2025 and $1.9
billion at December 31, 2024.
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Interest Rate Risk

Our operations are interest rate sensitive. We monitor our exposure to changes in interest rates and incur both fixed rate and variable rate debt. At December 31,
2025, approximately 96% of our debt was fixed rate and 4% was variable rate. None of our market sensitive instruments were entered into for trading purposes.
For fixed rate debt, changes in interest rates generally affect the fair value of the debt instrument, but not our earnings or cash flows. Conversely, for variable
rate debt, changes in interest rates generally do not impact the fair value of the debt instrument but may affect our future earnings and cash flows, and may also
impact our variable rate borrowing costs, which principally relate to any borrowings under our Revolving Credit Facility and to borrowings by TMHF under its
various warehouse facilities. As of December 31, 2025, we had no outstanding borrowings under our Revolving Credit Facility. As of December 31, 2025, we had
approximately $927.9 million of additional availability for borrowings under such facility including $127.9 million of additional availability for letters of credit (giving
effect to $72.1 million of letters of credit outstanding as of such date).

The agreements governing our mortgage warehouse facilities as well as our Revolving Credit Facility use SOFR as the basis for determining interest rates.
Given the limited history of this rate and potential volatility as compared to other benchmark or market rates, the future performance of this rate cannot be
predicted based on historical performance.

We are required to offer to purchase all of our outstanding senior unsecured notes, as described in Note 7, Debt in the Notes to Consolidated financial
statements included in this Annual Report, at 101% of their aggregate principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest upon the occurrence of specified
change of control events. Other than in those circumstances, we do not have an obligation to prepay fixed rate debt prior to maturity and, as a result, we would
not expect interest rate risk and changes in fair value to have a significant impact on our cash flows related to our fixed rate debt until such time as we are
required to refinance, repurchase or repay such debt.

The following table sets forth principal payments by scheduled maturity and effective weighted average interest rates and estimated fair value of our debt
obligations as of December 31, 2025. The interest rate for our variable rate debt represents the interest rate on our mortgage warehouse facilities. Because the
mortgage warehouse facilities are secured by certain mortgage loans held for sale which are generally sold within 30 days of origination, its outstanding balance
is included as a variable rate maturity in the most current period presented.

Expected Maturity Date

(In millions, except percentage data) 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 Thereafter Total VFaell:jre
Fixed Rate Debt $ 2321 $ 103.5 $ 510.6 $ 145.1 $ 636.2 $ 592.7 $ 2,220.2 $ 2,246.2
Weighted average interest rate(") 42 % 42% 54% 42% 53% 54% 51%

Variable Rate Debt® $ 82.6 $ — 3 — 3 — 3 — 3 — 3 82.6 $ 82.6
Weighted average interest rate 53 — — — — — 53%

M Represents the coupon rate of interest on the full principal amount of the debt.
@ Based upon the amount of variable rate debt at December 31, 2025, and holding the variable rate debt balance constant, each 1% increase in interest rates would increase the interest incurred by us
by approximately $0.8 million per year.
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Separate combined financial statements of our unconsolidated joint venture investments have been omitted because, if considered in the aggregate, they would
not constitute a significant subsidiary as defined by Rule 3-09 of Regulation S-X.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the stockholders and the Board of Directors of Taylor Morrison Home Corporation

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Taylor Morrison Home Corporation and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31,
2025 and 2024, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows, for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2025, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the "financial statements"). In our opinion, the financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2025 and 2024, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2025, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company's internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2025, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 18, 2026, expressed an unqualified opinion on the
Company's internal control over financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's financial
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to
assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such
procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that was communicated or required to
be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our
especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial
statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the
accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Owned inventory valuation for active selling communities — Refer to Notes 2 and 4 to the
financial statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

Owned inventory consists of land, land under development, homes under construction, completed homes and model homes, all of which are stated at cost.
Management evaluates its owned inventory for indicators of impairment by community during each reporting period. If indicators of impairment are present for an
active selling community, management first performs an undiscounted cash flow analysis to determine if a fair value analysis is required to be performed. The
Company’s undiscounted cash flow analysis includes projections and estimates relating to sales prices, construction costs, sales pace, and other factors.
Changes in these expectations may lead to a change in the outcome of the Company’s impairment analysis, and actual results may also differ from
management’s assumptions.

Given the subjectivity in determining whether further impairment analysis is required for an active selling community, management exercises significant judgment

when reviewing the indicators of impairment and the undiscounted cash flow
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analyses, as applicable. Accordingly, auditing management’s judgments regarding the identification of impairment indicators and the key assumptions used in
the undiscounted cash flow analyses involved especially subjective auditor judgment.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

We tested the operating effectiveness of controls over management’s impairment indicator analysis, including controls over key inputs into the analysis such as
management’s forecast, and controls over management’s review of any undiscounted cash flows analyses for active selling communities identified with
impairment indicators.

We evaluated the reasonableness of management’s impairment indicator analysis by evaluating management's process for identifying impairment indicators,
including thresholds used for investigation, and whether management appropriately considered key relevant indicators. We also conducted an independent
analysis to determine whether additional factors were present during the period that may indicate that a fair value analysis is required to be performed.
Additionally, to evaluate management’s ability to develop estimates, we compared actual results for homes closed in the current year to prior projections for
these same homes before closing and investigated variances.

If applicable, we evaluated the reasonableness of the key projections and estimates used in management’s undiscounted cash flow analyses by comparing the
assumptions to recent home sales and closings. For any active selling communities without recent home sales and closings information available, we compared
management’s estimates to historical estimates for similar communities, taking into consideration factors such as location, size, and type of community. We also
inquired with management regarding trends and changing market conditions that were incorporated into management’s undiscounted cash flow projections in
addition to consulting third-party analyst reports and projections that could identify factors that could affect an active selling community’s recoverability.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Tempe, Arizona
February 18, 2026

We have served as the Company'’s auditor since 2011.

TAYLOR MORRISON HOME CORPORATION 10-K
53



Table of Contents

ITEM 8 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

TAYLOR MORRISON HOME CORPORATION

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Total cash
Real estate inventory:

Owned inventory

Consolidated real estate not owned

Total real estate inventory
Land deposits
Mortgage loans held for sale
Lease right of use assets
Prepaid expenses and other assets, net
Other receivables, net
Investments in unconsolidated entities
Deferred tax assets, net
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill
Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Lease liabilities
Income taxes payable
Customer deposits
Estimated development liabilities
Senior notes, net
Loans payable and other borrowings
Revolving credit facility borrowings
Mortgage warehouse borrowings

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share amounts)

Liabilities attributable to consolidated real estate not owned

Total liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 13)

Stockholders’ equity

Common stock, $0.00001 par value, 400,000,000 shares authorized, 162,809,286 and 162,061,709 shares issued, 96,536,827
and 102,241,978 shares outstanding as of December 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Treasury stock at cost, 66,272,459 and 59,819,731 shares as of December 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total stockholders’ equity attributable to TMHC

Non-controlling interests
Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated financial statements
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December 31,

2025 2024
$ 850,037 $ 487,151
1,194 15

851,231 487,166

6,046,468 6,162,889

94,195 71,195

6,140,663 6,234,084

360,690 299,668

132,512 207,936

60,800 68,057

566,670 370,642

241,678 217,703

486,978 439,721

74,363 76,248

259,015 232,709

663,197 663,197

$ 9,837,797 $ 9,297,131
$ 251,641 §$ 270,266
682,500 632,250

71,525 78,998

8,146 2243

125,029 239,151

4,365 4,365

1,463,333 1,470,454

745,169 475,569

82,605 174,460

94,195 71,195

$ 3,528,508 $ 3,418,951
1 1

3,114,898 3,086,342

(2,000,527) (1,616,170)

5,176,353 4,393,853

2,597 2,509

6,293,322 5,866,535

15,967 11,645

6,309,289 5,878,180

$ 9,837,797 $ 9,297,131




Table of Contents
ITEM 8

| FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

TAYLOR MORRISON HOME CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Home closings revenue, net
Land closings revenue
Financial services revenue
Amenity and other revenue
Total revenue
Cost of home closings
Cost of land closings
Financial services expenses
Amenity and other expenses
Total cost of revenue

Gross margin
Sales, commissions and other marketing costs
General and administrative expenses
Net income from unconsolidated entities
Interest expense/(income), net
Other expense, net
Loss on extinguishment of debt, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax provision
Net income before allocation to non-controlling interests
Net income attributable to non-controlling interests
Net income
Earnings per common share

Basic

Diluted
Weighted average number of shares of common stock:

Basic

Diluted

Years Ended
December 31,

2025 2024 2023

$ 7,755,434 7,755,219 7,158,857
36,944 81,417 60,971

209,407 199,459 160,312

119,695 132,041 37,691

8,121,480 8,168,136 7,417,831

6,008,007 5,863,743 5,451,401

30,898 73,609 55,218

104,618 108,592 93,990

107,749 137,980 34,149

6,251,272 6,183,024 5,634,758

1,870,208 1,984,212 1,783,073

461,485 456,092 418,134

273,506 314,406 280,573
(4,867) (6,347) (8,757)
47,003 13,316 (12,577)

37,714 50,627 87,567

13,324 = 295

1,042,043 1,156,118 1,017,838

250,780 269,548 248,097

791,263 886,570 769,741
(8,763) (3,261) (812)

$ 782,500 883,309 768,929
$ 7.90 8.43 7.09
$ 7.77 8.27 6.98
99,069 104,813 108,424
100,707 106,846 110,145

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated financial statements
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TAYLOR MORRISON HOME CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2025 2024 2023
Income before non-controlling interests, net of tax $ 791,263 $ 886,570 $ 769,741
Post-retirement benefits adjustments, net of tax 88 1,613 537
Comprehensive income 791,351 888,183 770,278
Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests (8,763) (3,261) (812)
Comprehensive income available to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation $ 782,588 $ 884,922 $ 769,466

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated financial statements
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(In thousands, except share data)
Balance — December 31, 2022
Net income
Other comprehensive income

Exercise of stock options and issuance
of restricted stock, net(")

Repurchase of common stock
Stock compensation expense
Balance — December 31, 2023
Net income

Other comprehensive income

Exercise of stock options and issuance
of restricted stock, net®

Repurchase of common stock®
Stock compensation expense

Distributions to non-controlling interests
of consolidated joint ventures

Changes in non-controlling interests of
consolidated joint ventures, net

Balance — December 31, 2024
Net income
Other comprehensive income

Exercise of stock options and issuance
of restricted stock, net)

Repurchase of common stock®)
Stock compensation expense

Distributions to non-controlling interests of

consolidated joint ventures

Changes in non-controlling interests of
consolidated joint ventures, net

Balance — December 31, 2025

ITEM 8

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

TAYLOR MORRISON HOME CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(In thousands, except share data)

Additional
Common Stock Paid-In Capital Treasury Stock Stockholders’ Equity
Accumulated
Other Non- Total
Retained Comprehensive Controlling Stockholders’
Shares Amount Amount Shares Amount Earnings Income/(loss) Interests Equity
107,995,262 § 1 8 3,025,489 51,396,923 $ (1,137,138) $ 2741615 §$ 359 § 16,533 § 4,646,859
— — — — — 768,929 — 812 769,741
— — — — — — 537 — 537
1,737,330 — 17,013 — — — — — 17,013
(2,814,956) — — 2,814,956 (127,959) — — — (127,959)
— — 26,095 — — — — — 26,095
106,917,636 $ 1 8 3,068,597 54,211,879 $ (1,265,097) $ 3,510,544 § 896 §$ 17,345 § 5,332,286
— — — — — 883,309 — 3,261 886,570
— — — — — — 1,613 — 1,613
932,194 — (4,716) — — — — — (4,716)
(5,607,852) — — 5,607,852 (351,073) = — — (351,073)
— — 22,461 — — — — — 22,461
— — — — — — — (8,756) (8,756)
— — — — — — — (205) (205)
102,241,978 § 1 8 3,086,342 59,819,731 $ (1,616,170) $ 4,393,853 § 2509 §$ 11645 §$ 5,878,180
— — — — — 782,500 — 8,763 791,263
— — — — — — 88 — 88
747,577 — (493) — — — — — (493)
(6,452,728) — — 6,452,728 (384,357) — — — (384,357)
— — 29,049 — — — — — 29,049
— — — — — — — (3,458) (3,458)
— — — — — — — (983) (983)
96,536,827 $ 1 8 3,114,898 66,272,459 $ (2,000,527) $ 5176,353 § 2597 §$ 15,967 $ 6,309,289

™ Dollar amount includes $26.4 million of stock options exercised offset with the value of shares withheld for taxes on the issuance of restricted stock units which equates to $9.4 million

@ Dollar amount includes $10.7 million of stock options exercised offset with the value of shares withheld for taxes on the issuance of restricted stock units which equates to $15.4 million
@) Dollar amount includes $200.0 million of Accelerated Share Repurchases and $3.5 million for the 1% excise tax on share repurchases
@ Dollar amount includes $10.5 million of stock options exercised offset with the value of shares withheld for taxes on the issuance of restricted stock units which equates to $11.0 million
©) Dollar amount includes $100.0 million of Accelerated Share Repurchases and $3.3 million for the 1% excise tax on share repurchases

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated financial statements
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TAYLOR MORRISON HOME CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2025 2024 2023
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income before allocation to non-controlling interests $ 791,263 $ 886,570 $ 769,741
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Net income from unconsolidated entities (4,867) (6,347) (8,757)
Stock compensation expense 29,049 22,461 26,095
Loss on extinguishment of debt, net 13,324 — 295
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated entities 12,789 12,929 9,230
Depreciation and amortization 40,182 41,190 33,406
Lease expense 17,641 20,361 24,808
Debt issuance costs amortization 2,732 2,890 3,315
Estimated development liability change in estimate — (23,051) (14,829)
Deferred income taxes 1,885 (8,423) (169)
Real estate impairment charges 28,821 29,637 11,791
Change in Build-to-Rent/Urban Form assets due to sale 67,247 79,976 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Real estate inventory and land deposits 26,578 (797,330) (78,575)
Mortgage loans held for sale, prepaid expenses and other assets, net (183,070) (182,084) 31,012
Customer deposits (114,122) (86,936) (86,005)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 81,990 215,993 84,811
Income taxes payable 5,903 2,243 —
Net cash provided by operating activities 817,345 210,079 806,169
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (40,372) (36,330) (33,426)
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated entities 30,401 29,698 824
Investments of capital into unconsolidated entities (85,578) (129,809) (64,589)
Purchase of fixed-maturity securities (55,738) — —
Proceeds from sale and maturities of fixed-maturity securities 1,385 — —
Purchase of equity securities (4,870) — —
Net cash used in investing activities (154,772) (136,441) (97,191)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Increase in loans payable and other borrowings 198,640 — 7,103
Repayments on loans payable and other borrowings (1,250) (52,093) (20,747)
Borrowings on revolving credit facilities 240,000 100,000 —
Repayments on revolving credit facilities (240,000) (100,000) —
Borrowings on mortgage warehouse facilities 3,466,875 3,652,098 3,007,682
Repayments on mortgage warehouse facilities (3,558,730) (3,631,102) (3,160,290)
Proceeds from issuance of senior notes 525,000 — —
Repayments on senior notes (527,070) — (350,000)
Payment of deferred financing costs (15,621) — —
Changes in stock option exercises and issuance of restricted stock, net (493) (4,716) 17,013
Payment of principal portion of finance lease (1,385) (1,404) (1,316)
Repurchase of common stock, net (381,016) (347,598) (127,959)
Cash and distributions to non-controlling interests of consolidated joint ventures, net (3,458) (8,756) —
Net cash used in financing activities (298,508) (393,571) (628,514)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash $ 364,065 $ (319,933) $ 80,464
Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash — Beginning of period 487,166 807,099 726,635
Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash — End of period $ 851,231 $ 487,166 $ 807,099

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Income tax payments $ (303,965) $ (264,425) $ (204,274)
Supplemental Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities:

Loans payable issued to sellers in connection with land purchase contracts $ 246,588 $ 341,020 $ 235,554
Change in consolidated real estate not owned $ 23,000 $ (423) $ 47,647
Non-cash portion of loss on debt extinguishment $ 1,860 $ — 3 —
Accrual of excise tax on share repurchases $ (3,341) $ (3,476) $ —

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated financial statements
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TAYLOR MORRISON HOME CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BUSINESS

Description of the Business — Taylor Morrison Home Corporation (“TMHC”), through its subsidiaries (together with TMHC referred to herein as “we,” “our,”
“the Company” and “us”), owns and operates a residential homebuilding business and is a land developer. We operate in the states of Arizona, California,
Colorado, Florida, Georgia, Indiana, Nevada, North and South Carolina, Oregon, Texas, and Washington. We provide a collection of homes across a wide range
of price points to appeal to a variety of consumer groups. We design, build and sell single and multi-family detached and attached homes in traditionally high
growth markets for entry-level, move-up, and resort lifestyle buyers. We are the general contractors for all real estate projects and engage subcontractors for
home construction and land development. Our homebuilding segments operate under the Taylor Morrison and Esplanade brand names. We also have a “Build-
to-Rent” homebuilding business which operates under the Yardly brand name. We also provide financial services to customers through our wholly owned
subsidiaries including mortgage services through Taylor Morrison Home Funding (“TMHF”), title and escrow services through Inspired Title, and homeowner’s
insurance policies through Taylor Morrison Insurance Services (“TMIS”). Our business is organized into multiple homebuilding operating components, and a
financial services component, all of which are managed as four reportable segments: East, Central, West, and Financial Services.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation and Consolidation — The accompanying audited Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States ("GAAP"), include the accounts of TMHC and its consolidated subsidiaries as well as certain consolidated
joint ventures. Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Joint Ventures - We consolidate certain joint ventures in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 810, Consolidation. The income from
the percentage of the joint venture not owned by us is presented as “Net income attributable to non-controlling interests” on the Consolidated statements of
operations. The assets, liabilities and equity from the percentage of the joint ventures not owned by us is presented as “Non-controlling interests” on the
Consolidated balance sheets and Consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity. The balance of Non-controlling interests on the Consolidated balance sheets
will fluctuate from period to period as a result of activities within the respective joint ventures which may include the allocation of income or losses and
distributions or contributions associated with the partners within the joint venture.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the audited Consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Significant estimates include real estate development costs to complete,
valuation of real estate, valuation of goodwill, valuation of estimated development liabilities, valuation of equity awards, valuation allowance on deferred tax
assets, and reserves for warranty and self-insured risks. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Concentration of Credit Risk — Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk are primarily cash and cash equivalents and
mortgage loans held for sale. Cash and cash equivalents include amounts on deposit with financial institutions in the U.S. that are in excess of the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation federally insured limits of up to $250,000. Of the different types of mortgage loans held for sale, there was no concentration of
mortgage loans with any one borrower for the year ended December 31, 2025. No material losses have been experienced to date.

In addition, the Company is exposed to credit risk to the extent that mortgage loan borrowers fail to meet their contractual obligations. This risk is mitigated by
collateralizing the home sold with a mortgage, and entering into forward commitments to sell our mortgage loans held for sale, generally within 30 days of
origination.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand and escrow deposits with financial institutions, and investments
with original maturities of 90 days or less. At December 31, 2025, the majority of our cash and cash equivalents were invested in highly liquid money market
funds or cash on deposit with major financial institutions.

Restricted Cash — For the year ended December 31, 2025 restricted cash consisted of cash held under broker margin accounts associated with derivative
instruments.

Real Estate Inventory — Inventory consists of raw land, land under development, homes under construction, completed homes, and model homes, all of which
are stated at cost. In addition to direct carrying costs, we also capitalize interest, real estate taxes, and related development costs that benefit an entire
community, such as field construction supervision and related direct overhead. Home vertical construction costs are accumulated and charged to Cost of home
closings at the time of home closings when revenue is recognized using the specific identification method. Land acquisition, development,
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interest, and real estate taxes are capitalized and allocated generally using the relative sales value method. Generally, all overhead costs relating to purchasing,
vertical construction, and construction utilities are considered overhead costs and allocated on a per unit basis. These costs are capitalized to inventory
beginning with the start of development through construction completion. Changes in estimated costs to be incurred in a community are generally allocated to
the remaining project on a prospective basis.

The life cycle of a community typically ranges from two to five years, commencing with the acquisition of unentitled or entitled land, continuing through the land
development phase and concluding with the sale, construction and delivery of homes. Actual community duration will vary based on the size of the community,
the sales absorption rate and whether we purchased the property as raw land or finished lots.

We capitalize qualifying interest costs to inventory during the development and construction periods. Capitalized interest is charged to Cost of home closings
when the related inventory is charged to Cost of home closings.

We assess the recoverability of our inventory in accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment ("Topic 360"). We review our
real estate inventory for indicators of impairment on a community-level basis during each reporting period. If indicators of impairment are present for a
community, an undiscounted cash flow analysis is generally prepared in order to determine if the carrying value of the assets in that community exceeds the
estimated undiscounted cash flows. Generally, if the carrying value of the assets exceeds their estimated undiscounted cash flows, the assets are potentially
impaired, requiring a fair value analysis. Our determination of fair value is primarily based on a discounted cash flow model which includes projections and
estimates relating to sales prices, construction costs, sales pace, and other factors. However, in certain circumstances, fair value can also be determined
through other methods, such as appraisals, contractual purchase offers, and other third-party opinions of value. Changes in these expectations may lead to a
change in the outcome of our impairment analysis, and actual results may also differ from our assumptions. For the year ended December 31, 2025 we recorded
$28.8 million of inventory impairments relating to our East and West segments. For the year ended December 31, 2024 we recorded $5.0 million of inventory
impairments relating to our East and Central segments. For the year ended December 31, 2023 we recorded $11.8 million of impairment charges relating to our
West segment. Impairment charges relating to real estate inventory are recorded to Cost of home closings on the Consolidated statements of operations. In
addition to real estate inventory, we also review our other real estate assets for impairment. For the year ended December 31, 2024 we recorded $12.5 million of
real estate asset impairment relating to one Urban Form asset in our Corporate segment. For the years ended December 31, 2025 and December 31, 2023
there were no asset impairment charges relating to our Urban Form operations. Impairment charges relating to Urban Form assets are recorded to Amenity and
other expenses on the Consolidated statement of operations.

In certain cases, we may elect to cease development and/or marketing of an existing community if we believe the economic performance of the community
would be maximized by deferring development for a period of time to allow for market conditions to improve. We refer to such communities as long-term strategic
assets. The decision may be based on financial and/or operational metrics as determined by us. For those communities that have been temporarily closed or
development has been discontinued, we do not allocate or capitalize interest or other costs to the community’s inventory until activity resumes and such costs
are expensed as incurred. In addition, if we cease development, we will evaluate the project for recoverability and discontinue future development and marketing
activity until such time when we believe that market conditions have improved and positive economic performance can be achieved. Our assessment of the
carrying value of our long-term strategic assets typically includes estimates of future performance, including the timing of when development will recommence,
the type of product to be offered, and the margin to be realized.

Assets Held for Sale - Real estate or inventory assets are considered held for sale once it is determined that all six criteria in accordance with Topic 360 have
been met. Real estate and inventory assets held for sale are reported at the lower of carrying value or estimated fair value, less estimated costs to sell. The
estimated fair value is generally based on appraisal, sales listing agreements, purchase and sales agreements, letters of intent, broker price opinions, recent
offers received, prices for assets in recent comparable sales transactions, other third-party estimates, or cash flow analyses, depending on the type of asset.
Impairment losses on real estate or inventory assets held for sale is recognized when the carrying value is greater than the fair value less estimated costs to sell.

In some locations where we act as a developer, we occasionally purchase land that includes commercially zoned parcels or areas designated for school or
government use, which we typically sell to commercial developers or municipalities, as applicable. We also sell residential lots or land parcels to manage our
land and lot supply on larger tracts of land. For the year ended December 31, 2024, we recorded $6.8 million of fair value adjustments for land held for sale in
our West reporting segment, which was subsequently sold during 2025. Adjustments for land held for sale are recorded within Cost of land closings on the
Consolidated statements of operations.

As of December 31, 2024, Amenity and other expenses on the Consolidated statements of operations included an adjustment to fair value for $5.3 million for
one Urban Form asset which was classified as held for sale, but was subsequently determined by management that the sale of the asset was no longer probable
within the one year requirement. As a result, we reclassified the Urban Form asset from held for sale to held and used during the fourth quarter of 2025. The
asset was remeasured at the lower of (1) its carrying amount adjusted for depreciation that would have been recognized had the asset been continuously
classified as held and used, and (2) its fair value at the reclassification date. The Urban Form Asset was reclassified with a net carrying value of $86.2 million.
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For the years ended December 31, 2025 and 2023 we had no material fair value adjustments for land held for sale.

Land banking arrangements — As a method of acquiring land in staged takedowns, while limiting risk and minimizing the use of funds from our available cash or
other financing sources, we transfer our right under certain specific performance agreements to entities owned by third parties (“land banking arrangements”).
These entities use equity contributions from their owners and/or incur debt to finance the acquisition and development of the land. We incur interest expense and
fees on these arrangements. We capitalize qualifying interest costs to inventory during the development and construction periods with the remainder expensed
and included in Interest expense/(income), net on the Consolidated statements of operations. These lots are considered controlled, however we are not legally
obligated to purchase lots under these agreements and would forfeit any existing deposits and could be subject to financial and other penalties if the lots are not
purchased. We do not have an ownership interest in these entities or title to their assets and do not guarantee their liabilities. As such, these entities are not
consolidated. These land banking arrangements help us manage the financial and market risk associated with land holdings which are not included in the
Consolidated balance sheets.

A summary of land banking agreements related to our home building operations is as follows:

As of December 31,

(Dollars in millions) 2025 2024
Lots under land banking agreements 8,498 6,895
Aggregate purchase price $1,687.8 $1,165.4
Exposure to loss $211.7 $154.8

During the year ended December 31, 2025, we entered into a new land banking arrangement related to our Build-to-Rent operations. This land banking
agreement is similar to our other land banking arrangements, however the land seller for our Build-to-Rent land banking agreement finances both construction
and land development.

A summary of land banking agreements related to our Build-to-Rent operations is as follows:

We did not have any land banking agreements for Build-to-Rent as of December 31, 2024.

As of December 31,

(Dollars in millions) 2025
Build-to-Rent lots under land banking agreements 4,325
Build-to-Rent aggregate purchase price $935.2
Build-to-Rent exposure to loss $43.6

Land Deposits — We make deposits related to land option contracts, land banking and land purchase contracts, which are recorded to Land deposits on the
consolidated balance sheets. Land deposits are recorded as real estate inventory in the accompanying Consolidated balance sheets at the time the deposit is
applied to the acquisition price of the land based on the terms of the underlying agreements. To the extent the deposits are non-refundable, they are charged to
Other expense, net, if the land acquisition process is terminated or no longer determined probable. For the years ended December 31, 2025 and 2024,

$7.3 million and $5.4 million of non-refundable deposits were charged to Other expense, net on the Consolidated statements of operations, respectively.

Mortgage Loans Held for Sale — Mortgage loans held for sale consist of mortgages due from buyers of Taylor Morrison homes that are financed through our
wholly-owned mortgage finance subsidiary, TMHF. Mortgage loans held for sale are carried at fair value, using observable market information, including pricing
from actual market transactions, investor commitment prices, or broker quotations. The fair value for Mortgage loans held for sale covered by investor
commitments is generally based on commitment prices. The fair value for Mortgage loans held for sale not committed to be purchased by an investor is
generally based on current delivery prices using best execution pricing.
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Leases — We recognize leases in accordance with ASC Topic 842, Leases. Our operating leases primarily consist of office space, construction trailers, model
home leasebacks, and equipment or storage units. Operating and finance leases are recorded in Lease right of use assets and Lease liabilities on the
Consolidated balance sheets.

A summary of our leases is shown below:

Operating Leases Finance Leases
As of December 31, As of December 31,

(Dollars in millions) 2025 2024 2023 2025 2024 2023
Weighted average discount rate 5.8% 5.8% 5.9% 7.3% 7.3% 7.3%
Weighted average remaining lease term (in years) 4.8 4.9 3.8 82.3 83.1 85.1
Payments on lease liabilities $18.1 $21.4 $28.1 $1.4 $1.4 $1.3
Lease expense $15.5 $18.3 $22.8 $2.1 $2.1 $2.0

The future minimum lease payments required under our leases as of December 31, 2025 are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Operating Finance Total
Lease Lease Lease
Years Ending December 31, Payments Payments Payments

2026 $ 15,123 $ 1,385 $ 16,508
2027 12,022 1,385 13,407
2028 7,686 1,385 9,071
2029 6,783 1,574 8,357
2030 3,716 1,560 5,276
Thereafter 7,545 254,265 " 261,810
Total lease payments $ 52,875 $ 261,554 $ 314,429
Less: Interest $ 6,767 $ 236,137 $ 242,904
Present value of future lease payments $ 46,108 $ 25,417 $ 71,525

™ Includes a 90-year land lease with 83 years remaining.
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets, net — Prepaid expenses and other assets, net consist of the following:

As of December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2025 2024
Prepaid expenses $ 67,724 $ 41,254
Other assets 205,231 86,422
Build-to-Rent assets 293,715 242,966
Total prepaid expenses and other assets, net $ 566,670 $ 370,642

Prepaid expenses consist primarily of sales commissions, prepaid rent, impact fees, and unamortized debt issuance costs for the Revolving Credit Facility.
Prepaid sales commissions are recorded on pre-closing sales activities, which are recognized on the ultimate closing of the homes to which they relate. Other
assets consist primarily of various operating and escrow deposits, land/lot pre-acquisition costs, rebate receivables, investments, income tax receivables, Urban
Form assets, and other deferred costs. Build-to-Rent assets consist primarily of land and development costs relating to projects under construction.

The investments recorded in Other assets as of December 31, 2025 consist of equity securities and fixed-maturity securities. Such investments are reported at
their estimated fair value with changes in fair value recognized as gains or losses within Other expense, net on the Consolidated statements of operations,
pursuant to the fair value option for financial instruments guidance, ASC Topic 825-10, Financial Instruments. As of December 31, 2025, the value of such
investments was $59.3 million and the net gain/loss on investment was immaterial to Consolidated statements of operations. We had no similar material
investments as of December 31, 2024.

Derivative Assets — We enter into interest rate lock commitments (“IRLCs”) when originating residential Mortgage loans held for sale, at specified interest rates
and within a specified period of time (generally between 30 and 60 days), with customers who have applied for a loan and meet certain credit and underwriting
criteria. We are exposed to interest rate risk as a result of these IRLCs and originated Mortgage loans held for sale until those loans are sold in the secondary
market.
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The price risk related to changes in the fair value of IRLCs and Mortgage loans held for sale not committed to be purchased by investors are subject to change
primarily due to changes in market interest rates. We manage the interest rate and price risk associated with our outstanding IRLCs and Mortgage loans held for
sale not committed to be purchased by investors by entering into hedging instruments such as forward loan sales commitments and mandatory delivery
commitments. We expect these instruments will experience changes in fair value inverse to changes in the fair value of the IRLCs and Mortgage loans held for
sale not committed to investors, thereby reducing earnings volatility. Best effort sale commitments are also executed for certain loans at the time the IRLC is
locked with the borrower. The fair value of the best effort IRLC and Mortgage loans held for sale are valued using the commitment price to the investor. We take
into account various factors and strategies in determining what portion of the IRLCs and Mortgage loans held for sale to economically hedge.

The IRLCs meet the definition of a derivative and are reflected on the Consolidated balance sheets at fair value in Prepaid expenses and other assets, net or
Accrued expenses and other liabilities based on whether the contracts are in a net gain (asset position) or net loss (liability position), with changes in fair value
recognized in Financial Services revenue on the Consolidated statements of operations, in accordance with ASC Topic 815-25, Derivatives and Hedging. We do
not meet the criteria for hedge accounting; therefore, we account for these instruments as free-standing derivatives, with changes in fair value recognized in
Financial services revenue/expenses on the Consolidated statements of operations in the period in which they occur. Unrealized gains and losses on the IRLCs,
reflected as derivative assets or liabilities, are measured based on the fair value of the underlying mortgage loan, quoted Agency MBS prices, estimates of the
fair value of the mortgage servicing rights and the probability that the mortgage loan will fund within the terms of the IRLC, net of commission expense and
broker fees. The fair value of the forward loan sales commitment and mandatory delivery commitments being used to hedge the IRLCs and Mortgage loans held
for sale not committed to be purchased by investors are based on quoted Agency MBS prices. Refer to Note 14—Mortgage Hedging Activities for additional
information.

Other Receivables, net — Other receivables primarily consist of amounts expected to be recovered from various community development, municipality, and
utility districts and utility deposits. Allowances are maintained for potential losses based on historical experience, present economic conditions, and other factors
considered relevant. Allowances are recorded in Other expense, net, when collectability becomes unlikely. Allowances at December 31, 2025 and 2024 were
immaterial.

Investments in Consolidated and Unconsolidated Entities

Consolidated Entities — In the ordinary course of business, we enter into land purchase contracts, lot option contracts and land banking arrangements in order
to procure land or lots for the construction of homes. Such contracts give us access to significant lot positions with a minimal initial capital investment and
substantially reduce the risk associated with land ownership and development. In accordance with ASC Topic 810, Consolidation, when we enter into
agreements to acquire land or lots and pay a non-refundable deposit, we evaluate if a Variable Interest Entity (“VIE”) is created and if we are deemed to have
provided subordinated financial support that will absorb some or all of an entity’s expected losses, or rights to residual returns, if they occur. If we are the primary
beneficiary of the VIE, we consolidate the VIE and reflect such assets and liabilities as Consolidated real estate not owned and Liabilities attributable to
consolidated real estate not owned, respectively, on the Consolidated balance sheets.

Unconsolidated Joint Ventures — We use the equity method of accounting for entities, generally joint ventures with other builders, where we do not have a
controlling interest over the operating and financial results of the investee. Our share of net earnings or losses is included in Net income from unconsolidated
entities on the Consolidated statements of operations when earned and distributions are credited against our Investments in unconsolidated entities on the
Consolidated balance sheets when received.

We evaluate our investments in unconsolidated entities for indicators of impairment semi-annually. A series of operating losses of an investee or other factors
may indicate that a decrease in value of our investment in the unconsolidated entity has occurred which is other-than-temporary. The amount of impairment
recognized, if any, is the excess of the investment’s carrying amount over its estimated fair value. Additionally, we consider various qualitative factors to
determine if a decrease in the value of the investment is other-than-temporary. These factors include age of the venture, stage in its life cycle, intent and ability
for us to recover our investment in the entity, financial condition and long-term prospects of the entity, short-term liquidity needs, trends in the general economic
environment, entitlement status of the land, overall projected returns on investment, defaults under contracts with third parties (including bank debt),
recoverability of the investment through future cash flows and relationships with the other partners. If we believe that the decline in the fair value of the
investment is temporary, then no impairment is recorded. There were no impairment charges related to investments in unconsolidated entities for the years
ended December 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023.

Income Taxes — We account for income taxes in accordance with ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes ("ASC 740"). Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded
based on future tax consequences of temporary differences between the amounts reported for financial reporting purposes and the amounts deductible for
income tax purposes, and are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply in the years in which the temporary differences are expected to be recovered
or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in earnings in the period when the changes are enacted.

We periodically assess our deferred tax assets, including the benefit from net operating losses, to determine if a valuation allowance is required. A valuation
allowance is established when, based upon available evidence, it is more likely than not that all or a portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.
Realization of the deferred tax assets is dependent upon,
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among other matters, taxable income in prior years available for carryback, estimates of future income, tax planning strategies, and reversal of existing
temporary differences.

Property and Equipment, net — Property and equipment are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is generally computed using the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings: 20 — 40 years

Building and leasehold improvements: 10 years or remaining life of building/lease term if less than 10 years
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment: 5 years

IT equipment: 3 years

Model and sales office improvements: lesser of 3 years or the expected life of the community

Maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation expense was $7.5 million, $11.5 million, and $9.0 million, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023. Depreciation
expense is recorded in General and administrative expenses in the Consolidated statement of operations.

Goodwill — The excess of the purchase price of a business acquisition over the net fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed is capitalized as
Goodwill in accordance with ASC Topic 350, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other ("ASC 350"). ASC 350 requires that goodwill and intangible assets that do not
have finite lives not be amortized, but rather assessed for impairment at least annually or more frequently if certain impairment indicators are present. We
perform our annual impairment test during the fourth fiscal quarter or whenever impairment indicators are present. For the years ended December 31, 2025,
2024 and 2023, there were no indicators of impairment.

Insurance Costs — We have certain deductible limits for each of our policies under our workers’ compensation, automobile, and general liability insurance
policies, and we record expense and liabilities for the estimated costs of potential claims for such policies. Excess liability exposure is aggregated annually and
applied in excess of automobile liability, employer’s liability under workers compensation and general liability policies.

Self-Insurance Reserves — We are the parent of Beneva Indemnity Company (“Beneva”), a wholly-owned captive insurance company, which provides
insurance coverage for construction defects discovered up to ten years following the close of a home, coverage for premise operations risk, and property
damage. We accrue for the expected costs associated with the deductibles and self-insured amounts under our various insurance policies based on historical
claims, estimates for claims incurred but not reported, and potential for recovery of costs from insurance and other sources. The estimates are subject to
significant variability due to factors such as claim settlement patterns, litigation trends, and the extended period of time in which a construction defect claim might
be made after the closing of a home. We also generally require our subcontractors and design professionals to indemnify us and provide evidence of insurance
for liabilities arising from their work, subject to certain limitations. Our loss reserves for self-insured claims are based on factors that include an actuarial study for
historical and anticipated claims, trends related to similar product types, number of home closings, and geographical areas. We regularly review the
reasonableness and adequacy of our reserves and make adjustments to the balance of the preexisting reserves to reflect changes in trends and historical data
as information becomes available. Self-insurance reserves are included in Accrued expenses and other liabilities on the Consolidated balance sheets.

Warranty Reserves — We offer a one year limited warranty to cover various defects in workmanship or materials, a two year limited warranty on certain
systems (such as electrical or cooling systems), and a ten year limited warranty on structural defects. We also provide third-party warranty coverage on homes
where required by Federal Housing Administration or Veterans Administration lenders. Warranty reserves are established as homes close in an amount
estimated to be adequate to cover expected costs of materials and outside labor during warranty periods. Our warranty is not considered a separate
performance obligation in the sales arrangement since it is not priced separately from the home, therefore, it is accounted for in accordance with ASC Topic 450,
Contingencies, which states that warranties that are not separately priced are generally accounted for by accruing the estimated costs to fulfill the warranty
obligation. As a result, we accrue the estimated costs to fulfill the warranty obligation at the time a home closes, as a component of Cost of home closings on the
Consolidated statements of operations.

Employee Benefit Plans — We maintain a defined contribution plan pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code (“401(k) Plan”). Each eligible
employee may elect to make before-tax contributions up to the current tax limits. At December 31, 2025, we match 100% of employees’ voluntary contributions
up to 4% of eligible compensation, and 50% for each dollar contributed between 4% and 5% of eligible compensation. We contributed $15.3 million, $14.4
million, and $13.2 million to the 401(k) Plan for the years ended December 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023, respectively.

Treasury Stock — We account for treasury stock, including the shares repurchased as part of our Accelerated Share Repurchase ("ASR") programs, in
accordance with ASC Topic 505-30, Equity—Treasury Stock. Repurchased shares are reflected as a reduction in Stockholders’ equity. Refer to Note 10 -
Stockholders' Equity for additional discussion regarding ASR programs.

Stock Based Compensation — We have stock options, performance-based restricted stock units ("PRSUs") and non-performance-based restricted stock units

("RSUs" or "Restricted stock"), which we account for in accordance with ASC Topic
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718-10, Compensation — Stock Compensation. The fair value for stock options is measured and estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model and recognized evenly over the vesting period of the options. PRSUs are measured using the closing price on the date of grant and expensed
using a probability of attainment calculation which determines the likelihood of achieving the performance targets. RSUs are time-based awards and measured
using the closing price on the date of grant and are expensed ratably over the vesting period.

Revenue Recognition — Revenue is recognized in accordance with ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“Topic 606”). The standard’s
core principle requires an entity to recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Home and land closings revenue

Under Topic 606, the following steps are applied to determine home closings revenue and land closings revenue recognition:

(1) identify the contract(s) with our customer; (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract; (3) determine the transaction price; (4) allocate the
transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and (5) recognize revenue when (or as) the performance obligation(s) are satisfied. Our home
sales transactions have one contract, with one performance obligation, with each customer to build and deliver the home purchased (or develop and deliver
land). Based on the application of the five steps, the following summarizes the timing and manner of home and land closings revenue:

. Revenue from home closings is recognized when the buyer has made the required minimum down payment, obtained necessary financing, the
risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer, and we have no continuing involvement with the property, which is generally upon the
close of escrow. Revenue is reported net of any discounts and incentives.

. Revenue from land closings is recognized when a significant down payment is received, title passes and collectability of the receivable, if any, is
probable, and control of the property transfers to the buyer, which is generally upon the close of escrow.

Amenity and other revenue

We own and operate certain amenities such as golf courses, club houses, and fithess centers, which require us to provide club members with access to the
facilities in exchange for the payment of club dues. We collect club dues and other fees from club members, which are invoiced and recorded as revenue on a
monthly basis. Revenue from our golf club operations is also included in Amenity and other revenue. Amenity and other revenue also includes revenue from the
sale of assets from our Urban Form operations and Build-to-Rent operations which is recorded as control transfers to the buyer at transaction close and other
criteria of ASC 606 are met. In addition, lease revenue is recognized by Urban Form for commercial and residential leases and Build-to-Rent operations for the
rental home leases.

During the year ended December 31, 2025, we sold one Urban Form asset in California and one Build-to-Rent asset in Phoenix, generating $22.8 million and
$55.2 million of revenue, respectively, which was recorded in Amenity and other revenue on the Consolidated statements of operations within our Corporate and
Unallocated operating and reporting segment. The sale of these assets resulted in $0.9 million and $9.9 million of gross margin for Urban Form and Build-to-
Rent, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2024, we sold two Build-to-Rent projects for an aggregate of $88.4 million in revenue and $6.1 million of
gross margin.

Financial services revenue

Mortgage operations and hedging activity related to financial services are not within the scope of Topic 606. Loan origination fees (including title fees, points, and
closing costs) are recognized at the time the related real estate transactions are completed, which is usually upon the close of escrow. Generally, loans TMHF
originates are sold to third-party investors within a short period of time, on a non-recourse basis. Gains and losses from the sale of mortgages are recognized in
accordance with ASC Topic 860-20, Sales of Financial Assets. TMHF does not have continuing involvement with the transferred assets; therefore, we
derecognize the mortgage loans at time of sale, based on the difference between the selling price and carrying value of the related loans upon sale, recording a
gain/loss on sale in the period of sale. Also included in Financial services revenue/expenses is the realized and unrealized gains and losses from hedging
instruments. See "Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets, net — Derivative Assets" above.

Advertising Costs — We expense advertising costs as incurred. For the years ended December 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023, advertising costs were $40.7
million, $33.8 million, and $28.7 million, respectively. Such costs are included in Sales, commissions and other marketing costs on the Consolidated statements
of operations.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements — In November 2024, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standard
Update ("ASU") 2024-03, Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses, which establishes new disclosure requirements for income statement expenses.
Under the new guidance, entities must provide greater disaggregation of expenses which includes disclosing the amounts of purchases of inventory, employee
compensation, and
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depreciation included in each relevant expense caption. Entities will also have to disclose a qualitative description of the amounts remaining in relevant expense
captions that are not separately disaggregated quantitatively, the total amount of selling expenses, and a definition of selling expenses. ASU 2024-03 can be
applied prospectively or retrospectively and is effective for the annual reporting period ending December 31, 2027. The adoption of ASU 2024-03 will not impact
our Consolidated financial statements but we are currently reviewing the impact that it may have on our footnote disclosures.

In September 2025, the FASB issued ASU 2025-06, Targeted Improvements to the Accounting for Internal-Use Software, which establishes new guidance
regarding timing of capitalizing software costs. Under the new guidance, entities are required to start capitalizing software costs when (1) management has
authorized and committed to funding the software project and (2) it is probable that the project will be completed and the software will be used to perform the
function intended. ASU 2025-06 can be applied prospectively or retrospectively and is effective for annual and reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2027, and interim reporting periods within those annual reporting periods. We are currently reviewing the impact the adoption of ASU 2025-06 will have on our
consolidated financial statements or disclosures, however we do not expect it to have a material impact.

In December 2025, the FASB issued ASU 2025-11, Interim Reporting (Topic 270): Narrow-Scope Improvements, which lists the disclosures required under ASC
270 and establishes a disclosure principal. The disclosure principal requires entities issuing condensed statements to disclose events occurring since the end of
the most recent fiscal year that have a material impact on the entity. ASU 2025-11 can be applied prospectively or retrospectively and is effective for interim
reporting periods within annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2027. We are currently reviewing the impact the adoption of ASU 2025-11 will
have on our consolidated financial statements or disclosures, however we do not expect it to have a material impact.

3. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per share gives effect to the potential dilution that could occur if all outstanding dilutive equity awards to issue shares of common stock were exercised
or settled.

The following is a summary of the components of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Year Ended December 31,

2025 2024 2023
Numerator:
Net income $ 782,500 $ 883,309 $ 768,929
Denominator:
Weighted average shares — basic 99,069 104,813 108,424
Restricted stock 767 986 925
Stock options 871 1,047 796
Weighted average shares — diluted 100,707 106,846 110,145
Earnings per common share — basic $ 790 $ 843 § 7.09
Earnings per common share — diluted $ 777§ 827 § 6.98

The above calculations of weighted average shares exclude 230,870, 120,255, and 303,033 outstanding anti-dilutive stock options and unvested PRSUs and
RSUs for the years ended December 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023, respectively.

In addition, 336,935 and 176,725 shares relating to our ASR (refer to Note 10 - Stockholders' Equity) were also anti-dilutive and excluded from the above for the
year ended December 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively. There were no ASR transactions in 2023.
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4. REAL ESTATE INVENTORY

Inventory consists of the following:

As of December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2025 2024

Real estate developed and under development $ 4,651,588 $ 4,455,623
Real estate held for development or held for sale () 8,975 26,301
Total land inventory 4,660,563 4,481,924
Operating communities @ 1,231,825 1,524,352
Capitalized interest 154,080 156,613
Total owned inventory 6,046,468 6,162,889
Consolidated real estate not owned 94,195 71,195
Total real estate inventory $ 6,140,663 $ 6,234,084

(1 Real estate held for development or held for sale includes properties which are not in active production.
@ Operating communities consist of all vertical construction costs relating to homes in progress and completed homes.

We have land option purchase contracts, land banking arrangements and other controlled lot agreements. We do not have title to the assets, and the sellers and
their creditors generally only have recourse against us in the form of retaining non-refundable deposits. We are also not legally obligated to purchase the lots
except where we have specific performance obligations.

A summary of owned and controlled lots is as follows:

As of December 31,

2025 2024

Owned lots:

Undeveloped 14,533 16,345

Under development 8,634 8,774

Finished 12,842 11,599
Total owned lots 36,009 36,718
Controlled lots:

Land option purchase contracts 8,632 9,529

Land banking arrangements 8,498 6,895

Other controlled lots" 25,696 33,011
Total controlled lots 42,826 49,435
Total owned and controlled lots 78,835 86,153
Homes in inventory 5,682 7,698

() Other controlled lots include single transaction take-downs and lots from our portion of unconsolidated JVs.

Lots which represent homes in progress and completed homes have been excluded from total owned lots. Controlled lots represent lots in which we have a
contractual right to acquire real estate, generally through an option contract, land banking arrangement, or a land deposit paid to a seller. Homes in inventory
include any lots which have commenced vertical construction.

Capitalized Interest — Interest capitalized, incurred and amortized is as follows:

Year ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2025 2024 2023

Interest capitalized - beginning of period $ 156,613 $ 174,449 $ 190,123
Interest capitalized 101,567 96,363 119,196
Interest amortized to cost of home closings (104,100) (114,199) (134,870)
Interest capitalized - end of period $ 154,080 $ 156,613 $ 174,449
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5. INVESTMENTS IN CONSOLIDATED AND UNCONSOLIDATED ENTITIES

Unconsolidated Entities — We have investments in a number of joint ventures with third parties. These entities are generally involved in real estate
development, homebuilding, Build-to-Rent, and/or mortgage lending activities. The primary activity of our real estate development joint ventures is the
development and sale of lots to joint venture partners and/or unrelated builders.

Summarized, unaudited condensed combined financial information of unconsolidated entities that are accounted for by the equity method are as follows (in
thousands):

As of December 31,

2025 2024

Assets:

Real estate inventory $ 1,597,008 $ 1,396,887

Other assets 226,356 226,198
Total assets $ 1,823,364 $ 1,623,085
Liabilities:

Debt $ 704,825 $ 576,753

Other liabilities 50,225 69,706
Total liabilities $ 755,050 $ 646,459
Owners’ equity:

TMHC $ 486,978 $ 439,721

Others 581,336 536,905
Total owners’ equity $ 1,068,314 $ 976,626
Total liabilities and owners’ equity $ 1,823,364 $ 1,623,085

Years ended December 31,
2025 2024 2023

Revenues $ 381,810 $ 305,057 $ 158,174
Costs and expenses (368,449) (288,473) (135,007)
Net income from unconsolidated entities $ 13,361 $ 16,584 $ 23,166
TMHC'’s share in net income of unconsolidated entities $ 4867 $ 6,347 $ 8,757
Distributions to TMHC from unconsolidated entities $ 43190 $ 42627 % 10,054

Consolidated Entities — We have several joint ventures for the purpose of real estate development and homebuilding activities, which are VIEs. As the
managing member, we oversee the daily operations and have the power to direct the activities of these joint ventures. For this specific subset of joint ventures,
based upon the allocation of income and loss per the applicable joint venture agreements and certain performance guarantees, we have potentially significant
exposure to the risks and rewards of these joint ventures. Therefore, we are the primary beneficiary of these joint venture VIEs, and the entities are consolidated.

Assets and liabilities of the consolidated joint ventures consist of the following (in thousands):

Years ended December 31,

2025 2024
Cash and cash equivalents $ 36,075 $ 18,112
Owned real estate inventory 75,050 79,100
Other assets 916 1,447
Total assets of consolidated joint ventures $ 112,041  $ 98,659
Liabilities of consolidated joint ventures" $ 51,762 $ 48,488

() Liabilities of consolidated joint ventures is primarily comprised of accounts payable and accrued expenses and other liabilities.
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6. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses and other liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):

As of December 31,

2025 2024
Real estate development costs to complete $ 77,094 $ 44,046
Compensation and employee benefits 125,878 174,509
Self-insurance and warranty reserves 227,641 214,105
Interest payable 39,701 32,288
Property and sales taxes payable 30,747 36,575
Other accruals 181,439 130,727
Total accrued expenses and other liabilities $ 682,500 $ 632,250

Self-Insurance and Warranty Reserves — We accrue for the expected costs associated with our limited construction warranty, deductibles and self-insured
exposure under our various insurance policies with Beneva. Due to the degree of judgment required in making these estimates and the inherent uncertainty in
potential outcomes, it is reasonably possible that actual costs could differ from those reserved and such differences could be material, resulting in a change in
future estimated reserves. A summary of the changes in reserves are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,
2025 2024 2023
Reserve - beginning of period $ 214105 $ 184,448 $ 161,675
Additions to reserves 79,129 82,376 83,226
Cost of claims incurred (105,564) (85,454) (80,646)
Changes in estimates to pre-existing reserves 39,971 32,735 20,193
Reserve - end of period $ 227641 $ 214,105 $ 184,448

The increase in the end of period reserves as of December 31, 2025 is a result of year-to-date net losses generated in Beneva. The reserve estimates utilize
third-party actuarial assumptions which are based on historical and recent claims data. Both the frequency of the claims and the cost to resolve the claims have
increased in recent years, causing increases in reserves.

7. DEBT

Total debt consists of the following (in thousands):

As of December 31,

2025 2024
Unamortized Unamortized
Debt Issuance Debt Issuance
(Costs)/ Carrying (Costs)/ Carrying
Principal Premium Value Principal Premium Value

5.875% Senior Notes due 2027 $ — 3 — — $ 500,000 $ (1,890) $ 498,110
6.625% Senior Notes due 2027 — — — 27,070 733 27,803
5.75% Senior Notes due 2028 450,000 (1,289) 448,711 450,000 (1,920) 448,080
5.125% Senior Notes due 2030 500,000 (2,906) 497,094 500,000 (3,539) 496,461
5.75% Senior Notes due 2032 525,000 (7,472) 517,528 — — —
Senior Notes subtotal $ 1,475,000 $ (11,667) $ 1,463,333 $ 1,477,070 $ (6,616) $ 1,470,454
Loans payable and other borrowings 745,169 — 745,169 475,569 — 475,569
Revolving Credit Facility® — — — — — —
Mortgage warehouse borrowings 82,605 — 82,605 174,460 — 174,460
Total debt $ 2,302,774 $ (11,667) $ 2,291,107 $ 2,127,099 $ (6,616) $ 2,120,483
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() Unamortized debt issuance premium is reflective of fair value adjustments as a result of purchase accounting.
@ Unamortized debt issuance costs are included in Prepaid expenses and other assets, net on the Consolidated balance sheets.

Senior Notes

All of our senior notes (the “Senior Notes”) described below and the related guarantees are senior unsecured obligations and are not subject to registration
rights. The indentures governing our senior notes contain covenants that limit our ability to incur debt secured by liens and enter into certain sale and leaseback
transactions and contain customary events of default. None of the indentures for the senior notes have financial maintenance covenants. As of December 31,
2025, we were in compliance with all of the covenants under the Senior Notes.

Issuance of 5.75% Senior Notes due 2032 and Tender Offer for and Redemption of the 5.875% Senior Notes due 2027 and Redemption of
6.625% Senior Notes due 2027

In the fourth quarter of 2025, we (i) completed a cash tender offer (“Tender Offer”) to purchase approximately $479.2 million principal amount of the 5.875%
Senior Notes due 2027 issued by Taylor Morrison Communities, Inc. (“TM Communities”) (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) (the "2027 5.875% Senior
Notes") and redeemed the remaining $20.8 million principal amount of the 2027 5.875% Senior Notes and (ii) fully redeemed all $1.63 million principal amount of
the 6.625% Senior Notes due 2027 issued by William Lyon Homes, Inc. (an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) (the "2027 6.625% WLH Notes")
and $25.44 million principal amount of the 6.625% Senior Notes due 2027 issued by TM Communities (the "2027 6.625% TM Communities Notes," and together
with the 2027 6.625% WLH Notes, the "2027 6.625% Senior Notes"), , in each case, using net proceeds, together with cash on hand, from the issuance of
$525.0 million aggregate principal amount of 5.75% Senior Notes due 2032 issued by TM Communities (the “2032 Senior Notes”).

For the 2027 6.625% Senior Notes, the redemption price was equal to 100.0% of the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding the
redemption date, November 10, 2025.

For the 2027 5.875% Senior Notes, (i) the purchase price in the Tender Offer was equal to approximately $1,023.07 per $1,000 principal amount of 2027 5.875%
Senior Notes purchased in such Tender Offer, plus accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding the settlement date, November 10, 2025 and (ii) the redemption
price was equal to a “make-whole” price of approximately $1,021.98 per $1,000 principal amount of 2027 5.875% Senior Notes redeemed, plus accrued and
unpaid interest to, but excluding the redemption date, December 2, 2025. As a result of the early redemption of these notes, we recorded a total net loss on
extinguishment of debt of approximately $12.2 million in Loss on extinguishment of debt, net in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended
December 31, 2025.

The 2032 Senior Notes mature on November 15, 2032. The Senior Notes are guaranteed by the same Guarantors that guarantee our other Senior Notes. The
change of control provisions in the indenture governing the 2032 Senior Notes are similar to those contained in the indentures governing our other Senior Notes.

Prior to May 15, 2032, the 2032 Senior Notes are redeemable at a price equal to 100.0% plus a "make-whole" premium for payments through May 15, 2032
(plus accrued interest and unpaid interest). Beginning on May 15, 2032, the 2032 Senior Notes are redeemable at par (plus accrued and unpaid interest).

5.75% Senior Notes due 2028

On August 1, 2019, TM Communities issued $450.0 million aggregate principal amount of 5.75% Senior Notes due 2028 (the “2028 Senior Notes”), which
mature on January 15, 2028. The 2028 Senior Notes are guaranteed by the same Guarantors that guarantee our other Senior Notes. The change of control
provisions in the indenture governing the 2028 Senior Notes are similar to those contained in the indentures governing our other Senior Notes.

Prior to October 15, 2027, the 2028 Senior Notes are redeemable at a price equal to 100% plus a “make-whole” premium for payments through October 15,
2027 (plus accrued and unpaid interest). Beginning on October 15, 2027, the 2028 Senior Notes are redeemable at par (plus accrued and unpaid interest).

5.125% Senior Notes due 2030

On July 22, 2020, TM Communities issued $500.0 million aggregate principal amount of 5.125% Senior Notes due 2030 (the “2030 Senior Notes"), which mature
on August 1, 2030. The 2030 Senior Notes are guaranteed by the same Guarantors that guarantee our other Senior Notes. The change of control provisions in
the indenture governing the 2030 Senior Notes are similar to those contained in the indentures governing our other Senior Notes.

Prior to February 1, 2030, the 2030 Senior Notes are redeemable at a price equal to 100.0% plus a “make-whole” premium for payments through February 1,

2030 (plus accrued and unpaid interest). Beginning on February 1, 2030, the 2030 Senior Notes are redeemable at par (plus accrued and unpaid interest).
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Revolving Credit Facility

On December 22, 2025 we amended and restated our Revolving Credit Facility, resulting in a loss on extinguishment of debt due to the write-off of prepaid
unamortized debt issuance costs. A total of $1.1 million of such costs was recorded to Loss on extinguishment of debt, net on the Consolidated statement of
operations, for the year ended December 31, 2025. As of December 31, 2024, we had $2.0 million of unamortized debt issuance costs, which are included in
Prepaid expenses and other assets, net, on the Consolidated balance sheets.

The amended and restated facility is a Revolving Credit Facility with commitments of and up to $1 Billion and with a maturity date of December 22, 2030 (the
"Revolving Credit Facility"). We capitalized $5.2 million of debt issuance costs related to the amended facility, which are included in Prepaid expenses and other
assets, net, on the Consolidated balance sheets.

As of December 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024, we had $72.1 million and $52.9 million, respectively, of utilized letters of credit, resulting in $927.9 million and
$947.1 million, respectively, of availability. We had no outstanding borrowings as of December 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024.

The Revolving Credit Facility contains certain “springing” financial covenants, requiring us and our subsidiaries to comply with a maximum debt to capitalization
ratio of not more than 0.60 to 1.00 and a minimum consolidated tangible net worth level, currently of at least (i) approximately $4.1 billion plus, (ii) 50% of
cumulative consolidated net income for each complete fiscal quarter commencing after September 30, 2025, plus (ii) 50% of the cash proceeds of any equity
issuance received by Taylor Morrison Home 1l since September 30, 2025 (subject to certain exceptions and rules set forth in the Revolving Credit Facility. The
financial covenants would be in effect for any fiscal quarter during which (a) any loans under the Revolving Credit Facility are outstanding during the last day of
such fiscal quarter or on more than five separate days during such fiscal quarter or (b) (i) undrawn letters of credit (except to the extent cash collateralized)
issued under the Revolving Credit Facility in an aggregate amount greater than $40.0 million or (ii) unreimbursed letters of credit issued under the Revolving
Credit Facility are outstanding on the last day of such fiscal quarter or for more than five consecutive days during such fiscal quarter.

The Revolving Credit Facility contains certain other covenants including, without limitation, limitations on incurrence of liens, the payment of dividends and other
distributions, asset dispositions and investments in entities that are not guarantors, limitations on prepayment of subordinated indebtedness and limitations on
fundamental changes. The Revolving Credit Facility contains customary events of default, subject to applicable grace periods, including, without limitation, for
nonpayment of principal, interest or other amounts, violation of covenants (including financial covenants) breach of representations and warranties in any
material respect, cross default and cross acceleration, bankruptcy, material monetary judgments, ERISA events with material adverse effect, invalidity of material
guarantees and change of control.

As of December 31, 2025, we were in compliance with all of the covenants under the Revolving Credit Facility.

Mortgage Warehouse Borrowings

The following is a summary of our TMHF mortgage warehouse borrowings:

As of December 31, 2025

Amount Facility Interest Expiration
Facility Drawn Amount Rate( Date Collateral”
Warehouse B $ — 3 60,000 Term SOFR + 1.70% on demand Mortgage loans
Warehouse C 44,596 125,000 Term SOFR + 1.50% on demand Mortgage loans
Warehouse D 14,552 125,000 Daily SOFR + 1.50% September 2, 2026 Mortgage loans
Warehouse E 23,457 100,000 Term SOFR + 1.60% on demand Mortgage loans
Total $ 82,605 $ 410,000
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As of December 31, 2024

Amount Facility Interest Expiration

Facility Drawn Amount Rate(" Date Collateral™
Warehouse A® $ — 3 — Term SOFR + 1.70% on demand Mortgage loans
Warehouse B®? 2,123 60,000 Term SOFR + 1.70% on demand Mortgage loans
Warehouse C 69,008 125,000 Term SOFR + 1.50% on demand Mortgage loans
Warehouse D 60,176 125,000 Daily SOFR + 1.50% September 3. 2025®) Mortgage loans
Warehouse E 43,153 100,000 Term SOFR + 1.60% on demand Mortgage loans
Total $ 174,460 $ 410,000

() The mortgage warehouse borrowings outstanding as of December 31, 2025 and 2024, were collateralized by $132.5 million and $207.9 million, respectively, of Mortgage loans held for sale. "SOFR" refers
to the Secured Overnight Financing Rate.

@ During December 2024, Warehouse A's bank was purchased by Warehouse B's bank and created a new facility referred to as Warehouse B. As a result, there was no availability under Warehouse A as of
December 31, 2024. Warehouse B has been relabeled and was labeled as Warehouse F in our 2024 Annual Report.

© On August 29, 2025, we extended the term of Warehouse D to September 2, 2026

Loans Payable and Other Borrowings

Loans payable and other borrowings as of December 31, 2025 and 2024 consist of project-level debt to various land sellers and financial institutions for specific
communities. Project-level debt is generally secured by the land that was acquired and the principal payments generally coincide with corresponding project lot
closings or a principal reduction schedule. These borrowings bear interest at rates that ranged from 0% to 11% at each of December 31, 2025 and

December 31, 2024, respectively. We impute interest for loans with no stated interest rates.

Future Minimum Principal Payments on Total Debt

Principal maturities of total debt for the year ended December 31, 2025 are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended
(Dollars in thousands) December 31,
2026 $ 314,730
2027 103,467
2028 510,631
2029 145,085
2030 636,176
Thereafter 592,685
Total debt $ 2,302,774

8. FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES

ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, provides a framework for measuring fair value under GAAP, expands disclosures about fair value measurements, and
establishes a fair value hierarchy, which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when
measuring fair value. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are summarized as follows:

Level 1 — Fair value is based on quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 2 — Fair value is determined using quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities
in markets that are not active or are directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Fair value is determined using one or more significant inputs that are unobservable in active markets at the measurement date, such as a pricing
model, discounted cash flow, or similar technique.

The fair value of our Mortgage loans held for sale is derived from negotiated rates with partner lending institutions. The fair value of derivative assets and
liabilities includes IRLCs and mortgage backed securities (“MBS”). The fair value of IRLCs is based on the value of the underlying mortgage loans, quoted MBS
prices and the probability that the mortgage loan will fund within the terms of the IRLCs. We estimate the fair value of the forward sales commitments based on
quoted MBS prices. The fair value of our Mortgage warehouse borrowings and Loans payable and other borrowings approximate carrying value due to their
short term nature and variable interest rate terms. The fair value of our Senior Notes is derived from quoted market prices by independent dealers in markets
that are not active.
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During the year ended December 31, 2025, we invested in fixed income funds and equity securities. Fixed income funds consist of investments in diversified
portfolios of corporate bonds, U.S. Treasury securities, and other debt instruments. These investments are valued based on the underlying securities’ observable
market inputs, including benchmark yields, reported trades of identical or similar securities, issuer spreads, and broker-quoted prices. Equity securities primarily
include investments in publicly traded companies. The fair values of these securities are based on quoted prices in active markets.

There were no changes to or transfers between the levels of the fair value hierarchy for any of our financial instruments as of December 31, 2025, when
compared to December 31, 2024.

The carrying value and fair value of our financial instruments are as follows:

As of December 31, 2025 As Of December 31, 2024

Level in Fair Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
(Dollars in thousands) Value Hierarchy Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
Description:
Mortgage loans held for sale 2 $ 132,512  $ 132,512  $ 207,936 $ 207,936
IRLCs 3 (12,715) (12,715) (5,917) (5,917)
MBSs 2 (1,858) (1,858) 4,174 4,174
Mortgage warehouse borrowings 2 82,605 82,605 174,460 174,460
Loans payable and other borrowings 2 745,169 745,169 475,569 475,569
5.875% Senior Notes due 2027 (1) 2 — — 498,110 501,770
6.625% Senior Notes due 2027 (" 2 — — 27,803 26,804
5.75% Senior Notes due 2028 (") 2 448,711 457,956 448,080 446,679
5.125% Senior Notes due 2030 (" 2 497,094 503,070 496,461 478,455
5.75% Senior Notes due 2032 () 2 517,528 539,963 — —
U.S. Treasury securities 1 27,174 27,174 — —
Corporate bonds 2 27,159 27,159 — —
Equity securities 1 4,932 4,932 201 201

() Carrying value for Senior Notes, as presented, includes unamortized debt issuance costs or bond premium. Debt issuance costs are not factored into the fair value calculation for the Senior Notes.

Fair value measurements are used for real estate inventory on a nonrecurring basis when events and circumstances indicate that the carrying value of a
property is not recoverable. These values are a level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of such inventories are as follows for the periods presented:

(Dollars in thousands)
As of

March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2025 $ 75122 $ 31615 $ 19,473 y
2024 o $ 7,024 o $ 10,560

() No fair value adjustment recorded in period.
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The provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2025, 2024 and 2023 consisted of the following:

(Dollars in thousands)
Current:
Federal
State
Current tax provision
Deferred:
Federal
State
Deferred tax provision

Total income tax provision

Year Ended December 31,

2025 2024 2023
$ 195,994 $ 231,758 $ 196,464
46,504 46,902 51,009
$ 242,498 $ 278,660 $ 247,473
$ 7464 $ (8,951) $ (1,003)
818 (161) 1,627
$ 8,282 $ 9,112) $ 624
$ 250,780 $ 269,548 $ 248,097

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxes and the amount computed by applying the federal statutory income tax rate of 21% to income before provision

for income taxes is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2025 2024 2023
Tax at federal statutory rate $ 218,829 21.0% $ 242,785 21.0% $ 213,746 21.0%
State income taxes (net of federal benefit)(") 37,556 3.6 36,891 3.2 41,924 4.1
Tax credits — — (7,701) (0.7) (3,976) (0.4)
Changes in valuation allowances — — — — (36,054) (3.5)
Nontaxable or nondeductible items (2,610) (0.3) (555) 0.0 1,991 0.2
Changes in unrecognized tax benefits 1,714 0.2 — — — —
Other
Capital loss carryforward — — — — 36,054 3.5
Other adjustments (4,709) (0.4) (1,872) (0.2) (5,588) (0.5)
Effective Rate® $ 250,780 241% $ 269,548 233% $ 248,097 24.4%

(1) State taxes in California and Florida contributed to the majority of the tax effect in this category.

(2) The adoption of ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes has been reflected in our rate reconciliation above including revisions to the presentation of the prior year rate reconciliations for comparative purposes.

Our effective tax rate was 24.1% and 23.3% for the years ended December 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively. Our effective tax rate for both years
was affected by state income taxes, non-deductible executive compensation, and excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation. Additionally, the effective
tax rate in 2024 benefitted from certain energy tax credits related to homebuilding activities. We did not pursue the credits in 2025 due to increasing costs to

qualify for the credits which outweighed the benefits of obtaining such credits.

We have certain tax attributes available to offset the impact of future income taxes. The components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31,

2025 and 2024 consisted of timing differences related to real estate inventory
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impairments, expense accruals and reserves, net operating loss carryforwards, and intangibles. A summary of these components for the years ending
December 31, 2025 and 2024 is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2025 2024
Deferred tax assets:
Real estate inventory $ 25321 $ 26,483
Accruals and reserves 66,687 73,418
Net operating losses () 43,242 48,996
Other @ 25,962 20,666
Total deferred tax assets $ 161,212 § 169,563
Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangibles @ $ (26,516) $ (21,526)
Other @ (12,246) (10,875)
Deferred income (43,503) (55,186)
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities $ (82,265) $ (87,587)
Valuation allowance (4,584) (5,728)
Total net deferred tax assets $ 74,363 $ 76,248

(™ A portion of our net operating losses is limited by Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code, stemming from three business acquisitions: 1) the 2011 acquisition of the Company by our former principal
equity holders, 2) the 2018 acquisition of AV Homes and 3) the 2022 acquisition of William Lyon Homes. All three acquisitions were deemed to be a change in control as defined by Section 382.

@ The 2024 deferred tax assets and liabilities have been recast to reflect changes in classifications of certain assets and liabilities for greater clarity in comparison to the classifications reported in 2025. Prior

year amounts reported in Real estate inventory and Other deferred tax liabilities have been further broken out into the Intangibles, Other deferred tax assets, and Other deferred tax liabilities categories
above.

For the year ended December 31, 2025, we recorded a net valuation allowance of $4.6 million related to certain state deferred taxes which are not expected to
be realized. We have approximately $29.7 million of available tax effected federal net operating loss ("NOL") carryforwards and $13.5 million of available tax
effected state NOL carryforwards. Federal NOL carryforwards generated prior to January 1, 2018 may be used to offset future taxable income for a period of 20
years or indefinitely and begin to expire in 2029. State NOL carryforwards may be used to offset future taxable income for a period of 10 to 20 years or
indefinitely and certain NOLs expire between 2026-2036. On an ongoing basis, we will continue to review all available evidence to determine if we expect to
realize our deferred tax assets and federal and state NOL carryovers or if a valuation allowance is necessary.

We account for uncertain tax positions in accordance with ASC 740. ASC 740 requires a company to recognize the financial statement effect of a tax position
when it is more likely than not based on the technical merits of the position that the position will be sustained upon examination. A tax position that meets the
more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is measured to determine the amount of benefit to be recognized in the financial statements based upon the largest
amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement with a taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant
information. Interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions are recognized as a component of the income tax provision.

As of December 31, 2025, we had $6.4 million of unrecognized tax benefits related to current and prior tax positions taken on certain deferred temporary
differences. If recognized, no amount would impact our effective tax rate. We recognized interest and penalties of $1.7 million as a component of the income tax
provision as of December 31, 2025. There were no unrecognized tax benefits, penalties or interest accrued as of December 31, 2024.

A reconciliation of the change in the unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2025 2024

Unrecognized tax benefits - January 1, $ — —
Increases related to positions taken during a current period 1,446 —
Decreases related to positions taken during a current period — —
Increases related to positions taken during a prior period 4,986 —

Decreases related to positions taken during a prior period
Decreases related to settlements with taxing authorities
Reductions related to lapse of the applicable statute of limitations —

Unrecognized tax benefits - December 31, $ 6,432 $
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The statute of limitations for our major taxing jurisdictions remains open for examination for tax years through 2025. We are currently under exam by the IRS for
certain federal income tax returns for tax years 2015 through 2018 and 2021. The outcome of these examinations is not yet determinable, but we believe our tax
positions meet the more-likely-than-not threshold.

A reconciliation of taxes paid during 2025, net of refunds received, is as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2025 2024 2023
Federal $ 252,500 $ 212,227 $ 157,229
State
California * 14,908 16,604
Florida 21,491 14,877 11,350
Other 29,974 22,413 19,091
Subtotal state taxes paid 51,465 52,198 47,045
Total taxes paid $ 303,965 $ 264,425 $ 204,274

*The amount of income taxes paid during the year does not meet the 5% disaggregation threshold

10. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Capital Stock

The Company’s authorized capital stock consists of 400,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.00001 per share (the “common stock”), and 50,000,000
shares of preferred stock, par value $0.00001 per share.

Stock Repurchase Program
On October 23, 2024, our Board of Directors authorized a renewal of the Company’s stock repurchase program which permitted the repurchase of up to

$1 billion of the Company’s Common Stock through December 31, 2026. On February 11, 2026, our Board of Directors increased the amount available for future
repurchases under our stock repurchase program to $1 billion of the Company’s common stock. This program expires on December 31, 2027 and replaces the
prior authorization. Repurchases under the program may occur from time to time through open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions or other
transactions. The timing, manner, price and amount of any common stock repurchases will be determined by us in our discretion and will depend on a variety of
factors, including prevailing market conditions, our liquidity, the terms of our debt instruments, legal requirements, planned land investment and development
spending, acquisition and other investment opportunities and ongoing capital requirements. The program does not require us to repurchase any specific number
of shares of common stock, and the program may be suspended, extended, modified or discontinued at any time.

Using the availability under our stock repurchase program, we may enter into ASR agreements. Such agreements require a cash payment, which has generally
been $50.0 million for the agreements we have executed. We receive an initial delivery of common stock with an aggregate value of 80% of the repurchase price
on the respective repurchase date, with the remaining 20% received (or to be received) at final settlement using a volume-weighted average price calculation in
accordance with the terms of each ASR agreement. We accounted for the ASRs as common stock repurchases and forward contracts indexed to our own
common stock. We determined that the equity classification criteria was met for the forward contracts; therefore, they were not accounted for as derivative
instruments.

The following table summarizes share repurchase activity for the program for the years ended December 31, 2025 and 2024:

(Number of Shares) 2025 2024

Number of shares repurchased with ASR 1,855,411 2,977,494

Other share repurchases!" 4,597,317 2,630,358
Total amount repurchased 6,452,728 5,607,852

™ Amount represents shares repurchased under our existing stock repurchase program which are not part of ASRs.

The following table summarizes our spend on share repurchases for the years ended December 31, 2025 and 2024:
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(Dollars in thousands) 2025 2024

Amount available for repurchase — beginning of period $ 910,093 $ 494,489
Amount cancelled from expired or unused authorizations — (236,799)
Additional amount authorized for repurchase (" — 1,000,000
Amount repurchased @ (381,016) (347,597)
Amount available for repurchase — end of period" $ 529,077 $ 910,093

(™ On October 23, 2024, the Board of Directors authorized a renewal of the Company's stock repurchase program which permits the repurchase of the Company's common stock through December 31, 2026.
On February 11, 2026, the Board of Directors authorized a renewal of the stock repurchase program, permitting repurchases up to $1.0 billion. This program expires on December 31, 2027 and replaces the
prior authorization.

@) Exclusive of the 1% excise tax on shares repurchased

11. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

In April 2013, we adopted the Taylor Morrison Home Corporation 2013 Omnibus Equity Award Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan was most recently amended and
restated in May 2022. The Plan provides for the grant of stock options, RSUs, PRSUs, and other equity-based awards deliverable in shares of our common
stock. As of December 31, 2025, we had an aggregate of 4,562,431 shares of common stock available for future grants under the Plan.

The following table provides information regarding the amount and components of stock-based compensation expense, which is included in General and
administrative expenses on the Consolidated statements of operations (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2025 2024 2023
Restricted stock (1) $ 24668 $ 17,837 $ 21,977
Stock options 4,381 4,624 4,118
Total stock compensation $ 29,049 $ 22,461 $ 26,095

(™ ncludes compensation expense related to time-based RSUs and PRSUs.

At December 31, 2025, 2024, and 2023, the aggregate unamortized value of all outstanding stock-based compensation awards was approximately $32.7 million,
$29.2 million, and $26.5 million, respectively.

Stock options — Options granted to employees generally vest and become exercisable ratably on the first, second, third, and fourth anniversary of the date of
grant. Vesting of the options is subject to continued employment, through the applicable vesting dates, and options expire within ten years from the date of grant.

The following tables summarize stock option activity for the Plan for each year presented:

Years Ended December 31,

2025 2024 2023
Weighted Average Weighted Average Weighted Average
Number Of Exercise/ Grant Number Of Exercise/ Grant Number Of Exercise/ Grant
Options Price Options Price Options Price
Outstanding, beginning 1,956,696 $ 28.98 2,254,142 $ 26.84 3,273,258 $ 23.35
Granted™ 132,276 62.80 127,513 56.48 359,768 35.18
Exercised (376,302) 27.88 (414,629) 25.75 (1,252,516) 21.07
Cancelled/forfeited” (20,369) 49.29 (10,330) 31.74 (126,368) 28.29
Balance, ending 1,692,301 $ 31.62 1,956,696 $ 28.98 2,254,142 $ 26.84
Options exercisable, at 1,226,784 $ 26.42 1,231,352 § 24.85 1,133,734 $ 23.48

December 31

™ Excludes the number of options granted and canceled in the same period.
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As of December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2025 2024 2023
Unamortized value of unvested stock options (net of estimated forfeitures) $ 6,687 $ 6,999 $ 7,861
Weighted-average period (in years) expense expected to be recognized 25 24 25
Weighted-average remaining contractual life (in years) for options outstanding 55 5.7 6.4
Weighted-average remaining contractual life (in years) for options exercisable 4.7 4.5 4.8

The following table summarizes the weighted-average assumptions and fair value used for stock options grants:

Years Ended December 31,

2025 2024 2023
Expected dividend yield — % — % — %
Expected volatility(" 51.58 % 51.60 % 50.87 %
Risk-free interest rate(" 4.29 % 4.24 % 3.90 %
Expected term (in years)(") 6.25 6.25 6.25
Weighted average fair value of options granted during the period $ 34.53 $ 31.02 $ 14.50

() Expected volatility and expected term are based on the historical information of comparable publicly traded homebuilders. Due to the limited number and homogeneous nature of option holders, the
expected term was evaluated using a single group. The risk-free rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve for periods equivalent to the expected term of the options on the grant date.

The following table provides information pertaining to the aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2025, 2024 and
2023:

As of December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2025 2024 2023
Aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding $ 46,607 $ 63,069 $ 59,758
Aggregate intrinsic value of options exercisable $ 39,812 $ 44766 $ 33,861

The aggregate intrinsic value is based on the market price of our common stock on December 31, 2025, the last trading day in December 2025, which was
$58.87, less the applicable exercise price of the underlying options. This value represents the amount that would have been realized as additional paid-in capital
if all the option holders had exercised their options on December 31, 2025.

Performance-Based Restricted Stock Units — These awards will vest in full based on the achievement of certain performance goals over a three-year
performance period, subject to the employee’s continued employment through the last date of the performance period and will be settled in shares of our

common stock. The number of shares that may be issued in settlement of the PRSUs to the award recipients may be greater or lesser than the target award
amount depending on actual performance achieved as compared to the performance targets set forth in the awards.

The following table summarizes the activity of our PRSUs:

Years Ended December 31,

2025 2024 2023
Balance, beginning 617,824 724,123 802,379
Granted 145,468 140,070 229,164
Vested (245,941) (244,781) (245,306)
Forfeited (19,648) (1,588) (62,114)
Balance, ending 497,703 617,824 724,123

Years Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands): 2025 2024 2023
PRSU expense recognized $ 9873 $ 7,058 $ 12,619
Unamortized value of PRSUs $ 9,343 $ 8,755 $ 8,122
Weighted-average period expense is expected to be recognized (in years) 1.8 1.8 1.8
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Non-Performance-Based Restricted Stock Units — Our RSUs consist of shares of our common stock that have been awarded to our employees and members
of our Board of Directors. Vesting of RSUs is subject to continued employment with TMHC or continued service on the Board of Directors, as applicable, through
the applicable vesting dates. Time-based RSUs granted to employees generally vest ratably over a three to four year period.

Time-based RSUs granted to members of the Board of Directors generally vest on the first anniversary of the grant date.

The following tables summarize the activity of our RSUs:

Years Ended December 31,

2025 2024 2023
Weighted Average Weighted Average Weighted Average
Number Of Grant Date Fair Number Of Grant Date Fair Number Of Grant Date Fair
RSUs Value RSUs ™ Value RSUs Value
Outstanding, beginning 706,589 $ 38.90 767,216 $ 29.87 814,834 $ 26.74
Granted 321,696 60.52 251,435 57.52 297,317 35.96
Vested (254,068) 40.37 (305,702) 31.30 (301,359) 27.52
Forfeited (30,557) 57.20 (6,360) 49.37 (43,576) 29.81
Balance, ending 743,660 $ 46.99 706,589 $ 38.90 767,216 $ 29.87

Years Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands): 2025 2024 2023
RSU expense recognized $ 14,795 $ 10,779 $ 9,357
Unamortized value of RSUs $ 16,630 $ 13,456 $ 10,496
Weighted-average period expense is expected to be recognized (in years) 1.8 22 1.7

The Plan permits us to withhold from the total number of shares that would otherwise be distributed to a recipient on vesting of an RSU, an amount equal to the
number of shares having a fair value at the time of distribution equal to the applicable income tax withholdings due and remit the remaining RSU shares to the
recipient.

12. OPERATING AND REPORTING SEGMENTS

We have multiple homebuilding operating components which are engaged in the business of acquiring and developing land, constructing homes, marketing and
selling homes, and providing warranty and customer service. We aggregate our homebuilding operating components into three reporting segments, East,
Central, and West, based on similar long-term economic characteristics. The activity from our Build-to-Rent and Urban Form operations are included in our
Corporate segment. We also have a Financial Services reporting segment which offers a number of finance-related products and services to our customers
through our mortgage lending and title operations.

The Company defines the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") function as the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, and the Chief Corporate
Operations Officer. On a quarterly basis, the CODM is provided with the financial results and key performance metrics at consolidated and disaggregated levels.
The Company’s CODM assesses the segment's performance by using each segment's gross margin and income before income taxes (which includes certain
corporate overhead allocations to each homebuilding segment for certain costs such as travel and entertainment and payroll-related costs for the marketing
department). The CODM makes company decisions and allocates resources based on the results and performance of the reporting segments.

Our reporting segments are as follows:

East Atlanta, Charlotte, Jacksonville, Naples, Orlando, Raleigh, Sarasota, and Tampa

Central Austin, Dallas, Denver, Houston, and Indianapolis

West Bay Area, Las Vegas, Phoenix, Pacific Northwest"), Sacramento, and Southern California
Financial Services Taylor Morrison Home Funding, Inspired Title Services, and Taylor Morrison Insurance Services

() During the year ended December 31, 2025, we combined our Portland and Seattle divisions to become Pacific Northwest
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Operating results for each segment may not be indicative of the results for such segment had it been an independent, stand-alone entity. The segment
information is consistent with the metrics reviewed in the CODM's package and is as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2025
Operating and

Reporting Corporate
Financial Segment and

East Central West Services Subtotal Unallocated® Total
Home closings revenue, net $ 2,816,997 $ 1,780,460 $ 3,157,977 $ — 3 7,755,434  $ — $ 7,755,434
All other revenue 21,910 23,941 14,382 209,407 269,640 96,406 $ 366,046
Total revenue 2,838,907 1,804,401 3,172,359 209,407 8,025,074 96,406 8,121,480
Cost of home closings 2,176,900 1,374,183 2,456,924 — 6,008,007 — $ 6,008,007
Al other cost of revenue 24,672 17,012 15,917 104,618 162,219 81,046 $ 243,265
Total cost of revenue 2,201,572 1,391,195 2,472,841 104,618 6,170,226 81,046 6,251,272
Home closings gross margin 640,097 406,277 701,053 — 1,747,427 — $ 1,747,427
Total gross margin 637,335 413,206 699,518 104,789 1,854,848 15,360 $ 1,870,208
Sales, commissions and other marketing
costs® (177,473) (121,870) (149,723) — (449,066) (12,419) $ (461,485)
General and administrative expenses (45,396) (32,462) (46,643) — (124,501) (149,005) $ (273,506)
Net income/(loss) from unconsolidated
entities 301 132 (2,915) 12,540 10,058 (5,191) $ 4,867
Interest and other (expense)/income, net® (25,363) (19,455) (47,845) 1,362 (91,301) 6,584 $ (84,717)
Loss on extinguishment of debt — — — — — (13,324) (13,324)
Income before income taxes $ 389,404 $ 239,551 $ 452,392 $ 118,691 $ 1,200,038 $ (157,995) $ 1,042,043

() Includes the activity from our Build-To-Rent and Urban Form operations
@ Includes corporate marketing expense allocations
@) Interest and other (expense)/income, net includes pre-acquisition write-offs of terminated projects
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Year Ended December 31, 2024

Operating and

Reporting Corporate
Financial Segment and
East Central West Services Subtotal Unallocated" Total

Home closings revenue, net $ 2,826,628 $ 1,969,381 $ 2,959,210 $ — 3 7,755,219 $ — 7,755,219
All other revenue 52,908 24,514 27,607 199,459 304,488 108,429 412,917
Total revenue 2,879,536 1,993,895 2,986,817 199,459 8,059,707 108,429 8,168,136
Cost of home closings 2,065,218 1,485,968 2,312,557 — 5,863,743 — 5,863,743
All other cost of revenue 43,604 20,825 34,569 108,592 207,590 112,591 320,181
Total cost of revenue 2,108,822 1,506,793 2,347,126 108,592 6,071,333 112,591 6,183,924
Home closings gross margin 761,410 483,413 646,653 — 1,891,476 — 1,891,476
Total gross margin 770,714 487,102 639,691 90,867 1,988,374 (4,162) 1,984,212
Sales, commissions and other marketing

costs?® (169,270) (131,997) (146,909) — (448,176) (7,916) (456,092)
General and administrative expenses (47,888) (34,501) (46,514) — (128,903) (185,503) (314,406)
Net (loss)/income from unconsolidated

entities — (51) (28) 8,915 8,836 (2,489) 6,347
Interest and other (expense)/income, net®) (771) (16,087) (6,646) 2,112 (21,392) (42,551) (63,943)
Income before income taxes $ 552,785 $ 304,466 $ 439,594 $ 101,894 $ 1,398,739 $ (242,621) 1,156,118
(1)Includes the assets from our Build-To-Rent and Urban Form operations

(2)Includes corporate marketing expense allocations

(3)Interest and other (expense)/income, net includes pre-acquisition write-offs of terminated projects

Year Ended December 31, 2023
Operating and
Reporting Corporate
Financial Segment and
East Central West Services Subtotal Unallocated" Total

Home closings revenue, net $ 2,619,322 $ 1,935,500 $ 2,604,035 $ — 3 7,158,857 $ — 7,158,857
All other revenue 55,308 28,765 1,414 160,312 § 245,799 13,175 258,974
Total revenue 2,674,630 1,964,265 2,605,449 160,312 7,404,656 13,175 7,417,831
Cost of home closings 1,900,833 1,443,490 2,107,078 — 5,451,401 — 5,451,401
All other cost of revenue 52,478 24,846 2,053 93,989 173,366 9,991 183,357
Total cost of revenue 1,953,311 1,468,336 2,109,131 93,989 5,624,767 9,991 5,634,758
Home closings gross margin 718,489 492,010 496,957 — 1,707,456 — 1,707,456
Total gross margin 721,319 495,929 496,318 66,323 1,779,889 3,184 1,783,073
Sales, commissions and other marketing

costs® (145,943) (128,914) (136,522) — (411,379) (6,755) (418,134)
General and administrative expenses (39,381) (29,893) (42,306) — (111,580) (168,993) (280,573)
Net (loss)/income from unconsolidated
entities — (98) (217) 9,148 8,833 (76) 8,757
Interest and other expense, net® (73,205) (7,608) 3,981 — (76,832) 1,842 (74,990)
Loss on extinguishment of debt — — — — — (295) (295)
Income before income taxes $ 462,790 $ 329,416 $ 321,254 $ 75471 $ 1,188,931 $ (171,093) 1,017,838

() Includes the assets from our Build-To-Rent and Urban Form operations
@ Includes corporate marketing expense allocations
@) Interest and other (expense)/income, net includes pre-acquisition write-offs of terminated projects
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As of December 31, 2025

Operating and Corporate
Financial Reporting Segment and
East Central West Services Subtotal Unallocated" Total

Real estate inventory and

land deposits $ 2,471,115 $ 1,177,184 $ 2,853,054 $ — $ 6,501,353 $ — 6,501,353
Investments in unconsolidated

entities 97,679 206,571 75,473 5,483 385,206 101,772 486,978
Other assets 226,288 272,770 581,059 227,218 1,307,335 1,542,131 2,849,466
Total assets $ 2,795,082 $ 1,656,525 $ 3,509,586 $ 232,701 $ 8,193,894 $ 1,643,903 $ 9,837,797

™ Includes the assets from our Build-To-Rent and Urban Form operations

As of December 31, 2024

Operating and Corporate
Financial Reporting and
East Central West Services Segment Subtotal Unallocated" Total

Real estate inventory and

land deposits $ 2,389,791 $ 1,296,272 $ 2,847,689 $ — 3 6,533,752 $ — 3 6,533,752
Investments in unconsolidated

entities 86,378 164,434 94,864 5,483 351,159 88,562 439,721
Other assets 173,489 225,846 610,212 297,107 1,306,654 1,017,004 2,323,658
Total assets $ 2,649,658 $ 1,686,552 $ 3,552,765 §$ 302,590 $ 8,191,565 $ 1,105,566 $ 9,297,131

(M Includes the assets from our Build-To-Rent and Urban Form operations

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Letters of Credit and Surety Bonds — We are committed, under various letters of credit and surety bonds, to perform certain development and construction
activities and provide certain guarantees in the normal course of business. Outstanding letters of credit and surety bonds under these arrangements totaled $1.5
billion and $1.4 billion at December 31, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively. Although significant development and construction activities have been
completed related to these site improvements, the bonds are generally not released until all development and construction activities are completed. We do not
believe that it is probable that any outstanding bonds as of December 31, 2025 will be drawn upon.

Purchase Commitments — We are subject to the usual obligations associated with entering into contracts (including land option contracts and land banking
arrangements) for the purchase, development, and sale of real estate in our ongoing routine business. We have a number of land purchase option contracts and
land banking agreements for the right to purchase land or lots at a future point in time on predetermined terms. We do not have title to the property and the
property owners and its creditors generally have no recourse to the Company. Our exposure with respect to such contracts are generally limited to the forfeiture
of the related non-refundable cash deposits. The aggregate purchase price for assets under these contracts was $3.4 billion at December 31, 2025 and $1.9
billion at December 31, 2024.

Legal Proceedings — We are involved in various litigation and legal claims in the normal course of business, including actions brought on behalf of various
classes of claimants. We are also subject to a variety of local, state, and federal laws and regulations related to land development activities, house construction
standards, sales practices, mortgage lending operations, employment practices, and protection of the environment. As a result, we are subject to periodic
examination or inquiry by various governmental agencies that administer these laws and regulations.

We establish liabilities for legal claims and regulatory matters when such matters are both probable of occurring and any potential loss can be reasonably
estimated. At December 31, 2025 and 2024, our legal accruals were $53.3 million and $49.1 million, respectively. We accrue for such matters based on the facts
and circumstances specific to each matter and revise these estimates as the matters evolve. In such cases, there may exist an exposure to loss in excess of any
amounts currently accrued. Predicting the ultimate resolution of the pending matters, the related timing, or the eventual loss associated with these matters is
inherently difficult. Accordingly, the liability arising from the ultimate resolution of any matter may exceed the estimate reflected in the recorded accrued liabilities
relating to such matter. While the outcome of such contingencies cannot be predicted with certainty, we do not believe that the resolution of such matters will
have a material adverse impact on our results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

On April 26, 2017, a class action complaint was filed in the Circuit Court of the Tenth Judicial Circuit in and for Polk County, Florida by Norman Gundel, William
Mann, and Brenda Taylor against Avatar Properties, Inc., (an acquired AV Homes entity)
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("Avatar"), generally alleging that our collection of club membership fees in connection with the use of one of our amenities in our East homebuilding segment
violated various laws relating to homeowner associations and other Florida-specific laws (the "Solivita litigation"). The class action complaint sought an injunction
to prohibit future collection of club membership fees. On November 2, 2021, the court determined that the club membership fees were improper and that
plaintiffs were entitled to $35.0 million in fee reimbursements. We appealed the court’s ruling to the Sixth District Court of Appeal (the "District Court") on
November 29, 2021, and the plaintiffs agreed to continue to pay club membership fees pending the outcome of the appeal. On June 23, 2023, the District Court
affirmed the trial court judgment in a split decision, with three separate opinions. Recognizing the potential “far-reaching effects on homeowners associations
throughout the State,” the District Court certified a question of great public importance to the Florida Supreme Court, and we filed a notice to invoke the
discretionary review of the Florida Supreme Court. On November 2, 2023, the Florida Supreme Court declined to exercise jurisdiction. Following the Florida
Supreme Court's decision, we paid $64.7 million to the plaintiffs during the quarter ended December 31, 2023, which included the amount of the trial court’s
judgment, club membership fees received during the pendency of our appeal, and pre- and post-judgment interest. The Court held evidentiary hearings on July
29 and 30, 2024 with respect to the plaintiffs' claims for additional pre-judgment interest and legal fees and heard closing argument on August 13, 2024. On
November 4, 2024, the Tenth Judicial Circuit Court for Polk County, Florida issued an order granting the plaintiffs’ motion for attorneys’ fees and taxable costs
and denied their motion for pre-judgment interest at a rate higher than the Florida statutory rate. The Court awarded plaintiffs $22.5 million for attorneys' fees,
$0.6 million for pre-judgment interest at the statutory rate of 9.46%, and $0.6 million for reimbursement of taxable costs. We filed a notice of appeal and have
recorded an accrual with respect to our estimated liability for the plaintiffs' legal fees and costs for this matter, which is reflected in our legal accruals as of
December 31, 2025.

After reviewing our amenity arrangements in our Florida communities to determine whether such arrangements might subject the Company to liability in light of
the outcome of the Solivita litigation described above, we identified one additional community with similar arrangements. On August 13, 2020, Slade Chelbian, a
resident of our Bellalago community in Kissimmee, Florida, filed a purported class action suit against Avatar, AV Homes, Inc. and Taylor Morrison Home
Corporation in the Circuit Court of the Ninth Circuit in and for Osceola County, Florida, generally alleging that Avatar cannot earn profits from community
members for use of club amenities where membership in the club is mandatory for all residents and failure to pay club membership fees could result in the
foreclosure of their homes by Avatar. The case was recently transferred to the Business Court and assigned to a new judge. The trial, which was originally
scheduled to commence in the first quarter of 2026, has been postponed until further order of the court. While the ultimate outcome and the costs associated
with litigation are inherently uncertain and difficult to predict, we have recorded an accrual for our estimated liability for this matter, which is reflected in our legal
accruals as of December 31, 2025.

14. MORTGAGE HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The following summarizes derivative instruments as of the periods presented:

As of
December 31, 2025 December 31, 2024
(Dollars in thousands) Fair Value Notional Amount () Fair Value Notional Amount
IRLCs $ (12,715) $ 261,341  $ (5,917) $ 233,881
MBSs (1,858) 561,000 4,174 405,000
Total $ (14,573) $ (1,743)

1) The notional amounts in the table above include mandatory and best effort mortgages, that have been locked and approved.

Total commitments to originate loans approximated $276.6 million and $246.1 million at December 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. This amount represents the
commitments to originate loans that have been locked and approved by underwriting. The notional amounts in the table above include mandatory and best effort
loans that have been locked and approved by underwriting.

We have exposure to credit loss in the event of contractual non-performance by our trading counterparties in derivative instruments that we use in our rate risk
management activities. We manage this credit risk by selecting only counterparties that we believe to be financially strong, spreading the risk among multiple
counterparties, by placing contractual limits on the amount of unsecured credit extended to any single counterparty, and by entering into netting agreements with
counterparties, as appropriate. Commitments to originate loans do not necessarily reflect future cash requirements as some commitments are expected to expire
without being drawn upon.
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ITEM 9 | CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A | CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this Form 10-K, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our principal executive
officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as
such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act). Based on this evaluation as of December 31, 2025, our principal executive
officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective in alerting them in a timely
manner to material information required to be disclosed in our reports filed or submitted with the SEC.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared in conformity with GAAP and reflect management’s judgments and estimates concerning events and transactions that
are accounted for or disclosed.

Management is also responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule
13a-15(f). Management recognizes that there are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any internal control and effective internal control over financial
reporting can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation. Additionally, because of changes in conditions, the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting may vary over time.

In order to ensure that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting is effective, management regularly assesses such controls and did so most
recently for its financial reporting as of December 31, 2025. Management’s assessment was based on criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting
described in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013
Framework). Based on its assessment, management concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31,
2025.

Deloitte & Touche LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the Company’s consolidated financial statements included in this Annual
Report, has issued its attestation report on the effectiveness of the Company'’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2025.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2025 that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Taylor Morrison Home Corporation

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Taylor Morrison Home Corporation and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2025,
based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2025, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO.
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We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated financial
statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2025, of the Company and our report dated February 18, 2026, expressed an unqualified opinion on
those financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's annual report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered
with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules
and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding
of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Tempe, Arizona
February 18, 2026
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ITEM 9B | OTHER INFORMATION

During the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2025, none of the Company’s directors or officers (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 16a-1(f)) adopted or
terminated a Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement or non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement (as such terms are defined in Item 408 of Regulation S-K).

ITEM 9C | DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT
PREVENT INSPECTIONS

Not applicable.
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The information required by Items 401, 405, 406 and 407(c)(3), (d)(4), and (d)(5), and 408(b) of Regulation S-K will be set forth in our 2026 Annual Meeting
Proxy Statement, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after December 31, 2025 (the “Proxy Statement”). For
the limited purpose of providing the information necessary to comply with this Item 10, the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by this reference. All
references to the Proxy Statement in this Part Ill are exclusive of the information set forth under the captions “Audit Committee Report.”

The information required by ltems 402 of Regulation S-K and paragraphs (e)(4) and (e)(5) of ltem 4.07 of Regulation S-K will be set forth in the Proxy Statement.
For the limited purpose of providing the information necessary to comply with this Item 11, the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by this reference.

The following table provides information with respect to the Taylor Morrison Home Corporation 2013 Omnibus Equity Award Plan as amended and restated as of
May 26, 2022, (the “Equity Plan”) under which our equity securities are authorized for issuance as of December 31, 2025.

Number Of Securities Remaining
Available For Future Issuance Under

Number Of Securities To Be Issued Weighted- Average Exercise Equity
Upon Exercise Of Outstanding Price Of Outstanding Options, Compensation Plans (Excluding
Options, Warrants Securities Reflected In Column (A))
Plan Category Warrants And Rights (A) And Rights (B) (C)
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders(" 2,933664% § 3162 @ 4,562,431
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders — — —
1) The Equity Plan is currently our only compensation plan pursuant to which our equity is awarded.
2) Column (A) includes 1,241,363 shares of our common stock underlying outstanding time-based vesting and performance-based vesting restricted stock units (“RSUs” or "restricted stock")

and outstanding deferred stock units (“DSUs”). Amount assumes achievement of the target level of performance in respect of RSUs that are subject to performance-based vesting conditions.
Because there is no exercise price associated with RSUs, such equity awards are not included in the weighted-average exercise price calculation in column (B).

3) The weighted average exercise price in column (B) relates only to outstanding stock options. The calculation of the weighted average exercise price does not include outstanding equity
awards that are received for no consideration and does not include shares of common stock credited to the deferred compensation accounts of certain non-employee directors at fair market
value in lieu compensation at the election of such directors.

4) A total of 15,161,459 shares of our common stock have been authorized for issuance pursuant to the terms of the Equity Plan.

The information required by Item 403 of Regulation S-K will be set forth in the Proxy Statement. For the limited purpose of providing the information necessary to
comply with this Item 12, the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by this reference.
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MATTERS

ITEM 13 | CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND
DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by ltems 404 and 407(a) of Regulation S-K will be set forth in the Proxy Statement. For the limited purpose of providing the information
necessary to comply with this Item 13, the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by this reference.

ITEM 14 | PRINCIPALACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

This information required by Item 9(e) of Schedule 14A will be set forth in the Proxy Statement. For the limited purpose of providing the information necessary to
comply with this Item 14, the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by this reference.

TAYLOR MORRISON HOME CORPORATION 10-K
89




Table of Contents

Part |V

91 Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

93 Item 16. Form 10-K Summary




Table of Contents

ITEM 15 | EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

ITEM 15 | EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SCHEDULES

EXHIBIT
NO.

DESCRIPTION

3.1

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (included as Exhibit 3.1 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed on May 30, 2019, and incorporated herein by reference).

3.2

Amended and Restated By-laws (included as Exhibit 3.1 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on March 7,

4.1

Indenture, dated as of August 1, 2019, relating_to Taylor Morrison Communities,_Inc.’s 5.75% Senior Notes due 2028, by and among_Taylor
Morrison Communities,_Inc., the guarantors party thereto and U.S. Bank National Association (included as Exhibit 4.1 to Taylor Morrison Home
Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2019, filed on October 30, 2019, and incorporated herein by
reference)

4.2

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 6, 2020, to the Indenture, dated as of August 1, 2019, among_Taylor Morrison Communities,
Inc., the guarantors party thereto and U.S. Bank National Association (included as Exhibit 4.7 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed on February 11, 2020, and incorporated herein by reference).

4.3

Indenture, dated as of July 22, 2020, relating_to Taylor Morrison Communities, Inc.’s 5.125% Senior Notes Due 2030, by and among_Taylor
Morrison Communities, Inc., the guarantors party thereto and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (included as Exhibit 4.1 to Taylor
Morrison Home Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2020, filed on November 2, 2020, and
incorporated herein by reference).

4.4

Indenture, dated as of November 10, 2025, by and among_Taylor Morrison Communities,_Inc., the guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank
Trust Company, National Association, as trustee, including_the form of 5.750% Senior Notes due 2032 (included as Exhibit 4.1 to Taylor
Morrison Home Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on November 10, 2025, and incorporated herein by reference).

4.5

Specimen Class A Common Stock Certificate of Taylor Morrison Home Corporation (included as Exhibit 4.1 to Taylor Morrison Home
Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A12B/A, filed on June 10, 2019, and incorporated herein by reference).

4.6

Description of Registrant’s Securities (included as Exhibit 4.20 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2019, filed on February 19, 2020, and incorporated herein by reference).

10.1

Reorganization Agreement, dated as of April 9, 2013, by and among_Taylor Morrison Home Corporation and the other parties named therein
(included as Exhibit 10.6 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on April 15, 2013, and incorporated herein by
reference)

10.2t

Form of Indemnification Agreement (included as Exhibit 10.2 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2024, filed on February 19, 2025).

10.3t

Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on May 31, 2022, and incorporated herein by reference).

10.41

Form of Employee Nonqualified Option Award Agreement for use with the Taylor Morrison Home Corporation 2013 Omnibus Equity Award Plan
(Amended and Restated as of May 25, 2016)_(included as Exhibit 10.15 to Amendment No. 5 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed on April 4, 2013, and incorporated herein by reference).

10.5¢

Taylor Morrison Long-Term Cash Incentive Plan (included as Exhibit 10.18 to Amendment No. 5 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed on April 4, 2013, and incorporated herein by reference).

10.6t

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for use with the Taylor Morrison Home Corporation 2013 Omnibus Equity Award Plan (included as
Exhibit 10.16 to Amendment No. 5 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed on April 4, 2013, and
incorporated herein by reference).

10.7t

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated October 12, 2021, between Taylor Morrison,_ Inc. and Sheryl D. Palmer (included as
Exhibit 10.7 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021, filed on February 23,

10.7.1%

Amendment to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated July 26, 2022, between Taylor Morrison,_Inc. and Sheryl D. Palmer
(included as Exhibit 10.1 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2022,
filed on October 26, 2022, and incorporated herein by reference).
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10.7.21

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated October 20, 2025, between Taylor Morrison,_Inc. and Sheryl D.
Palmer (included as Exhibit 10.1 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2025, filed on October 22, 2025, and incorporated herein by reference).

10.8%

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated July 24, 2023, between Taylor Morrison,_Inc. and Curt VanHyfte (included as Exhibit
10.1 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2023, filed on October 25,

10.91

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated October 12, 2021, between Taylor Morrison, Inc. and Darrell C. Sherman (included as
Exhibit 10.9 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021, filed on February 23,
2022, and incorporated herein by reference).

10.9.1%

Amendment to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated July 26, 2022, between Taylor Morrison,_Inc. and Darrell C. Sherman

filed on October 26, 2022, and incorporated herein by reference).

10.10*t

Employment Agreement, dated May 16, 2025, between Taylor Morrison,_Inc. and Todd Merrill.

10.101

Form of Restrictive Covenants Agreement with Taylor Morrison,_Inc. (included as Exhibit 10.12 to Amendment No. 3 to Taylor Morrison Home
Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed on March 6, 2013, and incorporated herein by reference.

10.111

2015 Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan (included as Exhibit 10.4 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2015, filed on May 7, 2015, and incorporated herein by reference).

101111

Form of Deferred Stock Unit Award Agreement (included as Exhibit 10.5 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended March 31, 2015, filed on May 7, 2015, and incorporated herein by reference).

10.121

Form of Employee Nonqualified Option Award Agreement for use with the Taylor Morrison Home Corporation 2013 Omnibus Equity Award Plan
(Amended and Restated as of May 25, 2016)_for grants made in 2015 and thereafter (included as Exhibit 10.1 to Taylor Morrison Home
Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2015, filed on August 5, 2015, and incorporated herein by
reference).

10.131

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for use with the Taylor Morrison Home Corporation 2013 Omnibus Equity Award Plan (Amended and
Restated as of May 25, 2016)_for grants made in 2015 and thereafter (included as Exhibit 10.2 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s Quarterly,
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2015, filed on August 5, 2015, and incorporated herein by reference).

10141

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for use with the Taylor Morrison Home Corporation 2013 Omnibus Equity Award
Plan (Amended and Restated as of May 25, 2016)_for grants made in 2015 and thereafter (included as Exhibit 10.3 to Taylor Morrison Home

reference).

10.151

Form of Omnibus Amendment to the Restricted Stock Unit Agreements and Employee Nonqualified Option Award Agreement for use with the
Taylor Morrison Home Corporation 2013 Omnibus Equity Award Plan (Amended as of June 14, 2018)_(included as Exhibit 10.3 to Taylor
Morrison Home Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2018, filed on August 1, 2018, and incorporated
herein by reference).

10.15.1¢

Form of Omnibus Amendment to Restricted Stock Unit Agreements and Employee Nonqualified Option Award Agreements under the Taylor
Morrison Home Corporation 2013 Omnibus Equity Award Plan (included as Exhibit 10.1 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s Quarterly,
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2023, filed on July 26, 2023, and incorporated herein by reference).

10.16

Amendment and Restatement Agreement dated as of December 22, 2025 to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of March
11,.2022, among_Taylor Morrison Communities,_Inc., Taylor Morrison Home Ill Corporation, Taylor Morrison Holdings, Inc., Taylor Morrison
Finance, Inc., lenders party thereto, Citibank, N.A., as administrative agent under the existing_credit agreement and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as successor administrative agent (included as Exhibit 10.1 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on December 23, 2025, and incorporated herein by reference).

10171

Form of Profit Sharing_Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for use with the 2013 Taylor Morrison Home Corporation Omnibus Equity Award Plan
(included as Exhibit 10.17 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024, filed on
February 19, 2025)
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EXHIBIT
NO. DESCRIPTION

10.18 Limited Liability Company Agreement of TMVP BTR Venture, LLC (included as Exhibit 10.2 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2022, filed on July 27, 2022, and incorporated herein by reference).

10.19 Additional Facilities Assumption Agreement, dated as of September 9, 2022 by and among_Taylor Morrison Communities,_Inc., Taylor Morrison
Home Il Corporation, Taylor Morrison Holdings,_Inc., Taylor Morrison Finance, Inc., the subsidiaries of Taylor Morrison Communities,_Inc. party
thereto as guarantors, the lenders party thereto, the issuing_banks party thereto and Citibank, N.A., as issuing_bank and administrative agent
(included as Exhibit 10.1 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on September 13, 2022, and incorporated
herein by reference).

19.1* Securities Trading_Policy,

21.1* Subsidiaries of Taylor Morrison Home Corporation.

23.1* Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.

31.1* Certification of Sheryl D. Palmer, Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes—Oxley Act of 2002.

312 Certification of Curt VanHyfte, Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes—Oxley Act of 2002.

321 Certification of Sheryl D. Palmer, Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes—Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2* Certification of Curt VanHyfte, Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes—Oxley Act of 2002.

97.1 Taylor Morrison Home Corporation Incentive Compensation Clawback Policy (included as Exhibit 97.1 to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023, filed on February 21, 2024, and incorporated herein by reference).

101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document—the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded
within the Inline XBRL document.

101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema With Embedded Linkbase Documents.

104 Cover page from the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2025, formatted in inline XBRL (and contained
in Exhibit 101).

* Filed herewith.

** Furnished herewith.

TManagement contract or compensatory plan in which directors and/or executive officers are eligible to participate.

#Certain information contained in this agreement has been omitted because it is not material and is the type that the registrant treats as private or confidential.

The registrant hereby agrees to furnish to the SEC at its request copies of long-term debt instruments defining the rights of holders of outstanding long-term debt
that are not required to be filed herewith.

The agreements and other documents filed as exhibits to this report are not intended to provide factual information or other disclosure other than with respect to
the terms of the agreements or other documents themselves, and you should not rely on them for that purpose. In particular, any representations and warranties
made by us in these agreements or other documents were made solely within the specific context of the relevant agreement or document and may not describe
the actual state of affairs as of the date they were made or at any other time.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Annual Report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

TAYLOR MORRISON HOME CORPORATION

Registrant

DATE: February 18, 2026
/sl Sheryl D. Palmer

Sheryl D. Palmer
Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

/sl Curt VanHyfte

Curt VanHyfte
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

/sl Joseph Terracciano

Joseph Terracciano

Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

/sl Peter Lane
Peter Lane Director February 18, 2026

/s/ Anne L. Mariucci
Anne L. Mariucci Director February 18, 2026

/s/ David Merritt
David Merritt Director February 18, 2026

/s/ Heather Ostis
Heather Ostis Director February 18, 2026

/s/ Andrea Owen
Andrea Owen Director February 18, 2026

/sl Denise Warren

Denise Warren Director February 18, 2026
/sl Christopher Yip
Christopher Yip Director February 18, 2026
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Privileged and Confidential

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This Employment Agreement (the “Agreement”), entered into on May 16, 2025, is made by and between Todd Merrill (the

“Executive”) and Taylor Morrison, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and shall be effective on June 1, 2025 (the
“Effective Date”).

RECITALS
A. Executive is currently employed as the Company’s Vice President and General Counsel of Operations.
B. It is the desire of the Company to employ the Executive as the Company’s Executive Vice President, Chief Legal

Officer and Secretary, effective as of the Effective Date, and assure itself of the continued services of the Executive by continuing to
engage the Executive to perform services under the terms hereof.

C. The Executive desires to continue to provide services to the Company and to Taylor Morrison Home Corporation, a
Delaware corporation and the indirect parent of the Company (including any successor parent, “TMHC”) on the terms herein
provided.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the respective covenants and agreements set forth below, the
parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Certain Definitions.

(a) “Accountants” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 11(b).

(b) “Accrued Obligations™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(a).
(c) “Action” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9.

(d) “Affiliate” shall have meaning ascribed thereto in the Equity Plan.

(e) “Agreement” shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.

® “Annual Base Salary” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3(a).
(g) “Annual Bonus” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3(b).
(h) “Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of TMHC.

(1) The Company shall have “Cause” to terminate the Executive’s employment pursuant to Section 4(a)(iii) hereunder
upon: (i) a material breach by the Executive of this Agreement, any award agreement executed by the Executive and issued under the
Equity Plan or any policy of the Company or its Affiliates; provided, that, the Company shall permit the Executive up to fifteen (15)
days after notice from the Company to cure such breach if reasonably susceptible to cure; (ii) the Executive’s gross negligence or
willful misconduct, which is injurious to the Company or any of its Affiliates; provided, that, the Company shall permit the




Executive up to fifteen (15) days after notice from the Company to cure such breach if reasonably susceptible to cure; or (iii) the
Executive’s conviction of, or guilty plea (or plea of nolo contendere) or confession to, a felony or other crime involving dishonesty,
fraud, breach of any fiduciary obligation to the Board or any equity holder of TMHC, or unethical business conduct.

)] “280G Change in Control” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 11(a).

&) “Change in Control” shall have the meaning set forth in the Equity Plan.

) “Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

(m)  “Company” shall, except as otherwise provided in Sections 6 and 7, have the meaning set forth in the preamble
hereto.

(n) “Confidential Information” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7(a).

(o) “Date of Termination” shall mean (i) if the Executive’s employment is terminated by the Executive’s death, the date

of the Executive’s death, or (ii) if the Executive’s employment is terminated pursuant to Section 4(a)(ii)-(vi), the date specified or
otherwise effective pursuant to Section 4(b).

(p) “Disability” shall mean the disability of the Executive caused by any physical or mental injury, illness or incapacity
as a result of which the Executive has been unable to effectively perform the essential functions of the Executive’s duties for a
continuous period of at least one hundred eighty (180) days. If any question shall arise as to whether a Disability exists, the
Executive may, and at the request of the Company shall, submit to a medical examination by a physician selected by the Company to
determine whether a Disability exists and such determination shall for the purposes of this Agreement be conclusive of the issue. If
such question shall arise and the Executive shall fail to submit to such medical examination, the Company’s determination of the
issue shall be binding on the Executive.

(@ “Effective Date” shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.

(r) “Equity_Plan” shall mean the Taylor Morrison Home Corporation 2013 Omnibus Equity Award Plan, as amended
from time to time, or any successor plan thereto.

(s) “Excise Tax” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 11(a).

) “Executive” shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.

(w) “Full Payment” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 11(a).

v) The Executive shall have “Good Reason” to resign from employment pursuant to Section 4(a)(v) in the event that any
of the following actions are taken by the Company or any of its Affiliates without the Executive’s consent: (i) any material
diminution in the nature or status of the Executive’s title, duties, responsibilities or authority, including by reason of the Executive’s
no longer being the most senior employee responsible for oversight of the legal functions of a publicly traded company following a
Change in Control, (ii) any material diminution in the Executive’s Annual Base Salary or Target Bonus, other than a decrease in base
salary or bonus opportunity that applies to a similarly situated class of employees of the Company or its Affiliates, (iii) a material
breach of the Company’s obligations under this Agreement, or (iv) a change of the Executive’s principal place of employment to a
location more



than fifty (50) miles from its present location (which change increases the Executive’s one-way commute); provided, however, that
none of the events described in the foregoing clauses shall constitute Good Reason unless the Executive has notified the Company in
writing describing the events that constitute Good Reason within ninety (90) days following the first occurrence of such events and
then only if the Company fails to cure such events within thirty (30) days after the Company’s receipt of such written notice, and the
Executive shall have terminated the Executive’s employment with the Company promptly following the expiration of such cure
period.

(w)  “Inventions” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7(c).
x) “Notice of Termination™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(b).
6% “Person” shall mean an individual, partnership, corporation, limited liability company, business trust, joint stock

company, trust, unincorporated association, joint venture, governmental authority or other entity of whatever nature.
(2) “Proprietary Rights” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7(c).

(aa)  “Reduced Payment” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 11(a).

(ab)  “Section 409A” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 10(a).

(ac)  “Severance Payments” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(b)(i).

(ad)  “Severance Period” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(b)(i).

(ae)  “Target Bonus” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3(b).
(af)  “Term” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2(b).

(ag) “TMHC” shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.

(ah)  “Transaction Payment” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 11(a).
2. Employment.

(a) In General. The Company shall employ the Executive as the Company’s Executive Vice President, Chief Legal
Officer and Secretary, and the Executive shall continue in the employ of the Company, for the period set forth in Section 2(b), in the
position set forth in Section 2(c), and upon the other terms and conditions herein provided.

(b) Term of Employment. The term of employment (the “Term”) under this Agreement shall be for the period beginning
on the Effective Date and ending on the Date of Termination. For the purposes of clarity, from the date of the execution of this
Agreement until the Effective Date, the Executive shall continue to be employed as the Company’s Vice President and General
Counsel of Operations.

(© Position and Duties.

@A) Position. During the Term, the Executive shall serve as Executive Vice President and Chief Legal Officer of
the Company and TMHC, with duties, responsibilities and authority customary for such position and as may be reasonably assigned
by the Board or the



Chief Executive Officer of TMHC from time to time. Such duties, responsibilities and authority may include services for one or
more subsidiaries or Affiliates of the Company. The Executive shall report to the Chief Executive Officer of TMHC. The Executive
agrees to observe and comply with the Company’s and its Affiliates’ rules and policies as adopted from time to time. The Executive
shall devote the Executive’s full business time, skill, attention and best efforts to the performance of the Executive’s duties
hereunder; provided, however, that the Executive shall be entitled to manage the Executive’s personal, financial and legal affairs, or
reasonably engage in charitable endeavors, so long as such activities do not interfere with the Executive’s performance of the
Executive’s duties and responsibilities to the Company and its Affiliates as provided hereunder, are not in conflict with the business
interests of the Company or its Affiliates and do not otherwise compete with the business of the Company or its Affiliates. For the
avoidance of doubt, except as specifically provided in this Section 2(c), during the Term, the Executive shall not be permitted to
become engaged in or render services for any Person other than the Company and its Affiliates without the consent of the Board.

(i1) Principal Office. During the Term, the principal place of the Executive’s employment shall be the Company’s
corporate headquarters in Scottsdale, Arizona. The Executive shall perform the Executive’s duties and responsibilities to the
Company at such principal place of employment and at such other location(s) to which the Company may reasonably require the
Executive to travel for Company business purposes.

3. Compensation and Related Matters.

(a) Annual Base Salary. During the Term, the Executive shall receive a base salary at a rate of four hundred fifty
thousand dollars ($450,000) per annum, which shall be paid in accordance with the customary payroll practices of the Company,
subject to review and adjustment in accordance with the Company’s or TMHC’s compensation policies and practices, overall
financial condition and other business factors (the “Annual Base Salary™).

(b) Annual Bonus. With respect to each calendar year that ends during the Term, the Executive shall be eligible to receive
an annual cash bonus (the “Annual Bonus”) under TMHC’s annual bonus program, with a target Annual Bonus amount equal to one
hundred fifty percent (150%) of the Annual Base Salary (the “Target Bonus™). The Executive’s actual Annual Bonus for a given year,
if any, shall be determined by the Board (or a committee thereof) on the basis of the Executive’s, the Company’s and/or TMHC’s
attainment of objective financial and/or other subjective or objective criteria established by the Board (or a committee thereof). Each
such Annual Bonus shall be payable at such time and in such manner that annual bonuses are paid to other senior executives of the
Company after results have been determined for the calendar year to which the Annual Bonus, if any, relates. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, except as expressly provided in Section 5 hereof, no Annual Bonus shall be payable with respect to any calendar year
unless the Executive remains continuously employed with the Company through the date of payment of such Annual Bonus.

() Benefits. During the Term, the Executive shall be entitled to participate in the employee benefit plans, programs and
arrangements of the Company now (or, to the extent determined by the Company, hereafter) in effect, subject to and in accordance
with their terms, including pension benefits and medical and welfare benefits, as such benefit plans, programs or arrangements may
be amended or terminated from time to time in accordance with their terms.

(d) Vacation, Sick Leave and Holidays. During the Term, the Executive shall be entitled to paid vacation, paid sick leave
and paid holidays in accordance with applicable laws and the Company’s policies in force from time to time.




(¢)  Equity.

@A) Eligibility. During the Term, the Executive shall be eligible to receive equity-based compensation awards
under the Equity Plan from time to time, as determined by the Board (or a committee thereof) in its sole discretion.

(i)  Vesting_of Performance-Based Equity Awards. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the
Equity Plan or any award agreement issued thereunder:

(A)  Change in Control. Upon a Change in Control, the performance period (or term of similar meaning)
applicable to any equity-based compensation awarded to the Executive under the Equity Plan that vests in whole or in
part upon the achievement of one or more performance goals (“Performance Awards”), whether granted prior to, on or
after the date hereof, shall end on the date of the Change in Control, and the Executive shall be eligible to vest in all
such Performance Awards on the last date of the service period applicable to each such Performance Award (the
“Vesting Date”), with all applicable performance goals deemed achieved at the “target” level, subject to the
Executive’s continued employment through such Vesting Date; provided, however, that if the Executive is terminated
without Cause pursuant to Section 4(a)(iv) or resigns with Good Reason pursuant to Section 4(a)(v), in each case at
any time (x) following the execution of a definitive agreement with a third party that, if consummated, would result in
a Change in Control, but before such transaction is consummated (and subject to such consummation), or (y) within
twenty-four (24) months following a Change in Control ((x) or (y), as applicable, a “CIC Qualifying Termination™),
then the Executive shall remain eligible to vest in such Performance Awards as described in this sentence, but the
Vesting Date shall occur on the date of such CIC Qualifying Termination (or, if later, the date of such Change in
Control). For the avoidance of doubt, the Vesting Date shall be deemed to be the “Determination Date” (or term of
similar meaning, if applicable), as defined in the applicable award agreement(s) pursuant to which such Performance
Awards were granted under the Equity Plan.

(B)  Death or Disability. If the Executive’s employment is terminated due to the Executive’s death or
Disability prior to the vesting of any then-outstanding Performance Awards, whether granted prior to, on or after the
date hereof, the Executive or the Executive’s beneficiary shall remain eligible to vest in a pro-rated portion of each
such Performance Award based on a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of completed months in the
applicable performance period (or term of similar meaning) at the time of such termination and the denominator of
which is the number of months in the applicable performance period, multiplied by the number of shares of common
stock which are finally determined to be earned and subject to the Performance Award following the completion of
the performance period. The portion of each Performance Award eligible to vest shall be based on actual results for
the applicable performance period and shall be determined in accordance with the terms of the applicable award
agreement(s) pursuant to which such Performance Awards were granted under the Equity Plan. Such Performance
Awards shall vest under the terms of the applicable award agreement as if the Executive had remained in service
through the applicable vesting date and performance certification date for each such Performance Award.




(i)  Vesting of Time-Based Equity Awards. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Equity Plan
or any award agreement issued thereunder:

(A)  Change in Control. If the Executive is terminated in a CIC Qualifying Termination, then the Executive
shall vest in full in any equity-based compensation awarded to the Executive under the Equity Plan (other than
Performance Awards), whether granted prior to, on or after the date hereof, on the date of such CIC Qualifying
Termination (or, if later, the date of the applicable Change in Control).

(B)  Death or Disability. If the Executive’s employment is terminated due to the Executive’s death or
Disability, then the Executive shall vest in full in any equity-based compensation awarded to the Executive under the
Equity Plan (other than Performance Awards), whether granted prior to, on or after the date hereof, as of the relevant
Date of Termination.

® Expenses. During the Term, the Company shall reimburse the Executive for all reasonable travel and other business
expenses incurred by the Executive in the performance of the Executive’s duties to the Company, in accordance with the Company’s
expense reimbursement policies and procedures.

(2) No Additional Compensation. Except as otherwise provided herein, the Executive shall not be entitled to any
additional compensation for service as a member of the Board (or any committee thereof) or other positions or titles the Executive
may hold with any subsidiary or Affiliate of the Company to the extent the Executive is so appointed.

4. Termination. The Executive’s employment hereunder may be terminated by the Company or the Executive, as applicable,
without any breach of this Agreement only under the following circumstances:

(a) Circumstances.

(1) Death. The Executive’s employment hereunder shall terminate upon the Executive’s death.

(i1) Disability. If the Executive has incurred a Disability, the Company may give the Executive written notice of
its intention to terminate the Executive’s employment. In that event, the Executive’s employment with the Company shall terminate
effective on the later of the thirtieth (30™) day after receipt of such notice by the Executive and the date specified in such notice;
provided, that within the thirty (30) day period following receipt of such notice, the Executive shall not have returned to full-time
performance of the Executive’s duties hereunder.

(iii)  Termination with Cause. The Company may terminate the Executive’s employment with Cause.

(iv)  Termination without Cause. The Company may terminate the Executive’s employment without Cause.

v) Resignation with Good Reason. The Executive may resign from the Executive’s employment with Good

Reason.



(vi)  Resignation without Good Reason. The Executive may resign from the Executive’s employment without Good
Reason upon not less than sixty (60) days’ advance written notice to the Board.

(b) Notice of Termination. Any termination of the Executive’s employment by the Company or by the Executive under
this Section 4 (other than termination pursuant to Section 4(a)(i)) shall be communicated by a written notice to the other party hereto
(1) indicating the specific termination provision in this Agreement relied upon, (ii) except with respect to a termination pursuant to
Section 4(a)(iv) or (vi), setting forth in reasonable detail the facts and circumstances claimed to provide a basis for termination of the
Executive’s employment under the provision so indicated and (iii) specifying a Date of Termination as provided herein (a “Notice of
Termination™). If the Company delivers a Notice of Termination under Section 4(a)(ii), the Date of Termination shall be at least
thirty (30) days following the date of such notice; provided, however, that such notice need not specify a Date of Termination, in
which case the Date of Termination shall be determined pursuant to Section 4(a)(ii). If the Company delivers a Notice of
Termination under Section 4(a)(iii) or 4(a)(iv), the Date of Termination shall be, in the Company’s sole discretion, the date on which
the Executive receives such notice or any subsequent date selected by the Company. If the Executive delivers a Notice of
Termination under Section 4(a)(v), the Date of Termination shall be at least thirty (30) days following the date of such notice;
provided, however, that the Company may, in its sole discretion, accelerate the Date of Termination to any date that occurs following
the Company’s receipt of such notice, without changing the characterization of such termination as voluntary, even if such date is
prior to the date specified in such notice and without having to pay any compensation or benefits for the balance of such notice
period. The failure by the Company or the Executive to set forth in the Notice of Termination any fact or circumstance that
contributes to a showing of Cause or Good Reason shall not waive any right of the Company or the Executive hereunder or preclude
the Company or the Executive from asserting such fact or circumstance in enforcing the Company’s or the Executive’s rights
hereunder.

(© Termination of All Positions. Upon termination of the Executive’s employment for any reason, the Executive agrees
to resign, as of the Date of Termination or such other date requested by the Company, from all positions on the Board and all
committees thereof (and, if applicable, from the board of directors or similar governing bodies (and all committees thereof) of all
other Affiliates of the Company) and from all other positions and offices that the Executive then holds with the Company and its
subsidiaries and Affiliates. The Executive agrees to promptly execute such documents as the Company, in its sole discretion, shall
reasonably deem necessary to effect such resignations.

5. Company Obligations upon Termination of Employment.

(a) In General. Subject to Section 10(b), upon termination of the Executive’s employment for any reason, the obligations
of the Company to pay or provide the Executive with compensation and benefits under Section 3 shall cease, and the Company shall
have no further obligations to provide compensation or benefits to the Executive hereunder, except the Executive (or the Executive’s
estate) shall be entitled to receive (i) any amount of the Executive’s Annual Base Salary earned through the Date of Termination not
theretofore paid, (ii) any amount arising from the Executive’s participation in, or benefits under, any employee benefit plans,
programs or arrangements under Section 3(c) (other than severance plans, programs or arrangements) or the Equity Plan (subject to
the terms and conditions of the Equity Plan and any applicable award agreement thereunder, as modified by Section 3(e)(ii) or (iii)
herein), which amounts shall be payable in accordance with the terms and conditions of such employee benefit plans, programs or
arrangements including, where applicable, any death and disability benefits, (iii) any accrued vacation pay owed to the Executive
pursuant to Section 3(d), (iv) any expenses owed to the



Executive under Section 3(f), and (v) subject to the Executive’s (or the Executive’s estate’s) satisfaction of the Release Requirement
(as defined below), any Annual Bonus for the year prior to the year in which the Date of Termination occurred that was earned but
not yet paid (the “Accrued Obligations”). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, upon a termination with Cause or a resignation
without Good Reason, the Accrued Obligations shall not include the amount set forth in clause (v) of the preceding sentence.

(b) Termination without Cause or Resignation with Good Reason. Subject to Section 10(b) and subject to the Executive’s
continued compliance with the covenants contained in Sections 6 and 7, if the Company terminates the Executive’s employment
without Cause pursuant to Section 4(a)(iv) or if the Executive resigns from employment with Good Reason pursuant to Section 4(a)
(v), the Company shall, in addition to the Accrued Obligations:

@A) pay to the Executive an aggregate amount equal to the product of (A) one and a half (1.5) and (B) the sum of
the Annual Base Salary and the higher of (1) the Target Bonus and (2) the average of the Annual Bonuses paid in or payable in
respect of (whichever results in the higher average) the three (3) completed calendar years that precede the Date of Termination, in
equal installments in accordance with the Company’s customary payroll practices during the eighteen (18)-month period (the
“Severance Period”) beginning on the Date of Termination and ending on the earlier to occur of (A) the expiration of the Severance
Period and (B) the first date that the Executive violates any covenant contained in Section 6 and 7 (the “Severance Payments”™);
provided, however, that if such termination is a CIC Qualifying Termination, then (x) the aggregate Severance Payments shall
instead be equal to the product of (A) two (2.0) and (B) the sum of the Annual Base Salary and the higher of (1) the Target Bonus
and (2) the average of the Annual Bonuses paid in or payable in respect of (whichever results in the higher average) the three (3)
completed calendar years that precede the Date of Termination, and (y) such Severance Payments shall instead be payable in a single
lump sum on the Company’s first regular payroll date that follows the sixtieth (60™) day following the Date of Termination;

(i1) subject to the Executive’s timely election of (and continued eligibility for) continued health coverage pursuant
to the federal law known as “COBRA,” the Company shall pay, during the twelve (12)-month period following the Date of
Termination (or until the Executive becomes eligible for comparable coverage under the health plans of a successor employer, if
earlier) (the “COBRA Period”), the applicable COBRA premiums for the Executive and any eligible dependents who participated in
the Company’s health plan as of immediately prior to the Date of Termination; provided, that in the event the Company would be
subject to any excise tax under Section 4980D of the Code or other penalty or liability pursuant to the provisions of the Patient
Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010 (as amended from time to time) or other applicable law (or to the extent such COBRA
subsidy is not permitted under the terms of the applicable benefit plan or applicable law), and in lieu of providing the COBRA
subsidy described above, the Company shall instead pay to the Executive a fully taxable monthly cash payment in an amount such
that, after payment by the Executive of all taxes on such payment, the Executive retains an amount equal to the applicable COBRA
premiums for such month (or the last month in which COBRA coverage was available to the Executive), with such monthly payment
being made on the last day of each month for the remainder of the COBRA Period. For the avoidance of doubt, the Executive’s
health benefit coverage from the Company during the COBRA Period shall run concurrent with the health continuation coverage
period mandated by Section 4980B of the Code;

(iii)  pay the Executive a prorated portion of the Annual Bonus payable with respect to the calendar year in which
such termination occurs, determined on a daily basis, based solely on the actual level of achievement of the applicable performance
goals for such year, and



payable if and when annual bonuses are paid to other senior executives of the Company with respect to such year;

(iv)  provide the Executive with up to twelve (12) months of outplacement assistance through the Company’s then-
current outplacement vendor (or, if no such vendor exists, through an outplacement vendor of the Company’s choice); and

v) if such termination is a CIC Qualifying Termination, then the Company shall pay the Executive a prorated
portion of the annual profit sharing program bonus payable with respect to the calendar year in which such termination occurs,
determined on a daily basis, based solely on the actual level of achievement of the applicable performance goals for such year, and
payable if and when annual profit sharing program bonuses are paid to other senior executives of the Company with respect to such
year;

provided, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing, (A) the amounts payable to the Executive under this Section 5(b) shall be
contingent upon and subject to the Executive’s execution and non-revocation of a general waiver and release of claims agreement
(the “Release™) in the Company’s customary form attached hereto as Exhibit A (and the expiration of any applicable revocation
period), on or prior to the sixtieth (60") day following the Date of Termination (the “Release Requirement”); and (B) any installment
payments pursuant to this Section 5(b) shall commence on the first payroll period following the effective date of such Release, and
the initial installment shall include a lump-sum payment of all amounts accrued under this Section 5(b) from the Date of Termination
through the date of such initial payment.

(©) Survival. The expiration or termination of the Term shall not impair the rights or obligations of any party hereto,
which shall have accrued prior to such expiration or termination.

(d)  No Other Severance. The Executive expressly acknowledges that any severance payments and benefits under this
Section 5 are in lieu of any other payments or benefits that the Executive may otherwise be eligible to receive under any Company
plan, policy or program providing for severance, separation pay or salary continuation payments or benefits.

6. Non-Competition; Non-Solicitation; Non-Hire.

(a) Survival of Restrictive Covenants Agreement. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, the
Restrictive Covenants Agreement, by and between the Company and the Executive, dated as of May [ ], 2025 and effective as of
the Effective Date, shall survive and remain in full force and effect following the Effective Date, and is incorporated by reference as
though fully set forth herein.

(b) Non-Solicitation of Customers and Suppliers. The Executive agrees that the Company’s relationships with its
customers and suppliers are solely the assets and property of the Company, and therefore the Executive agrees that at any time
during the Executive’s employment and for a period of two (2) years following termination of the Executive’s employment with the
Company for any reason, the Executive shall not directly or through others solicit or attempt to solicit any of the Company’s
customers and/or suppliers for the purpose of providing products or services competitive to those offered by the Company. This
restriction applies only to those customers and/or suppliers with whom the Executive had material contact on behalf of the Company.
“Material contact” means: (i) direct personal contact with a supplier or customer for the purpose of, respectively, purchasing real
estate, materials or services for use by the Company or selling the Company’s real estate, products or services to customers or (ii)




any direct supervision of direct personal contacts other employees of the Company may have with suppliers and/or customers. For
purposes of this Section 6(b), the terms “customer” and “supplier” shall also include prospective customers and suppliers of the
Company.

(c) Non-Solicitation of Employees. The Executive agrees that the Company has invested substantial time and effort in
assembling and training its present staff of personnel. Accordingly, the Executive agrees that at any time during the Executive’s
employment and for a period of two (2) years following termination of the Executive’s employment with the Company for any
reason, the Executive will not directly or indirectly induce or solicit, or seek to induce or solicit, on behalf of the Executive or other
persons or entities any of the Company’s employees to leave employment with the Company if such employee was employed by the
Company during the last six (6) months of the Executive’s employment.

(d) Company_Defined. As used in this Section 6, the term “Company” shall include the Company and any direct or
indirect subsidiaries and Affiliates thereof and any successors thereto.

7. Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information; Non-Disparagement; Intellectual Property.

(a) Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information; Return of Property.

(1) Confidential Information. Except as required in the faithful performance of the Executive’s duties hereunder,
during the Term and in perpetuity thereafter, the Executive shall maintain in confidence and shall not directly, indirectly or
otherwise, use, disseminate, disclose or publish, or use for the Executive’s benefit or the benefit of any Person, any confidential or
proprietary information or trade secrets of or relating to the Company or any of its Affiliates, including, without limitation,
information with respect to the Company’s or any of its Affiliates’ operations, protocols, processes, products, inventions, business
practices, finances, principals, vendors, suppliers, customers, potential customers, marketing methods, costs, prices, contractual
relationships, regulatory status, compensation paid to employees or other terms of employment (“Confidential Information”), or
deliver to any Person any document, record, notebook, computer program or similar repository of or containing any such
Confidential Information; provided, that the Executive’s good faith performance of the Executive’s duties and responsibilities for the
Company and its Affiliates during employment shall not be deemed a breach of this Section 7(a). Upon the Executive’s termination
of employment for any reason, the Executive shall promptly deliver to the Company all correspondence, drawings, manuals, letters,
notes, notebooks, reports, programs, plans, proposals, financial documents or any other documents concerning the Company’s or any
of its Affiliates’ Confidential Information, customers, business plans, marketing strategies, products or processes. The Executive may
respond to a lawful and valid subpoena or other legal process but shall give the Company the earliest possible notice thereof, shall,
as much in advance of the return date as possible, make available to the Company and its counsel the documents and other
information sought and shall assist such counsel in resisting or otherwise responding to such process.

(i1) Permissible Disclosure of Confidential Information. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained
herein, nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit the Executive from reporting possible violations of federal law or regulation to or
otherwise cooperating with or providing information requested by any governmental agency or entity, including, but not limited to,
the Department of Justice, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Congress and any agency Inspector General, or making
other disclosures that are protected under the whistleblower provisions of federal law or regulation. The Executive does not need the
prior authorization of the Company to make any such reports or disclosures and the Executive is not required to notify the Company
that the Executive has made such reports or disclosures.
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(b)  Non-Disparagement. The Executive shall not, at any time during the Executive’s employment and following the
Executive’s termination of employment for any reason, make statements or representations, or otherwise communicate, directly or
indirectly, in writing, orally, or otherwise, or take any action which may, directly or indirectly, disparage or be damaging to the
Company, its subsidiaries or Affiliates or their respective officers, directors, employees, advisors, businesses or reputations.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Agreement shall preclude the Executive from making truthful statements that are
required by applicable law, regulation or legal process.

(c) Intellectual Property Rights.

(1) Inventions and Proprietary Rights. The Executive agrees that the results and proceeds of the Executive’s
services for the Company or its subsidiaries or Affiliates (including, but not limited to, any trade secrets, products, services,
processes, know-how, designs, developments, innovations, analyses, drawings, reports, techniques, formulas, methods,
developmental or experimental work, improvements, discoveries, inventions, ideas, source and object codes, programs, matters of a
literary, musical, dramatic or otherwise creative nature, writings and other works of authorship) resulting from services performed
while an employee of the Company and any works in progress, whether or not patentable or registrable under copyright or similar
statutes, that were made, developed, conceived or reduced to practice or learned by the Executive, either alone or jointly with others
(collectively, “Inventions”), shall be works-made-for-hire and the Company (or, if applicable or as directed by the Company, any of
its subsidiaries or Affiliates) shall be deemed the sole owner throughout the universe of any and all trade secret, patent, copyright
and other intellectual property rights (collectively, “Proprietary Rights”) of whatsoever nature therein, whether or not now or
hereafter known, existing, contemplated, recognized or developed, with the right to use the same in perpetuity in any manner the
Company determines in its sole discretion, without any further payment to the Executive whatsoever. If, for any reason, any of such
results and proceeds shall not legally be a work-made-for-hire and/or there are any Proprietary Rights which do not accrue to the
Company (or, as the case may be, any of its subsidiaries or Affiliates) under the immediately preceding sentence, then the Executive
hereby irrevocably assigns and agrees to assign any and all of the Executive’s right, title and interest thereto, including, without
limitation, any and all Proprietary Rights of whatsoever nature therein, whether or not now or hereafter known, existing,
contemplated, recognized or developed, to the Company (or, if applicable or as directed by the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
Affiliates), and the Company or such subsidiaries or Affiliates shall have the right to use the same in perpetuity throughout the
universe in any manner determined by the Company or such subsidiaries or Affiliates without any further payment to the Executive
whatsoever. As to any Invention that the Executive is required to assign, the Executive shall promptly and fully disclose to the
Company all information known to the Executive concerning such Invention. The Executive hereby waives and quitclaims to the
Company any and all claims, of any nature whatsoever, that the Executive now or may hereafter have for infringement of any
Proprietary Rights assigned hereunder to the Company.

(i1) Executive Assistance. The Executive agrees that, from time to time, as may be requested by the Company and
at the Company’s sole cost and expense, the Executive shall do any and all things that the Company may reasonably deem useful or
desirable to establish or document the Company’s exclusive ownership throughout the United States of America or any other country
of any and all Proprietary Rights in any such Inventions, including, without limitation, the execution of appropriate copyright and/or
patent applications or assignments. To the extent the Executive has any Proprietary Rights in the Inventions that cannot be assigned
in the manner described above, the Executive unconditionally and irrevocably waives the enforcement of such Proprietary Rights.
This Section 7(c) is subject to and shall not be deemed to limit, restrict or constitute any waiver by the Company of any Proprietary
Rights of
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ownership to which the Company may be entitled by operation of law by virtue of the Executive’s employment with the Company.
The Executive further agrees that, from time to time, as may be requested by the Company and at the Company’s sole cost and
expense, the Executive shall assist the Company in every proper and lawful way to obtain and from time to time enforce Proprietary
Rights relating to Inventions in any and all countries. To this end, the Executive shall execute, verify and deliver such documents and
perform such other acts (including appearances as a witness) as the Company may reasonably request for use in applying for,
obtaining, perfecting, evidencing, sustaining and enforcing such Proprietary Rights and the assignment thereof. In addition, the
Executive shall execute, verify and deliver assignments of such Proprietary Rights to the Company or its designees. The Executive’s
obligation to assist the Company with respect to Proprietary Rights relating to such Inventions in any and all countries shall continue
beyond the termination of the Executive’s employment with the Company.

(iii)  Permissible Disclosure of Trade Secrets. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the
Executive shall not be held criminally or civilly liable under any federal or state trade secret law for any disclosure of a trade secret
that is made: (A) in confidence to a federal, state or local government official, either directly or indirectly, or to an attorney; and (B)
solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law; or is made in a complaint or other document that is
filed under seal in a lawsuit or other proceeding. If the Executive files a lawsuit for retaliation by the Company for reporting a
suspected violation of law, the Executive may disclose the Company’s trade secrets to the Executive’s attorney and use the trade
secret information in the court proceeding if the Executive: (1) files any document containing the trade secret under seal; and (2)
does not disclose the trade secret, except pursuant to court order.

(d) Company_Defined. As used in this Section 7, the term “Company” shall include the Company and any direct or
indirect subsidiaries and Affiliates thereof and any successors thereto.

8. Indemnification. The Executive shall be entitled to indemnification in accordance with the terms of that certain
Indemnification Agreement, by and among TMHC and the Executive, effective as of the Effective Date, which is incorporated by
reference as though fully set forth herein.

9. Cooperation. The Executive agrees that during and after the Executive’s employment with the Company, the Executive shall
assist the Company and its Affiliates in the defense of any claims or potential claims that may be made or threatened to be made
against the Company or any of its Affiliates in any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, investigative or
otherwise, that are not adverse to the Executive (each, an “Action”), and shall assist the Company and its Affiliates in the
prosecution of any claims that may be made by the Company or any of its Affiliates in any Action, to the extent that such claims may
relate to the Executive’s employment or the period of the Executive’s employment by the Company and its Affiliates. The Executive
agrees, unless precluded by law, to promptly inform the Company if the Executive is asked to participate (or otherwise become
involved) in any such Action. The Executive also agrees, unless precluded by law, to promptly inform the Company if the Executive
is asked to assist in any investigation (whether governmental or otherwise) of the Company or any of its Affiliates (or their actions)
to the extent that such investigation may relate to the Executive’s employment or the period of the Executive’s employment by the
Company, regardless of whether a lawsuit has then been filed against the Company or any of its Affiliates with respect to such
investigation. The Company or one of its Affiliates shall reimburse the Executive for all of the Executive’s reasonable out-of-pocket
expenses associated with such cooperation following the Executive’s Date of Termination; provided, that any such cooperation
occurring after the termination of the Executive’s employment shall be scheduled to the extent
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reasonably practicable so as not to unreasonably interfere with the Executive’s business or personal affairs.

10. Section 409A of the Code.

(a) General. The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that, to the extent applicable, this Agreement shall be interpreted
in accordance with, and incorporate the terms and conditions required by, Section 409A of the Code and the Department of Treasury
Regulations and other interpretive guidance issued thereunder, including without limitation any such regulations or other guidance
that may be issued after the Effective Date (“Section 409A”). Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, in
the event that the Company determines that any amounts payable hereunder will be taxable currently to the Executive under Section
409A(a)(1)(A) of the Code and related Department of Treasury guidance, the Company and the Executive shall cooperate in good
faith to (i) adopt such amendments to this Agreement and appropriate policies and procedures, including amendments and policies
with retroactive effect, that they mutually determine to be necessary or appropriate to preserve the intended tax treatment of the
benefits provided by this Agreement, to preserve the economic benefits of this Agreement and to avoid less favorable accounting or
tax consequences for the Company, and/or (ii) take such other actions as mutually determined to be necessary or appropriate to
exempt the amounts payable hereunder from Section 409A or to comply with the requirements of Section 409A and thereby avoid
the application of penalty taxes thereunder; provided, however, that this Section 10(a) does not create an obligation on the part of the
Company to modify this Agreement and does not guarantee that the amounts payable hereunder will not be subject to interest or
penalties under Section 409A, and in no event whatsoever shall the Company or any of its Affiliates be liable for any additional tax,
interest or penalties that may be imposed on the Executive as a result of Section 409A or any damages for failing to comply with
Section 409A.

(b) Special Rules. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this Agreement: (i) no amount shall be payable
pursuant to Section 5 unless the termination of the Executive’s employment constitutes a “separation from service” within the
meaning of Section 1.409A-1(h) of the Department of Treasury Regulations; (ii) if the Executive is deemed at the time of the
Executive’s separation from service to be a “specified employee” for purposes of Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of the Code, to the extent
that delayed commencement of any portion of the termination benefits to which the Executive is entitled under this Agreement (after
taking into account all exclusions applicable to such termination benefits under Section 409A), including, without limitation, any
portion of the additional compensation awarded pursuant to Section 5, is required in order to avoid a prohibited distribution under
Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of the Code, such portion of the Executive’s termination benefits shall not be provided to the Executive
prior to the earlier of (A) the expiration of the six (6)-month period measured from the date of the Executive’s “separation from
service” with the Company (as such term is defined in the Department of Treasury Regulations issued under Section 409A) and
(B) the date of the Executive’s death; provided, that upon the earlier of such dates, all payments deferred pursuant to this Section
10(b)(ii) shall be paid to the Executive in a lump sum, and any remaining payments due under this Agreement shall be paid as
otherwise provided herein; (iii) the determination of whether the Executive is a “specified employee” for purposes of Section
409A(a)(2)(B)(1) of the Code as of the time of the Executive’s separation from service shall be made by the Company in accordance
with the terms of Section 409A and applicable guidance thereunder (including, without limitation, Section 1.409A-1(i) of the
Department of Treasury Regulations and any successor provision thereto); (iv) for purposes of Section 409A, the Executive’s right to
receive installment payments pursuant to Section 5 shall be treated as a right to receive a series of separate and distinct payments;
and (v) to the extent that any reimbursement of expenses or in-kind benefits constitutes “deferred compensation” under Section
409A, (A) such reimbursement or benefit shall be provided no later than December 31 of the year following
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the year in which the expense was incurred, (B) the amount of expenses reimbursed in one year shall not affect the amount eligible
for reimbursement in any subsequent year, (C) the amount of any in-kind benefits provided in one year shall not affect the amount of
in-kind benefits provided in any other year and (D) the right to any benefits or reimbursements or in-kind benefits may not be
liquidated or exchanged for any other benefit. Neither the Executive nor any of the Executive’s creditors or beneficiaries shall have
the right to subject any “deferred compensation” under Section 409A payable under this Agreement to any anticipation, alienation,
sale, transfer, assignment, pledge, encumbrance, attachment or garnishment. Except as permitted under Section 409A, any “deferred
compensation” under Section 409A payable to the Executive or for the Executive’s benefit may not be reduced by, or offset against,
any amount owing by the Executive to the Company or any of its Affiliates.

11. Section 280G of the Code.

(a) If there is a change of ownership or effective control or change in the ownership of a substantial portion of the assets
of a corporation (within the meaning of Section 280G of the Code) (a “280G Change in Control”) and any payment or benefit
(including payments and benefits pursuant to this Agreement) that the Executive would receive from the Company, TMHC or
otherwise (“Transaction Payment) would (i) constitute a “parachute payment” within the meaning of Section 280G of the Code and
(ii) but for this sentence, be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code (the “Excise Tax”), then the Company
shall cause to be determined, before any amounts of the Transaction Payment are paid to the Executive, which of the following two
alternative forms of payment would result in the Executive’s receipt, on an after-tax basis, of the greater amount of the Transaction
Payment notwithstanding that all or some portion of the Transaction Payment may be subject to the Excise Tax: (A) payment in full
of the entire amount of the Transaction Payment (a “Full Payment”), or (B) payment of only a part of the Transaction Payment so
that the Executive receives the largest payment possible without the imposition of the Excise Tax (a “Reduced Payment”). For
purposes of determining whether to make a Full Payment or a Reduced Payment, the Company shall cause to be taken into account
all applicable federal, state and local income and employment taxes and the Excise Tax (all computed at the highest applicable
marginal rate, net of the maximum reduction in federal income taxes which could be obtained from a deduction of such state and
local taxes). If a Reduced Payment is made, the reduction in payments and/or benefits will occur in the following order: (1) first,
reduction of cash payments, in reverse order of scheduled payment date (or if necessary, to zero), (2) then, reduction of non-cash and
non-equity benefits provided to the Executive, on a pro rata basis (or if necessary, to zero) and (3) then, cancellation of the
acceleration of vesting of equity award compensation in the reverse order of the date of grant of the Executive’s equity awards.

(b) Unless the Executive and the Company otherwise agree in writing, any determination required under this section shall
be made in writing by the Company’s independent public accountants (the “Accountants”), whose determination shall be conclusive
and binding upon the Executive and the Company for all purposes. For purposes of making the calculations required by this section,
the Accountants may make reasonable assumptions and approximations concerning applicable taxes and may rely on reasonable,
good faith interpretations concerning the application of Sections 280G and 4999 of the Code. The Accountants shall provide detailed
supporting calculations to the Company and the Executive as requested by the Company or the Executive. The Executive and the
Company shall furnish to the Accountants such information and documents as the Accountants may reasonably request in order to
make a determination under this section. The Company shall bear all costs the Accountants may reasonably incur in connection with
any calculations contemplated by this Section 11.
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12.  Assignment and Successors. The Company may assign its rights and obligations under this Agreement to any of its Affiliates,
and shall require any successor to all or substantially all the assets of the Company, by merger or otherwise, to assume this
Agreement in the same manner and to the same extent that the Company would have been required to perform it if no such
succession had taken place. The Company may assign or encumber this Agreement and its rights hereunder as security for
indebtedness of the Company and its Affiliates. The Executive may not assign the Executive’s rights or obligations under this
Agreement to any individual or entity. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company and the
Executive and their respective successors, assigns, personnel, legal representatives, executors, administrators, heirs, distributees,
devisees and legatees, as applicable. In the event of the Executive’s death following a termination of the Executive’s employment, all
unpaid amounts otherwise due the Executive (including under Section 5) shall be paid to the Executive’s estate.

13. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed, construed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the substantive
laws of the State of Arizona, without reference to the principles of conflicts of law of Arizona or any other jurisdiction, and where
applicable, the laws of the United States.

14.  Validity. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision or provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect.

15. Notices. Any notice, request, claim, demand, document and other communication hereunder to any party hereto shall be
effective upon receipt (or refusal of receipt) and shall be in writing and delivered personally or sent by nationally recognized
overnight courier, or certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, to the following address (or at any other address as any party
hereto shall have specified by notice in writing to the other party hereto):

(a) If to the Company:

Taylor Morrison, Inc.

4900 N. Scottsdale Road

Suite 2000

Scottsdale, AZ 85251

Attention: Senior Vice President of Total Rewards

(b) If to the Executive, at the Executive’s most recent address on the payroll records of the Company.

16. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts (including by facsimile transmission or electronic
image scan (PDF)), each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together will constitute one and the same
Agreement.

17. Entire Agreement. The terms of this Agreement (together with any other agreements and instruments contemplated hereby or
referred to herein) is intended by the parties hereto to be the final expression of their agreement with respect to the employment of
the Executive by the Company and may not be contradicted by evidence of any prior or contemporaneous agreement. The parties
hereto further intend that this Agreement shall constitute the complete and exclusive statement of its terms and that no extrinsic
evidence whatsoever may be introduced in any judicial, administrative or other legal proceeding to vary the terms of this Agreement.

15



18.  Amendments; Waivers. This Agreement may not be modified, amended or terminated except by an instrument in writing
signed by the Executive and a duly authorized officer of Company (other than the Executive) that expressly identifies the amended
provision of this Agreement. By an instrument in writing similarly executed and similarly identifying the waived compliance, the
Executive or a duly authorized officer of the Company may waive compliance by the other party or parties with any provision of this
Agreement that such other party was or is obligated to comply with or perform; provided, however, that such waiver shall not
operate as a waiver of, or estoppel with respect to, any other or subsequent failure to comply or perform. No failure to exercise and
no delay in exercising any right, remedy or power hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise of any other right, remedy
or power provided herein or by law or in equity.

19.  No Inconsistent Actions. The parties hereto shall not voluntarily undertake or fail to undertake any action or course of action
inconsistent with the provisions or essential intent of this Agreement. Furthermore, it is the intent of the parties hereto to act in a fair
and reasonable manner with respect to the interpretation and application of the provisions of this Agreement.

20.  Construction. This Agreement shall be deemed drafted equally by both of the parties hereto. Its language shall be construed
as a whole and according to its fair meaning. Any presumption or principle that the language is to be construed against any party
shall not apply. The headings in this Agreement are only for convenience and are not intended to affect construction or interpretation.
Any references to paragraphs, subparagraphs, sections or subsections are to those parts of this Agreement, unless the context clearly
indicates to the contrary. Also, unless the context clearly indicates to the contrary: (a) the plural includes the singular, and the
singular includes the plural; (b) “and” and “or” are each used both conjunctively and disjunctively; (c) “any,” “all,” “each,” or
“every” means “any and all,” and “each and every”; (d) “includes” and “including” are each “without limitation”; and (e) “herein,”
“hereof,” “hereunder,” and other similar compounds of the word “here” refer to the entire Agreement and not to any particular
paragraph, subparagraph, section or subsection.

21.  Dispute Resolution. The parties understand and agree that except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any
claim of any nature whatsoever, including those arising out of or connected with the Executive’s employment with the Company,
including but not limited to wrongful termination, breach of contract, defamation, and claims of discrimination (including age,
disability, sex, religion, national origin, race, color, etc.), harassment or retaliation whether under federal, state or local laws,
regulations, or Executive Orders, common law, or in equity, shall be decided by submission to final and binding arbitration in
Scottsdale, Arizona. The arbitrator shall be a retired or former state or federal court judge. The parties further agree that the
performance of the Executive’s duties as contemplated by this Agreement involves commerce. This arbitration provision shall be
governed by the Federal Arbitration Act. The arbitrator shall apply the law (including applicable filing limitations periods and
exhaustion of administrative remedies) to the same extent and with same force and effect as would an Arizona court or a federal
court sitting in Arizona. The arbitration shall be pursuant to rules and procedures adopted by the Company, and failing such
adoption, the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. Judgment shall be final upon the award rendered by the arbitrator and may be
entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof, and each of the parties shall be responsible for its respective legal fees and expenses.
The parties further understand and agree that actions seeking temporary injunctions are hereby excluded from arbitration and,
therefore, may be sought in a court of appropriate jurisdiction without resort to arbitration, even though resolution of the underlying
claim must be submitted to arbitration.
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22. EACH PARTY HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ALL RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY SUIT, ACTION OR
OTHER PROCEEDING INSTITUTED BY OR AGAINST SUCH PARTY IN RESPECT OF ITS RIGHTS OR OBLIGATIONS
HEREUNDER.

23. Enforcement. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable under present or future laws
effective during the term of this Agreement, such provision shall be fully severable, this Agreement shall be construed and enforced
as if such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision were never a part of this Agreement, and the remaining provisions of this
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall not be affected by the illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision or by its
severance from this Agreement. Furthermore, in lieu of such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision, there shall be added
automatically as part of this Agreement a provision as similar in terms to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision as may be
possible and be legal, valid and enforceable.

24. Withholding. The Company shall be entitled to withhold from any amounts payable under this Agreement any federal, state,
local and foreign withholding and other taxes and charges that the Company is required to withhold. The Company shall be entitled
to rely on an opinion of counsel if any questions as to the amount or requirement of withholding shall arise.

25. Employee Representations. The Executive represents, warrants and covenants that (a) the Executive has read and understands
this Agreement, is fully aware of its legal effect, has not acted in reliance upon any representations or promises made by the
Company other than those contained in writing herein and has entered into this Agreement freely based on the Executive’s own
judgment, (b) the Executive has the full right, authority and capacity to enter into this Agreement and perform the Executive’s
obligations hereunder, (c) the Executive is not bound by any agreement that conflicts with or prevents or restricts the full
performance of the Executive’s duties and obligations to the Company hereunder during or after the Term and (d) the execution and
delivery of this Agreement shall not result in any breach or violation of, or a default under, any existing obligation, commitment or
agreement to which the Executive is subject.

[signature page follows]
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The parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first written above.

TAYLOR MORRISON, INC.

By:

Name: Sheryl Palmer
Title: Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer

TODD MERRILL

[Signature Page to Taylor Morrison Amended and Restated Employment Agreement]



EXHIBIT A
Form of Release of Claims

This Release of Claims is provided by me, the undersigned, pursuant to the Employment Agreement between me and Taylor
Morrison, Inc., effective as of June 1, 2025 (the “Employment Agreement”). All capitalized terms used in this Release of Claims, but
not defined herein, shall have the meaning ascribed to those terms in the Employment Agreement.

1. In consideration of the pay and benefits to be provided to me in connection with the termination of my employment,
as set forth in Section 5(a)(v) and (b) of the Employment Agreement (the “Severance Payments”), which are conditioned upon my
signing (and not revoking) this Release of Claims and to which I am not otherwise entitled, and for other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, I, on my own behalf and on behalf of my heirs,
executors, beneficiaries and personal representatives, successors and assigns, and all others connected with or claiming through me
(collectively, the “Releasors™), hereby release and forever discharge the Company and TMHC, and their subsidiaries and other
Affiliates and all of their respective past, present and future officers, directors, shareholders, parents, employees, agents, general and
limited partners, members, managers, joint venturers, trustees, employee benefit plans and their administrators and fiduciaries,
representatives, agents, predecessors, successors and assigns, and all others connected with any of them, both individually and in
their official capacities (collectively, the “Released Parties”), from any and all causes of action, rights and claims, of any nature or
type, known or unknown, fixed or contingent, in law or in equity, which I have had in the past, now have, or might now have,
through the date of my signing of this Release of Claims, including, but not limited to, any such causes of action, rights or claims in
any way resulting from, arising out of or connected with my employment by or other relationship with the Released Parties or the
termination of that employment and/or relationship or pursuant to any federal, state or local law, regulation or other requirement
(including, without limitation, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act (“ADEA,” a law
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age), the Older Workers Benefit Protection Act, the National Labor Relations Act, the
Civil Rights Act of 1991, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, the
Family and Medical Leave Act, the Worker Adjustment Retraining and Notification Act and similar state laws, the Equal Pay Act,
the Fair Labor Standards Act, the Securities Act of 1933, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the
Arizona Wage Act, the Arizona Equal Pay Act, the Arizona Employment Protection Act, the Arizona Civil Rights Act, the Arizona
Occupational Health and Safety Act, the Arizona Right to Work Act, the Arizona Drug Testing of Employees Act, the Arizona
Medical Marijuana Act, the Arizona criminal code, the Americans with Disabilities Act, and any other federal, state and local laws
relating to discrimination on the basis of age, sex or other protected class, express or implied breach of contract, wrongful discharge,
defamation, intentional infliction of emotional distress, and any related claims for attorneys’ fees and costs, each as amended from
time to time); provided, that nothing herein shall release any claim arising after the effective date of the termination of my
employment.




Excluded from the scope of this Release of Claims are: (i) any rights of indemnification or contribution that I have pursuant to
Section 8 of the Employment Agreement, the articles of incorporation or by-laws of the Company, TMHC or any of their
subsidiaries, (ii) any right I have to the Severance Payments, (iii) vested rights to benefits under employee benefit plans of the
Company, TMHC or their subsidiaries and (iv) rights that cannot be released as a matter of law (collectively, “Unreleased Claims™).

2. I acknowledge and agree that this Release of Claims may be pleaded as a full defense to any action, suit, arbitration or
other proceeding covered by the terms hereof which is or may be initiated by any of the Releasors.

3. I acknowledge that neither I nor any of the Releasors has filed any complaint, charge, claim or proceeding against any
of the Released Parties before any local, state, federal or foreign agency, court, arbitrator, mediator, arbitration or mediation panel or
other body (each individually, a “Proceeding”). I represent that I am not aware of any basis on which such a Proceeding could
reasonably be instituted, except as I have expressly disclosed to the Company in writing. I (i) acknowledge that I shall not initiate or
cause to be initiated on my behalf, and shall not participate in, any Proceeding (except with respect to an Unreleased Claim), except
as required by law, and (ii) waive any right that [ may have to benefit in any manner from any relief (whether monetary or otherwise)
arising out of any Proceeding, including any Proceeding conducted by the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (“EEOQC”).
Further, I understand that, by executing this Release of Claims, I shall be limiting the availability of certain remedies that I may have
against the Company and limiting also my ability to pursue certain claims against the Released Parties. Notwithstanding the above,
nothing in Section 1 of this Release of Claims shall prevent me from (a) initiating or causing to be initiated on my behalf any
complaint, charge, claim or proceeding against the Company before any local, state or federal agency, court or other body
challenging the validity of the waiver of my claims under ADEA contained in Section 1 of this Release of Claims (but no other
portion of such waiver), or (b) initiating or participating in an investigation or proceeding conducted by the EEOC.

4. I represent and warrant that I have returned to the Company any and all Confidential Information and other property
of the Company and its Affiliates that I had in my possession, custody or control on the date my employment with the Company
terminated and that I have retained no such property. Without limiting the foregoing, I also represent and warrant that I have retained
no copy of any such documents, materials or information.

5. In signing this Release of Claims, I acknowledge that I have had a reasonable amount of time to consider the terms of
this Release of Claims and that I am signing this Release of Claims voluntarily and with a full understanding of its terms. I
acknowledge my understanding that I may not sign this Release of Claims prior to the termination of my employment, but that I may
consider the terms of this Release of Claims for up to [twenty-one (21)][forty-five (45)]' days (or such longer period as the Company
may specify in order to render

! To be selected based on whether applicable termination was “in connection with an exit incentive or other employment termination program” (as such phrase
is defined in the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967).
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this Release of Claims fully effective) from the date I receive this Release of Claims. I also acknowledge that I am advised by the
Company, TMHC and their Affiliates to seek the advice of an attorney prior to signing this Release of Claims and that I have, in fact,
consulted with an attorney prior to signing this Release of Claims; that I have had sufficient time to consider this Release of Claims
and to consult with an attorney, if I wished to do so, or to consult with any other person of my choosing before signing; and that I am
signing this Release of Claims voluntarily and with a full understanding of its terms.

6. I further acknowledge that, in signing this Release of Claims, I have not relied on any promises or representations,
express or implied, that are not set forth expressly herein. I understand that I may revoke this Release of Claims at any time within
seven (7) days of the date of my signing by written notice to the Company in accordance with Section 15 of the Employment
Agreement and that neither the Company nor any other person is obligated to provide any of the Severance Payments to me until
eight (8) days have passed since my signing of this Release of Claims without my having revoked this Release of Claims. If I revoke
this Release of Claims, I shall be deemed not to have accepted the terms of this Release of Claims, and no action shall be required of
any of the Released Parties under any section of this Release of Claims.

7. I acknowledge and agree that I continue to be bound by the provisions of Sections 6, 7, and 9 of the Employment
Agreement, which shall survive my termination of employment with the Company and remain in full force and effect in accordance
with their terms. On the date of my termination, the Company hereby agrees to use reasonable efforts to advise its executive officers
not to make any statements or representations, or otherwise communicate, directly or indirectly, in writing, orally, or otherwise,
regarding me that are disparaging or damaging to my reputation.

8. This Release of Claims does not constitute an admission of liability or wrongdoing of any kind by the Company or

9. In accordance with Section 4(c) of the Employment Agreement, I hereby resign from all positions on the Board and
all committees thereof (and, if applicable, from the board of directors or similar governing bodies (and all committees thereof) of all
other Affiliates of the Company) and from all other positions and offices that I hold with the Company and its subsidiaries and
Affiliates. I agree to promptly execute such further documents as the Company, in its sole discretion, shall reasonably deem
necessary to effect the foregoing.

10. The provisions of this Release of Claims shall be binding upon my heirs, executors, administrators, legal
representatives and assigns. A failure of any of the Released Parties to insist on strict compliance with any provision of this Release
of Claims shall not be deemed a waiver of such provision or any other provision hereof. If any provision of this Release of Claims is
determined to be so broad as to be unenforceable, such provision shall be interpreted to be only so broad as is enforceable, and in the
event that any provision is determined to be entirely unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable, such that all other
provisions of this Release of Claims shall remain valid and binding upon me. For the

A-3



avoidance of doubt, each of the Released Parties shall be a third-party beneficiary to this Release of Claims and shall be entitled to
enforce this Release of Claims in accordance with its terms.

11. With respect to the matters herein stated as the subject of release, I do hereby waive and relinquish any and all rights
which [ may have under the laws of the State of Arizona.

12. This Release of Claims shall be governed, construed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the substantive
laws of the State of Arizona, without reference to the principles of conflicts of law of Arizona or any other jurisdiction, and where
applicable, the laws of the United States.

Intending to be legally bound, I have signed this Release of Claims as of the date written below.

Signature:
(not to be executed until termination of employment)

Name (please print):

Date Signed:

Acknowledged.:

TAYLOR MORRISON, INC.

By:
Name:
Title:
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Exhibit 19.1

Re: Taylor Morrison Home Corporation Securities Trading Policy

Dear Taylor Morrison Team Members:

Attached is a copy of our Securities Trading Policy (the “Policy’), which applies to all directors, officers and employees of
our company. Please read the entire Policy carefully. The Policy will be maintained for your reference on TM360.

All directors, officers and employees must electronically acknowledge their review and compliance with the Policy annually.
New employees must electronically acknowledge their review and compliance with the Policy as promptly as possible following the
effective date of their employment with the Company.

Breaches of this policy are serious matters and may result in investigations by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
(the “SEC”), sanctions, fines and penalties (including termination), and criminal prosecution for which you may be personally liable.
U.S. securities laws impose liability not only on persons who trade on or “tip” inside information to others but also on companies
that fail to take reasonable steps to prevent insider trading by company employees. This Policy is designed to prevent the violation of
U.S. securities laws by our directors, officers and employees.

If you have any questions about the Policy, please contact our Chief Legal Officer, Todd Merrill, at (813) 227-4244 or
TMerrill@taylormorrison.com.

Thank you for your careful review and electronic acknowledgement of the Policy to ensure that each member of our team
and our company can operate with the highest standards of integrity and regulatory compliance.



TAYLOR MORRISON HOME CORPORATION

SECURITIES TRADING POLICY

This Securities Trading Policy (“Policy”) contains the following sections:

1.0 General

2.0 Definitions

3.0 General Statement of Policy

4.0 Other Prohibited Transactions

5.0 Certain Limited Exceptions

6.0 Pre-clearance of Trades and Other Procedures
7.0 10b5-1 Plans

8.0 Broker Requirements for Section 16 Persons
9.0 Additional Considerations for Section 16 Persons
10.0 Company Transactions

11.0  Legal Effect of this Policy

12.0 Questions and Violations

1.0 General

1.1 Taylor Morrison Home Corporation and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company’) has adopted this Policy to prevent
insider trading. Strict adherence to this Policy will help safeguard both the Company’s reputation and integrity and your own.
This Policy applies to all of the following (collectively, the “Insiders’), each of whom must, at all times, comply with the
securities laws of the United States and all other applicable jurisdictions:

» the Company’s directors, officers, employees and any other persons the Company determines should be subject to the
Policy, such as contractors and consultants (collectively, “Company Personnel’);

+ the households of Company Personnel (including any person who lives in the household of Company Personnel
whether or not a family member), and any family members of Company Personnel who do not live in their household
but whose transactions in Company securities are directed by or subject the influence or control of Company
Personnel (e.g., parents or children who consult with Company Personnel before they trade in Company securities);
and

» trusts, corporations and other entities, vehicles or accounts controlled by any of such persons.
1.2 Federal securities laws prohibit trading in the securities of a company while aware of “inside” information. These

transactions are commonly known as “insider trading.” It is also illegal to recommend to others (commonly called “tipping”)
that they buy, sell or



1.3

1.4

2.0
2.1

2.2

retain the securities of a company to which such inside information relates. This includes any communication providing
inside information on social media or other internal or external Internet platforms. Anyone violating these laws is subject to
personal liability and could face significant fines and criminal penalties, including imprisonment. Federal securities laws also
create a strong incentive for the Company to deter insider trading by its employees. In the normal course of business,
Company Personnel may come into possession of inside information concerning the Company, its industry, transactions in
which the Company proposes to engage, or customers, partners, vendors or other entities with which the Company does
business. Therefore, the Company has established this Policy with respect to trading in its securities and securities of certain
other companies. Any violation of this Policy could subject you to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

This Policy concerns compliance as it pertains to the disclosure of inside information regarding the Company or another
company and to trading in securities while in possession of such inside information.

This Policy is intended to protect Insiders and the Company from insider trading violations. However, the matters set forth in
this Policy are not intended to replace your responsibility to understand and comply with the legal prohibition on insider
trading. Appropriate judgment should be exercised in connection with all securities trading. If you have specific questions
regarding this Policy or applicable law, please contact the Chief Legal Officer or their designee.

Definitions

Family Members. For purposes of this Policy, the term “family members” includes family members who reside with you,
anyone else who lives in your household and any family members who do not live in your household but whose transactions
are directed by you or are subject to your influence or control. Company Personnel can be held responsible for the
transactions of their family members and therefore should make them aware of the need to confer with them before they
trade in the Company’s securities or securities of companies we do business with.

Material. Information is generally considered “material” if a reasonable investor would consider it important in deciding
whether to buy, sell, or hold a security. The information may concern the Company or another company and may be positive
or negative. In addition, it should be emphasized that material information does not have to relate to a company’s business;
information about the contents of a forthcoming publication in the financial press that is expected to affect the market price
of a security could be material. Insiders should assume that information that would affect their consideration of whether to
trade, or which might tend to influence the price of the security, is material.

Examples of material information may include, but are not limited to:

e financial results;

» projections of future earnings or losses, or other guidance concerning earnings;

» the fact that earnings are inconsistent with consensus expectations;

e apending or proposed merger, investment, joint venture, acquisition or tender offer;
9 9 b
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» asignificant sale of assets or the disposition of a subsidiary or business unit;

* changes in dividend policies or the declaration of a stock split or the offering of additional securities;

* acquisition of, refinancing or repayment of significant debts or defaults on debt;

* pending or proposed changes in senior management or other key employees;

+ significant new products or services;

» significant legal or regulatory exposure due to a pending or threatened lawsuit or investigation;

* impending bankruptcy or other financial liquidity problems;

+ significant write-offs;

» significant disruptions in the Company’s operations, or loss, potential loss, breach or unauthorized access of the
Company’s property or assets, including information technology infrastructure and cybersecurity and privacy incidents or
events;

* changes in legislation affecting our business;

* changes in, or disagreements with, auditor or notifications that the Company may no longer rely on such firm’s report; or

» the gain or loss of a substantial supplier.

Information that something is likely to happen or even just that it may happen can be material. Courts often resolve close
cases in favor of finding the information material. Therefore, Insiders should err on the side of caution. Insiders should keep
in mind that the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) provide that the mere fact that a
person is aware of the information is a bar to trading. It is no defense that such person’s reasons for trading were unrelated to
the information.

If you have any question regarding whether specific information may be deemed material, please contact the Chief Legal
Officer or their designee.

Non-Public Information. For the purpose of this Policy, all Company information is “Nen-Public” until three criteria have
been satisfied:

First, the information must have been widely disseminated. Generally, Insiders should assume that information has NOT
been widely disseminated unless it has been disclosed in (i) a press release distributed through a widely disseminated news or
wire service, (ii) a publicly available filing made with the SEC or (iii) another manner compliant with Regulation FD (Fair
Disclosure). For additional information regarding disclosures made in compliance with Regulation FD, please see the
Company’s Regulation FD Compliance Policy.
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Second, the information disseminated must be some form of “official” announcement or disclosure, which, in the case of
information about the Company, must be made by the Company. In other words, the fact that rumors, speculation, or
statements attributed to unidentified sources are public is insufficient to be considered widely disseminated even when the
rumors, speculation, or statements are accurate.

Third, after the information has been disseminated, a period of time must pass sufficient for the information to be absorbed
by the general public. As a general rule, information should not be considered fully absorbed until after at least one full
trading session has elapsed on the New York Stock Exchange (“/NYSE”) after the information has been publicly disclosed in
a manner compliant with Regulation FD.

Restricted Persons. The term “Restricted Persons” means Statutory Insiders and Other Restricted Persons, as those terms are
defined in Section 6.0.

Section 16 Persons: The term “Section 16 Persons” means members of the Company’s Board of Directors and the
Company’s “officers” (as defined in Rule 16a-1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”)), as designated by the Company from time to time.

Security or Securities. The term “security” or “securities” is defined very broadly by the securities laws and includes stock
(common and preferred), stock options, warrants, bonds, notes, debentures, convertible instruments, put or call options (i.e.,
exchange-traded options), or other similar instruments.

Trade or Trading. The term “#rade” or “trading” means broadly any purchase, sale or other transaction to acquire, transfer or
dispose of securities, including derivative exercises, gifts or other contributions, pledges, exercises of stock options granted
under the Company’s stock plans, sales of stock acquired upon the exercise of options and trades made under an employee
benefit plan such as a 401(k) plan.

General Statement of Policy

Trading_in Securities of the Company. It is the policy of the Company that the Company and its directors, officers and
employees comply with all federal and state securities laws and regulations applicable to the purchase and sale of the
Company’s securities. Accordingly, no Insider may trade the Company’s securities at any time when the Insider has Material
Non-Public Information concerning the Company. It is the responsibility of the Insider to be certain that they do not have
Material Non-Public Information when determining to trade. For certain limited exceptions from prohibitions on trading
imposed by this Policy, see Section 5.0 below.

Trading in Securities of Other Companies. No Insider may trade securities of another company with which the Company has
a business relationship (including, without limitation, our customers, vendors, suppliers or partners) at any time when the
Insider has non-public information that was obtained, in whole or in part, as a result of the Insider’s employment or
relationship to the Company to the extent that such non-public information (regardless of its subject matter) may be material
to the securities of the company that would be traded.

Tipping. No Insider may disclose (“#ip”) Material Non-Public Information to any other person (including family members),
and no Insider may make trading recommendations
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on the basis of Material Non-Public Information. In addition, Insiders should take care before trading on the recommendation
of others to ensure that the recommendation is not the result of an illegal “tip”.

Window Periods. Even if you are not aware of any Material Non-Public Information, certain Insiders may only trade in the
Company’s securities during the four Window Periods (as defined below) that occur each fiscal year or in connection with an
SEC-registered underwritten secondary offering of the Company. See Section 5.0. Certain of these persons must also receive
pre-approval prior to any transaction involving the Company’s securities. See Section 6.0.

Policy Effective Time. An Insider who is aware of Material Non-Public Information when they cease to be an Insider may
not trade in the Company’s securities until that information has become public or is no longer material. In addition, the pre-
clearance requirements set forth in Section 6.0 will continue to apply to former Statutory Insiders for six months after their
last non-exempt transaction under Section 16 of the Exchange Act. See Section 6.3. If you have specific questions regarding
this Policy, what may constitute Material Non-Public Information or applicable law, please contact the Chief Legal Officer or
their designee.

Other Prohibited Transactions

No Short Sales, Hedging_or Speculative Transactions. No Insider, whether or not they possess Material Non-Public
Information, may trade in options, warrants, puts and calls or similar instruments on the Company’s securities or sell such
securities “short” (i.e., selling stock that is not owned and borrowing the shares to make delivery) or engage in speculative
trading (e.g., “day-trading”) that is intended to take advantage of short-term price fluctuations. Such activities may put the
personal gain of the Insider in conflict with the best interests of the Company and its securityholders or otherwise give the
appearance of impropriety. No Insider may engage in any transactions (including variable forward contracts, equity swaps,
collars and exchange funds) that are designed to hedge or offset any decrease in the market value of the Company’s equity
securities.

Managed Accounts. If you have a managed account (where another person has been given discretion or authority to trade
without your prior approval), you should advise your broker or investment advisor not to trade in Company securities at any
time.

Margin Accounts and Pledges. Securities purchased on margin may be sold by the broker without the customer’s consent if
the customer fails to meet a margin call. Similarly, securities held in an account which may be borrowed against or are
otherwise pledged (or hypothecated) as collateral for a loan may be sold in foreclosure if the borrower defaults on the loan.
Accordingly, if you purchase securities on margin or pledge them as collateral for a loan, a margin sale or foreclosure sale
may occur at a time when you are aware of Material Non-Public Information or otherwise are not permitted to trade in our
securities. The sale, even though not initiated at your request, is still a sale for your benefit and may subject you to liability
under the insider trading rules if made at a time when you are aware of Material Non-Public Information. Similar cautions
apply to a bank or other loans for which you have pledged stock as collateral.

44  Therefore, no Company Personnel, whether or not in possession of Material Non-Public Information, may purchase
the Company’s securities on margin, or borrow against any account in which the Company’s securities are held, or pledge the
Company’s securities as collateral for a loan, without first obtaining pre-clearance. Request for
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approval must be submitted to the Chief Legal Officer (or their designee) at least two weeks prior to the execution of the
documents evidencing the proposed pledge. The Chief Legal Officer is under no obligation to approve any request for pre-
clearance and may determine not to permit the arrangement for any reason. Approvals will be based on the particular facts
and circumstances of the request, including, but not limited to, the percentage amount that the securities being pledged
represent of the total number of our securities held by the person making the request and the financial capacity of the person
making the request. Notwithstanding the pre-clearance of any request, the Company assumes no liability for the
consequences of any transaction made pursuant to such request.

Standing _or Limit Orders. Standing and limit orders (except standing and limit orders under approved Rule 10b5-1 trading
plans, as described below) create heightened risks for insider trading violations similar to the use of margin accounts. There
is no control over the timing of purchases or sales that result from standing instructions to a broker, and as a result the broker
could execute a transaction when an Insider is in possession of Material Non-Public Information. As a result, the Company
generally discourages the use of standing or limit orders by Insiders. Any standing order or limit order placed by an Insider
on the Company’s securities should be limited to a short duration, must comply with the restrictions and procedures outlined
in this Policy (including any applicable Window Periods and pre-clearance requirements), and (except standing and limit
orders under approved Rule 10b5-1 trading plans) must be immediately revoked by the Insider upon acquisition of Material
Non-Public Information or notice by the Company of a Special Blackout (as defined below) pursuant to Section 6.5.

Minimum Hold Period Prior to Sale or Disposition. All shares of the Company’s common stock purchased by any Section 16
Person must be held for a minimum of six months prior to a sale or disposition, subject to the trading exceptions set forth in
Section 5.0 and the Section 16 Person’s compliance with Section 16 of the Exchange Act. See Section 9.0.

Certain Limited Exceptions
The prohibition on trading in the Company’s securities set forth in Section 3.0 above does not apply to:

« Distributions or transfers (such as certain tax planning or estate planning transfers) that effect only a change in the form
of beneficial interest without changing your pecuniary interest in the Company’s securities, provided that prior written
notice of such distribution or transfer is provided to the Chief Legal Officer or their designee.

* The exercise of stock options to buy and hold the Company’s stock (and net sell) (including any net-settled stock option
exercise to buy and hold) pursuant to our equity incentive plans ; however, the sale of any stock acquired upon such
exercise, including as part of a broker-assisted cashless exercise of an option or any other market sale for the purpose of
generating the cash needed to pay the exercise price of an option or to satisfy tax withholding requirements, is subject to
this Policy.

* The withholding by the Company (whether mandated by the Company or pursuant to a tax withholding right) of shares of
restricted stock, shares underlying restricted
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stock units or shares subject to an option, in each case, to satisfy tax withholding requirements.

* The execution of transactions pursuant to a trading plan that complies with SEC Rule 10b5-1 and which has been
approved by the Company. See Section 7.1.

» Sales of the Company’s securities as a selling stockholder in a registered public offering in accordance with applicable
securities laws.

* Trading in mutual funds and Exchange Traded Funds (ETFs) holding Company securities at any time, that are either
based on broad indexes, such as Standard & Poor’s or NYSE, or on targeted sectors with portfolio holdings of at least 30
Or more companies.

» To the extent the Company offers its securities as an investment option in the Company’s 401(k) plan, the purchase of
stock through the Company’s 401(k) plan through regular payroll deductions; however, the sale of any such stock and the
election to transfer funds into or out of, the election to increase or decrease the percentage of periodic contributions
allocated to the stock fund, or a loan with respect to amounts invested in, the stock fund is subject to this Policy.

Pre-clearance of Trades and Other Procedures

Statutory Insiders. The following are “Statutory Insiders’:
» Section 16 Persons and their secretaries/assistants; and

» any person who lives in the household of a Section 16 Person whether or not a family member, and any of their
family members who do not live in their household but whose transactions in Company securities they direct,
influence, or control (e.g., parents or children who consult with Company Personnel before they trade in Company
securities), and trusts, corporations and other entities influenced or controlled by any of such persons.

6.2 Statutory Insiders must obtain the advance approval of the Chief Legal Officer or their designee in accordance with
Section 6.3 before effecting trades of, or engaging in other transactions in, the Company’s securities, including, but not
limited to, any purchase or sale, any exercise of an option (whether cashless or otherwise), gifts, loans, pledges, rights or
warrant to purchase or sell such securities, contribution to a trust or other transfers, whether the transaction is for the
individual’s own account, one over which they exercise control or one in which they have a beneficial interest.

Other Restricted Persons. From time to time, the Company will notify persons, in addition to Statutory Insiders, that they are
subject to the pre-clearance requirements set forth in Section 6.3 and/or the window periods set forth in Section 6.4 if the
Company believes that, in the normal course of their duties, they are likely to have regular access to Material Non-Public
Information (“Other Restricted Persons’). Examples of such persons may include members of the National Leadership
Team, Division Presidents, Division Vice Presidents of Finance and their assistants and employees in the Company’s




6.4

6.5

6.7

corporate finance and legal departments. Any person notified of their status as an Other Restricted Person will remain an
Other Restricted Person subject to the pre-clearance requirements set forth in Section 6.3 and/or the window periods set forth
in Section 6.4, as applicable, unless otherwise notified in writing by the Chief Legal Officer or their designee. Occasionally,
certain individuals may have access to Material Non-Public Information for a limited period of time. During such a period,
such persons may be notified that they are also Other Restricted Persons who will be subject to the pre-clearance
requirements set forth in Section 6.3 and/or the Window Period restrictions set forth in Section 6.4.

Pre-Clearance Procedures. Subject to Section 7.1, Statutory Insiders and Other Restricted Persons who are notified that they
are subject to the pre-clearance requirements of this Section 6.3 must submit a request for pre-clearance to the Chief Legal
Officer or their designee at least two business days in advance of the proposed transaction (two weeks in the case of using
shares as collateral for a loan (see Section 4.3)) by emailing the Chief Legal Officer or their designee a copy of the
Company’s “Request for Securities Trading Pre-Clearance” form. Approval must be in writing, specifying the securities
involved. Approval for transactions will generally be granted only during a Window Period (described in Section 6.4
below) and the transaction may only be performed during the Window Period in which the approval was granted and
in any event within five business days from the date of approval, provided that notwithstanding receipt of pre-
clearance, you may not trade in Company securities if you subsequently become aware of Material Non-Public
Information prior to effecting the transaction. Unless notified otherwise by the Company, former Statutory Insiders must
comply with these pre-clearance requirements for six months after their last non-exempt transaction under Section 16 of the
Exchange Act.

Window Periods. The Company has established four “windows” of time during the fiscal year (“Window Periods”) during
which requests may be approved and trading may be performed by Restricted Persons. Each Window Period begins after one
full trading session on the NYSE has been completed after the Company makes a public news release of its quarterly or
annual earnings for the prior fiscal quarter or year.

6.6  That same Window Period closes at the close of trading on the twentieth day of the last month of the then current
fiscal quarter. After the close of the Window Period, except as set forth in Section 5.0 above, Restricted Persons may not
trade in any of the Company’s securities at least until the start of the next Window Period. The prohibition against trading
while aware of, or tipping of, Material Non-Public Information applies even during a Window Period. For example, if during
a Window Period, a material acquisition or divestiture is pending or a forthcoming publication in the financial press may
affect the relevant securities market, you may not trade in the Company’s securities. You must consult the Chief Legal
Officer or their designee whenever you are in doubt.

Special Blackouts. From time to time, the Company may require that directors, officers, selected employees and/or others be
prohibited from trading in the Company’s securities, including during a Window Period, regardless of any other provision of
this Policy because of developments that have not yet been disclosed to the public. If the Company declares a blackout to
which you are subject, then a member of the Legal Department will notify you when the blackout begins and when it ends.
All those affected shall not trade in the Company s securities while the suspension is in effect, and shall not disclose to others
inside or outside the Company that trading has been suspended for certain individuals. Though these blackouts generally
will arise because the Company is




6.8

7.0
7.1

involved in a highly sensitive transaction, incident or event, they may be declared for any reason.

Notification of Window Periods. In order to assist you in complying with this Policy, the Company will endeavor to deliver
an e-mail (or other communication) notifying all Restricted Persons when the Window Period has opened and when the
Window Period closes. The Company’s delivery or non-delivery of these e-mails (or other communication) does not relieve
you of your obligation to only trade in the Company’s securities in full compliance with this Policy.

10b5-1 and Other Trading Plans

10b5-1 Trading Plans. A 10b5-1 trading plan is a binding, written contract between you and your broker that specifies the
price, amount, and date of trades to be executed in your account in the future, or provides a formula or mechanism that your
broker will follow, and satisfies various other conditions and limitations set forth in Rule 10b5-1 under the Exchange Act. A
10b5-1 trading plan can only be established when you do not possess Material Non-Public Information. Therefore, Insiders
cannot enter into these plans at any time when in possession of Material Non-Public Information and, in addition, Restricted
Persons cannot enter into these plans outside Window Periods. In addition, a 10b5-1 trading plan must not permit you to
exercise any subsequent influence over how, when, or whether the purchases or sales are made.

The rules regarding 10b5-1 trading plans are complex and you must fully comply with them. You should consult with your
legal advisor before entering into any 10b5-1 trading plan.

Each Insider must pre-clear with the Chief Legal Officer or their designee any proposed trading plan or arrangement,
including 10b5-1 trading plans, prior to establishing, amending or terminating such plan. The Company reserves the right to
withhold pre-clearance of the adoption, amendment or termination of any such trading plan that the Company determines is
not consistent with the rules regarding such plans. No Insider will be permitted to adopt a Rule 10b5-1 trading plan if such
Insider has an existing contract, instruction or plan that would qualify for the affirmative defense under Rule 10b5-1, subject
to the exceptions set forth in the rule. Notwithstanding any pre-clearance of a Rule 10b5-1 or other trading plan, the
Company assumes no liability for the consequences of any transaction made pursuant to such plan.

If you enter into a 10b5-1 trading plan, your 10b5-1 trading plan should be structured to avoid purchases or sales on dates
occurring shortly before known announcements, such as quarterly or annual earnings announcements. Even though
transactions executed in accordance with a properly formulated 10b5-1 trading plan are exempt from the insider trading
rules, the trades may nonetheless occur at times shortly before we announce material news, and the investing public and
media may not understand the nuances of trading pursuant to a 10b5-1 trading plan. This could result in negative publicity
for you and the Company if the SEC or the NYSE were to investigate your trades.

For Insiders, any modification or termination of a pre-approved 10b5-1 or other trading plan requires pre-clearance by the
Chief Legal Officer or their designee. In addition, any
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8.0

modification of a pre-approved 10b5-1 or other trading plan must occur when you are not aware of any Material Non-Public
Information and must comply with the requirements of the rules regarding such trading plans (including Rule 10b5-1, if
applicable) and, if you are subject to Window Period restrictions, must take place during a Window Period.

Transactions effected pursuant to a pre-cleared 10b5-1 or other trading plan will not require further pre-clearance at the time
of the transaction if the plan specifies the dates, prices and amounts of the contemplated trades, or establishes a formula for
determining the dates, prices and amounts.

Finally, if you are a Section 16 Person, 10b5-1 and other trading plans require special care, as the Company generally will be
required to disclose the adoption, amendment or termination of such a plan by such persons in its periodic reports filed with
the SEC. Accordingly, it is imperative that Section 16 Persons coordinate with the Chief Legal Officer prior to establishing,
adopting or modifying such plans. Moreover, because such plans may specify conditions that trigger a purchase or sale, you
may not even be aware that a transaction has taken place and you may not be able to comply with the SEC’s requirement that
you report your transaction to the SEC within two business days after its execution. Therefore, for Section 16 Persons, a
transaction executed according to a trading plan is not permitted unless the trading plan requires your broker to notify the
Company before the close of business on the day of the execution of the transaction. See Section 8.0.

Broker Requirements for Section 16 Persons

The timely reporting of transactions (see Section 9.0 below) requires tight interface with brokers handling transactions for
Section 16 Persons. A knowledgeable, alert broker can also serve as a gatekeeper, helping to ensure compliance with our pre-
clearance procedures and helping prevent inadvertent violations. Therefore, in order to facilitate timely compliance by the
directors and executive officers of the Company with the requirements of Section 16 of the Exchange Act, brokers of Section
16 Persons need to comply with the following requirements:

* not to enter any order (except for orders under pre-approved Rule 10b5-1 plans) without first verifying with the Company
that your transaction was pre-cleared and complying with the brokerage firm’s compliance procedures (e.g., Rule 144);
and

» to report before the close of business on the day of the execution of the transaction to the Company by telephone and in
writing via e-mail to the Chief Legal Officer or their designee, the complete (i.e., date, type of transaction, number of
shares and price) details of every transaction involving the Company’s equity securities, including gifts, transfers, pledges
and all transactions under 10b5-1 and other trading plans.

Because it is the legal obligation of the trading person to cause any filings on Form 3, Form 4, Form 5 or Form 144 (or as
may otherwise be required), to be made, you are strongly encouraged to confirm following any transaction that your broker
has immediately telephoned and e-mailed the required information to the Company.

11



9.0

10.0

11.0

Additional Considerations for Section 16 Persons

Changes in a Section 16 Person’ beneficial ownership of the Company’s equity securities must be reported on a Form 4
within two business days after the date on which such change occurs or in certain cases on a Form 5 within 45 days after
fiscal year end. Failure to timely report transactions require separate disclosure in the Company’s proxy statements.
Accordingly, if you are a Section 16 Person, prompt, and careful attention to your Section 16 filing obligations is expected.

In addition, each Section 16 Person bears legal responsibility for complying with the limitations on “short-swing”
transactions set forth in Section 16 of the Exchange Act. Under this provision, Section 16 Persons cannot purchase and sell,
or sell and purchase, the Company’s equity securities within a period of six months before or six months after an opposite-
way transaction without disgorging to the Company “profits” obtained in the short-swing transaction. A person who engages
in a prohibited set of transactions will be liable to the Company for any profits earned or losses avoided. The Company
cannot waive this liability. For example, if a Section 16 Person buys 1,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock on
January 1 at $75 per share and, within six months, sells shares of the Company’s Common Stock for $80 per share, he or she
will be liable to the Company for the total profit of $5,000. Similarly, if 1,000 shares are sold on January 1 for $75 per share
and within six months the Section 16 Person purchases 5,000 shares for $70 per share, the Section 16 Person will have
“avoided” a loss of $5,000 and he or she will be liable to the Company for that amount.

Application of the prohibition on short-swing profits is strict, and all non-exempt transactions occurring within any six-
month period are matched in the manner resulting in the maximum forfeiture of short-swing profits. The practical effect of
these provisions is that Section 16 Persons who both purchase and sell the Company’s securities in non-exempt transactions
within a six-month period must refund all profits to the Company, whether or not they had knowledge of any Material Non-
Public Information.

Section 16 Persons may also be required to file Form 144 under the Securities Act before making an open-market sale of
Company securities. This form is required to be filed electronically with the SEC. Generally, a broker that assists a Section
16 Person with the sale of Company securities should assist with the filing of the Form 144.

Company Transactions

From time to time, the Company may engage in transactions in Company securities. It is the Company’s policy to comply
with all applicable securities laws when engaging in transactions in Company securities.

Legal Effect of this Policy

The Company’s Policy with respect to securities trading and the disclosure of confidential information, and the procedures
that implement this Policy, are not intended

12



to serve as precise recitations of the legal prohibitions against insider trading and tipping which are highly complex, fact
specific and evolving. Certain of the procedures are designed to prevent even the appearance of impropriety and in some
respects may be more restrictive than the securities laws. Therefore, these procedures are not intended to serve as a basis for
establishing civil or criminal liability that would not otherwise exist.

12.0 Questions and Violations

12.1 Anyone with questions concerning this Policy or its application should contact the Chief Legal Officer or their
designee. Any violation or perceived violation should be reported immediately to the Chief Legal Officer or their designee.
Anonymous reporting of violations or perceived violations may be made through the Company’s Ethics and Whistleblower
Line.

Effective: September 23, 2025
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Legal Entity

AVH Carolinas, LLC

AVH DFW, LLC

AVH EM, LLC

AV Homes of Arizona, LLC
AV Homes of Raleigh, LLC
ATPD, LLC

JCH Construction, LLC
Polygon Mortgage, LLC

Taylor Morrison Holdings of Arizona, Inc.

Taylor Morrison/Arizona, Inc.

TM Homes of Arizona, Inc.

TM BTR at Paradisi, LLC

TM BTR of Phoenix, LLC

William Lyon Southwest, Inc.
YARDLY LAVEEN SPECTRUM, LLC
California Equity Funding, Inc.
Duxford Financial, Inc.

HSP INC.

Inspired California Escrow Services, Inc.
Lyon East Garrison Company I, LLC
PH Ventures-San Jose

PH-Rielly Ventures

Sycamore CC, Inc.

William Lyon Homes, Inc.

Taylor Morrison Home Funding, Inc.
Taylor Morrison of California, LLC
WLH Enterprises

Taylor Morrison of Colorado, Inc.
TM BTR of Colorado, LLC
AV Homes, Inc

Cerro Plata Associates, LLC
Charleston 215, LLC

ClosingMark Financial Group, LLC
ClosingMark Financial Services, LLC
ClosingMark Holdings, LLC

Esplanade Resort Experiences, LLC
JCH Group, LLC

Subsidiaries of Taylor Morrison Home Corporation

Exhibit 21.1

Jurisdiction of
Organization

Arizona
Arizona
Arizona
Arizona
Arizona
Arizona

Arizona
Arizona

Arizona
Arizona
Arizona
Arizona
Arizona
Arizona

Arizona

California
California

California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California
California

Colorado
Colorado

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

Delaware



Mattamy Home Funding, LLC
RSI Communities - California LLC

RSI Jurupa Valley, LLC
South Cooper Mountain Owner, LLC
Taylor Morrison BTR, Inc.

Delaware
Delaware

Delaware
Delaware

Delaware



Taylor Morrison Communities, Inc.

Taylor Morrison Finance, Inc.

Taylor Morrison Holdings, Inc.

TAYLOR MORRISON HOME II CORPORATION
TAYLOR MORRISON HOME IIT CORPORATION

Taylor Morrison Northwest, LLC (f/k/a Polygon WLH LLC)

Taylor Morrison Pacific Point Holdings, LLC
Taylor Morrison Services Inc.

Taylor Morrison, Inc.

Taylor Morrison Marblehead Holdings, LLC
Taylor Morrison Tramonto Holdings, LLC

Taylor Morrison Insurance Services, Inc.

TM BTR Venture, LLC
TM Burleson Ranch Member, LLC

TM California Services, Inc.

TM Highland Lakes Member, LLC

TM Magnolia Ridge, LLC

TM Oakwood Trails Member, LLC

TM SHADOW RIDGE MEMBER, LLC
TM SONOMA VERDE, LLC

TM Uptown Member, LLC

TM Westview Member, LLC

URBAN FORM AGGREGATOR, LLC
URBAN FORM PREF HOLDCO, LLC

WILLIAM LYON HOMES
WLH Communities - Alderwood LLC
WLH Communities - Texas, LLC
WLH Communities LLC

WLH Onion Creek, LLC

WLH Prado LLC

WLH Stillwater LLC

WLH Stonewall LLC

WLH Trails at Leander LLC
Avatar Properties Inc.

AVH North Florida, LLC
Inspired Title Services, LLC

Mortgage Funding Direct Ventures, LLC
NEAL COMMUNITIES FUNDING, LLC
Royal Oak Homes, LLC

Taylor Morrison Esplanade Naples, LLC
Taylor Morrison of Florida, Inc.

Taylor Morrison Realty of Florida, Inc.

Taylor Woodrow Communities at Artisan Lakes, L.L.C.

TM BTR of Florida, LLC

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

Delaware
Delaware

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

Delaware

Delaware
Delaware

Delaware
Delaware

Delaware

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Florida
Florida
Florida

Florida
Florida
Florida

Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida



TM Langley Member, LLC
TW Acquisitions, Inc.

Vitalia at Tradition, LLC

YARDLY EDGEWATER, LLC
YARDLY EUSTIS, LLC
Yardly Mount Dora, LLC
YARDLY OXFORD, LLC
YARDLY PALMETTO, LLC
YARDLY WATERSET, LLC

Taylor Morrison of Georgia, LLC

Taylor Morrison Realty of Georgia, Inc.

Florida
Florida

Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida

Georgia

Georgia



Taylor Morrison of Illinois, Inc.
Taylor Morrison of Indiana, LLC
MOUNTAIN FALLS GOLF COURSE, LLC

Mountain Falls, LLC
Taylor Morrison of Nevada, LLC
Bonterra Builders, LLC

Taylor Morrison of Carolinas, Inc.
TM BTR Alexandriana 1, LLC
TM BTR of Carolinas, LLC

YARDLY BUFFALOE VILLAGE, LLC
YARDLY OAKDALE, LLC

YARDLY STEELE CREEK, LLC
YARDLY WEST TOWNE, LLC

CASCADIAN SOUTH L.L.C.
Darling Homes of Texas, LLC

DFP Texas (GP), LLC

Taylor Morrison at Crystal Falls, LLC

Taylor Morrison of Texas, Inc.

Taylor Woodrow Communities — League City, Ltd.

Taylor Woodrow Homes Houston (GP), L.L.C.

TM 359 Member, LLC
TM 529 Member, LLC
TM 1464 Member, LLC
TM Ridge GP, LLC

TM Ridge LP, LLC
TM Sendera, LLC
TMC Travisso GP, LLC
TMC Travisso LP, LLC

TM BTR of Texas, LLC

Yardly Eden, LLC

Yardly Frontier, LLC

YARDLY HAVERLAND, LLC
YARDLY KELLY LANE, LLC
Yardly Sutton Fields, LLC
YARDLY WESTINGHOUSE, LLC

Beneva Indemnity Company

460 Central, L.L.C.

Baseline Woods SFD I, L.L.C.

Baseline Woods SFD 11, L.L.C.

Baseline Woods West, L.L.C.

Bethany Creek Falls, L.L.C.

Brownstone At Issaquah Highlands, L.L.C.
Bryant Heights, L.L.C.

Bull Mountain Ridge, L.L.C.

Calais At Villebois, L.L.C.

Illinois
Indiana

Nevada

Nevada

Nevada
North Carolina

North Carolina
North Carolina

North Carolina
North Carolina
North Carolina
North Carolina
North Carolina

Oregon

Texas
Texas
Texas
Texas
Texas
Texas
Texas

Texas
Texas

Texas
Texas
Texas
Texas
Texas

Texas

Texas
Texas
Texas
Texas
Texas
Texas

Vermont
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington

Washington



Cascadian King Company, L.L.C.
Cascara At Redmond Ridge, L.L.C.
Cedar Falls Way LLC

Cornelius Pass Townhomes, L.L.C.
Edgewater Tualatin, L.L.C.

Grande Pointe At Villebois, L.L.C.
High Point III, L.L.C.

Highcroft At Sammamish, L.L.C.

Issaquah Highlands Investment Fund, L.L.C.

Les Bois At Villebois, L.L.C.

Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington



Mill Creek Terrace, L.L.C.
Murray & Weir SFD, L.L.C.
Orenco Woods SFD, L.L.C.
Peasley Canyon Homes, L.L.C.
PNW Cascadian Company, L.L.C.

Polygon At Brenchley Estates, L.L.C.
Polygon Northwest Company, L.L.C.
Polygon At Sunset Ridge, L.L.C.

Polygon At Villebois II, L.L.C.
Polygon At Villebois III, L.L.C.
Polygon At Villebois IV, L.L.C.
Polygon At Villebois V, L.L.C.
Ridgeview Townhomes, L.L.C.
Riverfront MF, L.L.C.
Riverfront SF, L.L.C.
Silverlake Center, L.L.C.
Spanaway 230, L.L.C.

Sparrow Creek, L.L.C.

The Reserve At Maple Valley, L.L.C.

Twin Creeks At Cooper Mountain, L.L.C.
Viewridge At Issaquah Highlands, L.L.C.

W.R. Townhomes F, L.L.C.

Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington

Washington
Washington
Washington

Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington
Washington

Washington



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333-265665, 333-236287, 333-187884, 333-218385, and 333-227654 on Form S-
8 of our reports dated February 18, 2026, relating to the financial statements of Taylor Morrison Home Corporation, and the effectiveness of Taylor Morrison
Home Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2025.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Tempe, Arizona
February 18, 2026



EXHIBIT 31.1

CEO CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES - OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Sheryl D. Palmer, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Taylor Morrison Home Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material

information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and
the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: February 18, 2026

By: /s/ Sheryl D. Palmer
Sheryl D. Palmer

Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer
Taylor Morrison Home Corporation




EXHIBIT 31.2

CFO CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE
SARBANES - OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Curt VanHyfte, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Taylor Morrison Home Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the

registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and
the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: February 18, 2026
By: /s/ Curt VanHyfte

Curt VanHyfte

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Taylor Morrison Home Corporation



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Taylor Morrison Home Corporation (the “Company”) for the period ending December 31, 2025 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Sheryl D. Palmer, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant

to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
2 The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of

operations of the Company.

/s/ Sheryl D. Palmer
Sheryl D. Palmer
Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer
Taylor Morrison Home Corporation

February 18, 2026




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Taylor Morrison Home Corporation (the “Company”) for the period ending December 31, 2025 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Curt VanHyfte, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

€)) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2 The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

February 18, 2026 /s/ Curt VanHyfte
Curt VanHyfte
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Taylor Morrison Home Corporation




